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Corporate Profile
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG), a state-owned specialized financial institution governed by the Ministry
of Finance, was established under the “Small Industry Credit Guarantee Corporation Act B.E. 2534 (1991)”. On
February 21, 1992, all assets, debts and responsibilities of The Small Industry Credit Guarantee Fund had been
transferred over to TCG. The corporation’s major events are according to the following timeline:

TCG

30 December 1991

TCG was established under the
“Small Industry Credit Guarantee
Corporation Act B.E. 2534 (1991)”.

3 July 2000

The government by the Ministry of
Finance made additional capital
increase of Baht 4,000 million for TCG,
making up a total registered capital of
Baht 4,400 million.

21 February 1992

TCG took over all businesses
and operations of The Small
Industry Credit Guarantee
Fund with an initial registered
capital of Baht 400 million.

19 December 2003
4 January 2008

TCG called for partial share payment of
Baht 302.47 million from the shareholders
who had expressed their intention to take
up new shares, making up a total
registered capital of Baht 4,702.47 million.
14 October 2009

TCG registered the capital increase
with the Ministry of Commerce
pursuant to such special resolution
of the shareholders’ meeting,
allowing TCG to have total
registered capital in the overall
equaling to Baht 6,839.95 million,
of which Baht 6,702.47 million
is paid-up capital.

TCG was approved by a special resolution of its
extraordinary general meeting of shareholders
to increase its registered capital by another Bath
2,000 million.
25 September 2009

TCG was approved by the resolution
of its extraordinary general meeting
of shareholders no. 1/2009 to have
another capital increase by Baht
2,137.47 million, of which Baht 2,000
million was intended to be acquired
by the Ministry of Finance.
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Nature of Business
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) was established to provide support to small and medium enterprises
(SMEs) through guarantee service for the SMEs that have potentials but lack collateral security in order enable
them to acquire the required amount of loans from financial institutions with the hope to raise their capabilities
in business and investment expansion as well as encouraging the emergence of new entrants.

TCG Guarantee Service Chart

1 Loan Request

SMEs

2 Application for Guarantee
3 Letter or Guarantee Issued

TCG

Bank

4 Loan Disbursement B

Remark: Descriptions
1. SMEs acquire loan from a bank by submitting an application form.
2. The bank gives approval according to the determined criteria and delivers credit guarantee application form
		 to TCG.
3. TCG considers the form based on project’s criteria and returns the form back to the bank.
4. The bank offers loan to SMES.
Nevertheless, to ensure that all SMEs have access to its services, TCG therefore set up branch offices in various
provinces nationwide. Today, there are a total of 11 office branches available for service apart from other access
channels such as the company’s website and TCG Call Center which the SMEs can directly make contact and ask
questions or acquire additional information.
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Significant Financial Information
Financial Position
Total Assets

Year 2015

Unit : Million Baht
Year 2013

Year 2014

16,147.97

16,748.39

16,494.47

Total Liabilities

8,318.81

8,980.51

9,253.78

Capital

6,702.47

6,702.47

6,702.47

Shareholders’ Equity
Overall Operation

7,829.15

7,767.89

7,240.69

Revenues from Fees

4,803.25

4,475.54

3,702.13

Other Revenues

2,740.48

1,783.29

666.47

Total Revenues

7,543.73

6,258.83

4,368.60

270.38

690.06

362.65

Net Profit to Total Revenues

4.52

8.72

12.47

Return on Common Equity

4.35

7.03

7.52

Return on Total Assets

2.11

3.26

3.30

Assets to Equity

2.06

2.16

2.28

Total Comprehensive Profit
Financial Ratio
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Objectives of Establishment, Vision, Mission

บสย.
SMEs

Objectives of Establishment

Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) was established under the “Small Industry Credit Guarantee Corporation
Act B.E. 2534 (1991)” to provide support to small and medium enterprises (SMEs) through guarantee service for
the SMEs that have potentials but lack collateral security in order to enable them to acquire the required amount
of loans from financial institutions and, at the same time, raise confidence among financial institutions in making
credit expansion which will be beneficial to the country’s overall economic development.

		Objectives of Establishment

		 1. To assist small enterprises in obtaining a greater amount of credit from financial institutions.
		 2. To strengthen the confidence of financial institutions in providing credits to small enterprises.
		 3. To accelerate the credit extension to small enterprises throughout the country.
		 4. To assist in the achievement of the small industry development target under the National Economic and
			 Social Development Plan.
		
Under the above mentioned objectives, TCG therefore aims to operate its business for the benefit of the
country with its credit guarantee service as the main driving force in strengthening the SMEs and further creating
a healthy society and economic growth for the country.
8
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		Statement of Directions
		 1. To be the key organization in providing credit guarantee service to support small and medium enterprises
			 (SMEs) with potentials but lack of collateral security in order to enable them to access financial sources
			 and uplift their level of competitiveness.
		 2. To enhance risk management efficiency, particularly in terms of credit risk, by formulating procedures for
			preventing and resolving non-performing credit guarantees (NPGs) in systematic and standardized manner.
		 3. To develop a wide range of products and services in order to meet the requirements of financial institutions
			 as well as SMEs, including uplifting operating results.
		 4. To focus on building the sense of organizational ownership and instilling organizational culture regarding
			 the upholding of good governance principle among employees.

VISION

		
		
Vision

Corporate vision is what the
management believes the
stakeholders are expecting in the
future which must be consistent
with the intention or results of
that organization. The vision
upholds by TCG is
“The national credit guarantee
institution with a crucial role in
developing and promoting
the SMEs in accessing
financial sources”

MISSION

Mission

VALUES

Corporate mission reflects the
overall roles and responsibilities of
that particular organization in order
to achieve the determined vision.
It is therefore an important
instrument in transforming such
vision into various activities.
TCG’s missions which direct the
organization towards achieving
the determined vision include:
1. Assisting SMEs in all sectors
access to finance.
2. Developing SMEs to a quality
and efficient entrepreneurs.
3. Enhancing TCG organization’s
capabilities.

Corporate Values

Corporate values acts as guidance
for mutual building of corporate
culture. The values adhered
by TCG is
Talent (T)
Co-operation (C)
Good Governance (G)

		Milestone

		 At TCG, we are highly committed in achieving corporate vision, mission, objectives of establishment,
including focusing on assisting SME entrepreneurs in gaining wider access to financial sources. Hence, a long-term
development plan for the years 2016 – 2025 has been formulated to be used as guideline in carrying out the
business operations of TCG as follows:
		 1. Short-term Plan (2016 – 2017) – Develop products and expand market base by including Micro SMEs group
		 and uplift TCG’s potential as well as fundamental factors capable of supporting organizational development.
		 2. Mid-term Plan (2018 – 2020) – Expand market base by providing non-bank credit guarantee service in order
			 to enable wider access to financial sources among all groups of SMEs.
		 3. Long-term Plan (2021 – 2025) – Study and improve credit guarantee limit by offering debenture guarantee
			 service to SMEs that are starting to gain stronger financial position.
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
Annual Report 2015

9

Message from the Chairman
GDP

68%

75%
SMEs

In 2015, the country’s overall economic growth
was mainly driven by the joined forces between the
public sector and government agencies amidst slow
growth in the export sector and minimal private sector
investment which led to numerous challenges faced
by large businesses as well as small and medium
enterprises (SMEs) since the year 2014. Despite of slight
improvement in Thailand’s economy due to public
sector investment and measures implemented by the
government to promote overall economic growth,
Thailand’s GDP in 2015 continues to remain below 3%.
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) had
taken actions by carefully assessing the situation
and formulating operational plans that will help to
support the government sector in promoting SMEs
growth which will in turn stimulate investment,
employment and the overall consumption rate of
the country. The 2015 policy concerning small and
medium enterprises (SMEs) proposed by TCG that
gained full support from the government was to
support Micro-SMEs group in addition to small and
medium enterprises (SMEs) which has continuously
been supported by TCG. Based on the database of
the Office of Small and Medium Enterprises Promotion
(OSMEP), Micro-SMEs group makes up the largest group
in the SMEs sector with over 1.8 million entrepreneurs
nationwide, or approximately 65%, from a total of 2.7
million entrepreneurs throughout the country.
10
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Since TCG began introducing Portfolio Guarantee
Scheme in 2009, the corporation’s outstanding performance
in terms of credit guarantee service has clearly proven
TCG’s role and strong commitment. In 2015, TCG
provided new credit guarantees totaling Baht 102,802
million, or around 68% growth comparing to the previous
year, which is the highest record since TCG’s business
operation started. Meanwhile, the accumulated credit
guarantee amount approved by TCG as at the end of
year 2015 was equaled to Baht 494,288 million and
of which helped to generate credit flow within the
economic system by approximately Baht 770,000
million, allowing over 3,400,000 job positions to continue
whereas additional 500,000 job opportunities are to be
expected.
One of TCG’s performance highlights in 2015 is
assisting SME entrepreneurs in gaining loans from
both public and private financial institutions totaling
64,859 cases of which 48,876 cases, or around 75%, are
Micro-SMEs. Such credit guarantee service generated
SMEs credit among financial institutions totaling Baht
1.32 trillion. Without TCG’s credit guarantee service,
such high level of SMEs credit expansion would not
have taken place.
In addition to corporate mission concerning assisting
SME entrepreneurs in accessing financial sources, the
Board of Directors of TCG also recognizes the importance

Micro-SMEs

65%

TCG’s performance in 2015 is at satisfying level
thanks to full cooperation from every function from
the Board of Directors to the executive team,
employees, stakeholders and public sector,
all of which helped to support the work of TCG

of corporate governance and the importance of every
function within TCG. This includes enhancing efficiency
in terms of debt management in order to efficiently
classify and prioritize work procedure to enable quick
debt collection, carrying out financial management
and generating returns from investment in appropriate
and stable manner, ensuring the efficiency of work
system and work procedure, conducting personnel
development, maintaining good corporate governance
to ensure that TCG has suitable risk management,
internal audit and internal control processes and in
accordance with good governance principle, and
practicing corporate social responsibility. Hence, it can
be said that TCG’s performance in 2015 is at satisfying
level thanks to full cooperation from every function
from the Board of Directors to the executive team,
employees, stakeholders and public sector, all of which
helped to support the work of TCG in establishing
a better quality of life among low-income group which
TCG highly recognized the importance as they are the
foundation in driving the country’s economic growth.
As for the year 2016, TCG will continue to assist SME
and Micro-SME entrepreneurs in accessing financial
sources and at the same time emphasize on promoting
financial literacy among the SMEs so that they are
able to manage and uplift their level of competitiveness
to ensure sustainable growth.

Furthermore, the Board of Directors realized the
importance of cooperating with financial institutions
which TCG provides credit guarantee in comprehensive
manner. TCG shall operate and plan its work process
in such a way that will enable continuous andefficient
connection with those financial institutions in hope to
save time and expenses. TCG and financial institutions
shall jointly and continuously develop its operation to
achieve common success.
I would like to thank you SME entrepreneurs,
financial institutions and public regulators for their
continuous support and commitment throughout the
year 2015, allowing TCG to grow in sustainable manner.
Lastly, I would like to thank you the Board of
Directors, the executive team and all employees who
are the key to this success for their hard work and
commitment in fulfilling their duties and driving TCG
towards achieving the determined goals and visions.

Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon
Chairman
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
Annual Report 2015

11

The Audit Committee’s Report
The new members of the Audit Committee appointed by the Board of Directors on February 23, 2015 in
replacement of former members of the committee consisted of:
1. Mrs. Nongram
Wongwanich
Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Mr. Phon
Rugtrakul
Member of the Audit Committee
3. Miss Kannikar
Ekpaopun
Member of the Audit Committee
4. Mr. Wiroj
Sittijaroenrung
Secretary of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee had followed the charter of the Audit Committee, including overseeing the adequacy
of the internal control system, financial reporting, compliance with relevant regulations and policies, internal
auditing, risk management, compliance with business ethics, reporting on conflict of interest and compliance with
good governance policy.
Throughout the year 2015, the Audit Committee held eleven meetings with the management, high-ranking
executives of the organization and auditor from the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand. At each meeting,
the Audit Committee reported meeting solutions and proposed suggestions to the Board of Directors to ensure
proper matters are implemented.
The Audit Committee had carried out various operations under the specified scope of duties and responsibilities
for the Audit Committee which can be summarized as follows:
1. Financial Report
		 The Audit Committee prioritized matters concerning the adequacy of the internal control system, risk
management, reliability of financial report and disclosure of essential information to ensure that financial
statements revealed correct and complete information according to generally accepted accounting standard.
2. Internal Control
		 The Audit Committee directed the organization’s internal control system by auditing and evaluating the
system according to the State Audit Commission Regulations B.E. 2544 (2001), including auditing internal control
system handbook as well as operation handbook of other functions, ensuring suitability and effectiveness of
internal audit system to enable efficient human resource management as well as adequate risk management,
computer system management and data security system to ensure that the internal control system applied is
capable of preventing or minimizing potential risks. Furthermore, the Audit Committee also followed up on the
improvement or rectification progress relating to internal control, risk management and corporate governance.
3. Internal Audit
		 The Audit Committee made consideration and approval of audit plan, including considering the sufficiency
and suitability of personnel and independence of internal audit operation. Furthermore, the Audit Committee
also directed internal audit operation, considering audit results and suggestions proposed by the internal audit
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department, including advising the management to consider for system improvements or rectifications as deemed
appropriate while continuously monitoring the progress of improvements or rectifications. This includes information
system, credit guarantee procedure and procedure for following up NPGs.
4. Risk Management
		The Audit Committee held meetings with the management of Risk Management Committee to inform them
of risk assessment results, risk management performance, risk indicator, including providing advice that can be used in
improving the system for better efficiency
5. Legal Compliance
		 Regarding compliance with the laws, regulations, policies and practices implemented within or outside
of the organization, it can be found that the operations carried out by the Audit Committee were in line with
the specified laws, regulations, policies and practices. In addition, the Audit Committee also promoted good
governance principle within the organization by auditing conflict of interest and complying with good governance
policy, including formulating legal compliance policy to be used as guidance in directing the operations of TCG
to ensure compliance with relevant rules and regulations, and developing risk management system concerning
legal compliance that is efficient and effective and in line with the practices of other relevant organizations.
6. Relationship with the Management and Auditor
		 It is part of the Audit Committee’s policy to hold meeting at least once a year in order to exchange opinions
with the management from Director and General Manager Level to Head of Department/Office Level. In 2015, one
meeting was held with the management to discuss and exchange ideas concerning the business, potential risks,
internal control and corporate governance, including the improvement of TCG’s performance to achieve better
efficiency. Furthermore, regular meetings were held to discuss matters concerning audit practice, audit finding and
suggestions proposed by the auditor from the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand.
Upon considering the operations that had been carefully yet independently performed according to the roles
and responsibilities stipulated in the charter of the Audit Committee, including main operations performed by Thai
Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) and meetings held with relevant management, internal auditor and auditor
from the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand, the Audit Committee confirmed that Thai Credit Guarantee
Corporation (TCG) had performed its operations in efficient and effective manner based on good governance and
transparency.

(Mrs. Nongram Wongwanich)
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Organizational Structure
Board of
Director
Audit
Committee

Executive
Committee

Risk Management
Committee

President
Internal Audit
Department

Office of the Directors
and President
Human Resources
Department

Senior Executive
Vice President
Business Group

Senior Executive
Vice President
Administration Group

Senior Executive
Vice President
Support Group

Marketing
& Product
Development
Department

Public
Relations
Department

Credit
Guarantee
Analysis
Department

Corporate
Strategy
Department

Debt
Management
Department

Risk
Management
Department

Branch
Administration
Department

International
Affairs
Department

Credit
Guarantee
Operations
Department

Accounting
and Finance
Department

Information
Technology
Department

Investment
Department

Office
Administration
Department

Business
Process
Improvement
Department

Claims
Department

Legal and
Compliance
Department

Remark: Information as at December 31, 2015
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Manpower Structure
As at December 31, 2015, TCG has the number of permanent officers totaling 304 persons as per the following
details:
Supervisory
Group

Directors and
President

Administration
Group

Business Group

Supporting
Group

No.

Work Unit

Executive
Level Officer

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

Senior Executive Vice President
Office of the Directors and President
Human Resources Department
Internal Audit Department
Credit Guarantee Analysis Department
Credit Guarantee Operations Department
Corporate Strategy Department
Accounting and Finance Department
Office Administration Department
Business Process Improvement Department
Branch Administration Department
Marketing & Product Development Department
Public Relations Department
International Affairs Department
Risk Management Department
Information Technology Department
Investment Department
Claims Department
Debt Management Department
Legal and Compliance Department
Total

3
6
5
3
6
6
3
4
5
3
20
11
5
2
3
7
3
6
6
3
110

Operation
Total
Level Officer
4
4
4
19
18
3
9
14
1
57
13
6
2
4
7
2
10
16
1
194

3
10
9
7
25
24
6
13
19
4
77
24
11
4
7
14
5
16
22
4
304

Remark : Executive Level Officer means the position of Senior Executive Vice President – Manager and Operation Level Officer means
the position of Assistant Manager – Service Officer.

Employee and Officer Expenditure for 3 Retroactive Years
Expenditure
Perspective

Year 2015
Permanent Officer Temporary

Salary
148,427,975.76
Bonus
38,494,522.33
Welfare 40,555,032.71
Total
227,477,530.80

Year 2014
Permanent Officer Temporary

8,086,241.17 128,986,184.52
- 50,834,877.46
- 34,178,240.65
8,086,241.17 213,999,302.63

Unit : Baht
Year 2013
Permanent Officer Temporary

7,268,100.70
77,949,026.74 7,318,412.89
51,037,157.78
65,960,868.37
7,268,100.70 194,947,052.89 7,318,412.89
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
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The Board of Directors
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) emphasizes the roles of the Board of Directors in various aspects
as the Board of Directors plays a vital role in supervising and overseeing business administration, including
decision-making and policy and strategy planning in order to achieve the determined business goals and is
therefore considered to be crucial to that particular business.
Furthermore, the duties of directors as stipulated under section 21 of Small Industry Credit Guarantee
Corporation Act B.E. 2534 (1991) are as follow:
Under section 21, the Board of Directors shall have the power and duty to oversee and supervise general
matters relating to business operation and administration of the corporation and shall be authorized to perform
within the scope of power of the corporation. Such authorization shall include:
(1) To use the corporation’s money to pay for the expenses occurred during business operation and
		 administration in accordance with the objectives of the corporation, including remuneration of directors
		 and employees within the corporation.
(2) To ensure inspection of every request form submitted by small industry as application for credit guarantee
		 service provided by the corporation and accepting requests to be considered on a case by case basis as
		 deemed appropriate in terms of technical, financial and economic aspects as well as in line with the
		 government’s SME industry promotion policy without having to put any other aspects into account.
Apart from consisting of competent persons with qualifications that completely fulfilled the qualifications
stipulated under section 5 of Standard Qualifications of Directors and Officials of State Enterprise Act B.E. 2518 (1975)
included the amended sections, members of the Board of Directors of TCG must also possess the qualifications
stipulated under section 19 of Small Industry Credit Guarantee Act B.E. 2534 (1991) as follow:
Under section 19, directors must possess the qualifications specified in no. (1) and must not have any undesirable characteristics specified in no. (2), (3) and (4) as follow:
(1) A shareholder holding the shares of the corporation by no less than 100 shares or a representative of
		 a company limited or registered ordinary partnership holding the shares of the corporation by no less than
		 100 shares.
(2) A bankrupted person or used to be a bankrupted person.
(3) An incompetent person or quasi-incompetent person.
(4) Had been sentenced to imprisonment for offences
		 against property.
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Structure of TCG’s Board of Directors
Structure of TCG’s Board of Directors and Committees
Board of
Directors

Executive
Committee

Audit
Committee

Independent
Committee

Risk
Management
Committee

CG & CSR
Committee

Employee
Welfare
Committee

1. Board of Directors
1.1 TCG’s Board of Directors as at December 31, 2015 consisted of the following members:
		 1. Mr. Yarnsak
Manomaiphiboon
Chairman of the Board
		 2. Col. Prasert
Shusang
Director
		 3. Mrs. Nongram
Wongwanich
Director
		 4. Mr. Niwat
Kanjanaphoomin
Director
		 5. Miss Kannikar
Ekpaopun
Director
		 6. Mr. Aroon
Kamolkitpaisal
Director
		 7. Mr. Phon
Rugtrakul
Director
		 8. Prof. Supalak
Pinitpuvadol
Director
			
		 The following are the details of changes of the directors during the year:
No.

Name of Directors

1
2
3

Position Holding Term
Beginning

Ending

Mr. Vorapol Socatiyanurak

1 January 2015

13 February 2015

Mr. Vallobh Tejapaibul
Prof. Supalak Pinitpuvadol

1 January 2015
13 February 2015

Cause

Replacement of the director
whose term was due
30 September 2015
Resignation
Present

Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
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2. Executive Committee
2.1 Executive Committee as at December 31, 2015 consisted of the following members:
		 1. Col. Prasert
Shusang
Chairman of the Executive Committee
		 2. Mr. Niwat
Kanjanaphoomin
Committee Member
		 3. Prof. Supalak
Pinitpuvadol
Committee Member
		 4. President		
Committee Member
		 5. Vice President, Office of the Directors and President Secretary to the Committee
								
		 The Executive Committee has the scope of authority as follows:
		 1. Screen and propose to the Board of Directors to request for approval on updating guaranty criteria and
			 claim payment criteria.
		 2. Screen and propose to the Board of Directors to request for approval on changes in guarantee fee rate.
		 3. Screen and propose to the Board of Directors to request for approval on organizing TCG’s organizational
			 structure.
		 4. Screen and propose to the Board of Directors to request for approval on the establishment of TCG
			 branch office.
		 5. Approve guarantee of credit with financial limit of not over than Baht 15 million but not over than
			 Baht 30 million for normal project and propose to the Board of Directors for acknowledgement, with
			 the exception of the approval of guarantee for Risk Participation Project and Portfolio Guarantee
			 Scheme which the Board of Directors has authorized the Director and the President to give approval.
		 6. Approve any product or service procurements of TCG that are beyond the scope of authority of the
			 Director and the President in giving approval and which shall be in line with TCG’s packaging regulation,
			 and propose to the Board of Directors for acknowledgement.
		 7. Execute other tasks assigned by the Board of Directors.
3. Audit Committee
3.1 The Audit Committee as at December 31, 2015 consisted of the following members:
		 1. Mrs. Nongram
Wongwanich
Chairman of the Committee
		 2. Miss Kannikar
Ekpaopun
Committee Member
		 3. Mr. Phon
Rugtrakul
Committee Member
		 4. Vice President, Internal Audit Department
Secretary to the Committee
		 The Audit Committee has the scope of authority as follows:
		 1. Prepare the internal audit charter of the Audit Committee to be consistent with the scope of TCG’s
			 operating responsibilities and which shall be approved by TCG’s Board of Directors and audited at least
			 once a year to ensure suitability.
		 2. Verify the efficiency and effectiveness of internal control process, good corporate governance process
			 and risk management process.
		 3. Ensure that TCG has reliable and accurate financial reporting.
		 4. Audit TCG’s operations to ensure they are consistent with the laws, rules, regulations, work method,
			 resolution of the cabinet, the announcements or directives concerning TCG’s business operation.

20

Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
Annual Report 2015

		 5. Ensure that TCG has efficient internal audit system and consider the independence of Internal Audit Unit.
		 6. Consider related transactions or transactions with potential conflict of interest or corruptions which
			 may adversely affect the business operation of TCG.
		 7. Propose suggestions to the Board of Directors concerning the appointment, removal, promotion of
			 rank and position, and performance appraisal of the Head of Internal Audit Unit.
		 8. Coordinate with the auditor concerning the audit results and possibly advise for inspection or auditing
			 of any transactions that are deemed necessary, including proposing the auditor’s remuneration to the
			 Board of Directors.
		 9. Report the overall performance of the Audit Committee concerning internal audit to the Board of
			 Directors at least once per quarter within the period of sixty days starting from the ending date of each
			 quarter. All such reports, with the exception of the performance report in Q4, shall be included in the
			 Annual Performance Report and submitted to the Ministry of Commerce for acknowledgement within
			 the period of ninety days starting from the ending date of TCG’s accounting year.
		 10. Evaluate the performance of the Audit Committee concerning internal audit at least once per
			 accounting period, including reporting the evaluation result, problems and obstacles as well as im
			 provement plan to the Board of Directors.
		 11. Disclose the Annual Performance Report of the Audit Committee and remuneration of the auditor in
			 TCG’s Annual Report.
		 12. Perform other tasks as required by law or assigned by the Board of Directors.
4. Independent Committee
4.1 Independent Committee as at December 31, 2015 consisted of the following members:
		 1. Mrs. Nongram
Wongwanich
Chairman of the Committee
		 2. Miss Kannikar
Ekpaopun
Committee Member
		 3. Mr. Phon
Rugtrakul
Committee Member
		 4. Mr. Aroon
Kamolkitpaisal
Committee Member
		 5. Vice President, Internal Audit Department
Secretary to the Committee
		
		 Independent Committee has the scope of authority as follows:
		 1. Assign the Committee to hold the meeting at least once within the period of six months.
		 2. Assign the Committee to prepare a report to affirm their independence once they have been appointed
			 and on yearly basis.
		 3. Ensure that the benefits of governmental sector and other stakeholders within state enterprises are
			 protected and that such state enterprises have followed good practice guideline. Furthermore,
			 external independent committees must take part in the determination of remuneration for top
			 executives and monitor the performance of the management.
		 4. Regularly attend the meetings of State Enterprise Committee and Subcommittees.
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5. Risk Management Committee
5.1 Risk Management Committee as at December 31, 2015 consisted of the following members:
		 1. Mr. Niwat
Kanjanaphoomin
Chairman of the Committee
		 2. Dr. Ronnachit
Mahattanapreut
Committee Member
		 3. Miss Montira
Vareedee
Committee Member
		 4. President		
Committee Member
		 5. Vice President, Risk Management Department Secretary to the Committee
		 Risk Management Committee has the scope of authority as follows:
		 1. Formulate risk management policy to be proposed to the Board of Directors for consideration on the
			 overall risk management which must cover all types of risks.
		 2. Formulate risk management policy that is in line with corporate strategy and which allows for the
			 assessment, monitoring and maintaining of TCG’s risk quantity at appropriate level.
		 3. Review the appropriateness and adequacy of risk management policy and system as well as the
			 effectiveness of risk management system and its compliance with the formulated policy.
		 4. Execute other risk management-related tasks as assigned by the Board of Directors.
6. Corporate Governance & Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR)
6.1 Corporate Governance & Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as at December 31, 2015
		 consisted of the following members:
		 1. Miss Kannikar
Ekpaopun
Chairman of the Committee
		 2. Mr. Wacharamongkon Benjathanachat
Committee Member
		 3. Senior Executive Vice President, Business Group Committee Member
		 4. Vice President, Legal & Compliance Department Secretary to the Committee
		 Corporate Governance & Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR) has the scope of authority
		 as follows:
		 1. Propose policies concerning good corporate governance, corporate compliance and corporate social
			 responsibility to the Board of Directors.
		 2. Provide counsel to the Board of Directors concerning good corporate governance, corporate compliance
			 and corporate social responsibility.
		 3. Consider and review TCG’s guidelines and principles concerning good corporate governance, corporate
			 compliance and corporate social responsibility on a regular basis to ensure they are consistent with
			 international practice.
		 4. Encourage the Board of Directors, executives and employees to take part in good corporate governance,
			 corporate compliance and corporate social responsibility.
		 5. Distribute good corporate governance and corporate social responsibility policy among subcommittees
			 to support good corporate governance and corporate social responsibility operations.
		 6. Consider and appoint a team to perform the duties concerning good corporate governance and
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		 7.
			
		 8.
			

corporate compliance, and another team to perform the duties concerning corporate social responsibility
as deemed appropriate.
Monitor good corporate governance and corporate social responsibility operations to be reported to the
Board of Directors and prepare annual report on good corporate governance and corporate compliance.
Execute other tasks concerning good corporate governance, corporate compliance and corporate social
responsibility as assigned by the Board of Directors.

7. Employee Welfare Committee
7.1 Employee Welfare Committee as at December 31, 2015 consisted of the following members:
		 1. Mr. Aroon
Kamolkitpaisal		
Chairman of the Committee
		 2. Committee Member, Employer’s Representative
5 persons
		 3. Committee Member, Employee’s Representative
5 persons
		 Employee Welfare Committee has the scope of authority as follow:
		 1. Consider and give opinions concerning the improvement of TCG’s operation efficiency as well as
			 support and develop labor relations
		 2. Provide solutions for establishing harmony and resolving conflicts within the corporation.
		 3. Consider for improvement of work regulation to ensure the best interests of the employers, employees
			 and TCG.
		 4. Consult and discuss to resolve problems or complaints raised by the employees or labor unions as
			 well as complaints relating to disciplinary punishment.
		 5. Consult and discuss to consider for improvement on working conditions.
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Board of Directors’ Profiles

Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon
Chairman of the Board
Age 53
Current Position
Secretary-General, Association of Thai Securities
Companies
Education
Master of Business Administration in Finance and
Management
Bachelor of Engineering, Chulalongkorn University
Work Experiences
Director, Association of Thai Securities Companies
Director, Sahaviriya Steel Industries Public Company
Limited
Director, Principle Capital Public Company Limited
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Col. Prasert Shusang

Mrs. Nongram Wongwanich

Chairman of the Executive Committee
Age 60
Current Position
Director, L Solar 1 Company Limited
Education
Ph.D. in Operation Research,
Case Western Reserve University, USA
Master’s Degree (Operation Research),
Case Western Reserve University, USA
Bachelor of Engineering,
Chulachomklao Royal Military Academy
Work Experiences
Managing Director,
Loxley Pacific Company Limited
Managing Director, Loxley Teles Company Limited
Department Director,
Loxley Infra Company Limited

Director of the Board
Age 64
Current Position
Engaged in private business
Education
Master’s Degree, Sasin Graduate
Institute of Business Administration
Bachelor’s Degree, Faculty of Commerce
and Accountancy, Chulalongkorn University
Work Experiences
Executive Vice President,
The Stock Exchange of Thailand
Director, TSFC Securities Ltd.
Managing Director, The Thailand Securities
Depository Company Limited
Director, TRIS Corporation Public Company
Limited
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Board of Directors’ Profiles

Mr. Niwat Kanjanaphoomin

Mr. Phon Rugtrakul

Director of the Board
Age 54
Education
Master’s Degree in MBA,
Massey University, New Zealand
Bachelor’s Degree in Computer Engineering,
King Mongkut’s Institute of Technology
(Ladkrabang)
Work Experience
Vice President,
Srinanaporn Marketing Company Limited
Managing Director,
The Thai Bond Market Association
Chief Executive Officer,
National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.
Senior Director-General, Government Pension Fund
Vice President, Bank Thai Public Company Limited

Director of the Board
Age 55
Current Position
Advisor,
Somneuk Millstone (Songkhla) Company Limited
Education
Master’s Degree in MBA,
United States International University USA
Bachelor of Arts, Kasetsart University
Work Experience
Secretary to the President of the Senate
Region Manager,
EBSCO Information Services, Inc., USA
Country Manager,
EBSCO information Services, Inc., USA
Marketing Manager,
Shinnawatra Computer and Communication
Company Limited
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Miss Kannikar Ekpaopun

Mr. Aroon Kamolkitpaisal

Director of the Board
Age 63
Current Position
Retired Government Official, Fiscal Policy Office,
Ministry of Finance
Education
Master of Public Administration Program,
National Institute of Development
Administration
Bachelor of Education Program,
Bangsaen Educational College
Work Experience
Deputy Director-General, Fiscal Policy Office
Fiscal Policy Advisor, Fiscal Policy Office

Director of the Board
Age 61
Current Position
Senior Expert Public Prosecutor,
Office of the Attorney General
Education
Thai Barrister at Law
Bachelor of Laws, Thammasat University
Work Experience
Secretary to the Deputy Attorney General
(Mr. Thavorn Panitchapan)
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Board of Directors’ Profiles

Prof. Supalak Pinitpuvadol

Director of the Board
Age 58
Current Position
Lecturer, The Faculty of Law, Chulalongkorn University
Education
Ph.D. : Docteur En droit, Universite de Paris II
(Nouveau Regime) Paris, France
Master’s Degree : Finance and Taxes (Diplome
D’etudes Approfondies (Finances Publiques et
Fiscalite) Paris, France
Bachelor’s Degree : Bachelor of Laws,
Thammasat University
Work Experiences
President of Chulalongkorn University Faculty Senate
Director of University Council
Member of Fixed Assets Fund Management
Subcommittee, The Faculty of Law,
Chulalongkorn University
Member of the Subcommittee for consideration
of the appropriateness and impact of the
execution of laws relating to the collection of 		
property tax and estate tax, Office of Judicial Affairs,
Ministry of Justice
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Mr. Vallobh Tejapaibul
Director and Secretary
Age 60
Current Position
President,
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
(Until September 30, 2015)
Education
BA, (Business Admin.) Whittier College (USA)
Securities Analysis, The Stock Exchange of Thailand
International Banking Cert., Mitsubishi Bank, Japan
Pacific Rim Banker Program,
University of Washington
Work Experiences
Senior Executive Vice President (Supporting Group),
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation
Senior Executive Vice President, SME Bank
CFO Tejapaibul Company Limited
Deputy Managing Director, Chiangmai Orchid Hotel
Managing Director, Siam Shobai Co., Ltd.

Corporate Governance Policy of Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) has prepared Corporate Governance Policy as well as TCG Code of
Ethics, both of which are made available on TCG’s official website: www.tcg.or.th and TCG intranet system in order
to allow TCG employees of all level full information access with the aim to ensure that all employees, stakeholders
and shareholders are completely informed of the objectives set up by the Board of Directors regarding compliance
with key aspects of good corporate governance principle.
Measures for Handling Conflict of Interest
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) requires all directors of TCG to always report their securities holding
and conflict of interests each time they enter office as well as reporting related changes and any related conflict
of interest transactions to the Board of Directors. In addition, all securities holding and conflict of interest reports
shall be audited by Internal Audit Department of TCG according to the Annual Audit Plan.
Evaluation of the Board of Directors
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) has arranged for self-evaluation process to be conducted on the
Board of Directors in order to evaluate Board of Directors’ performance based on corporate governance practice
and state enterprise performance appraisal of State Enterprise Policy Office (SEPO) in terms of corporate management
relating to the roles of State Enterprise Committee. The evaluation is to be held once a year and is carried out
in two ways including self-evaluation of each individual and self-evaluation of the Board of Directors as a whole.
The first covers six main topics which include 1) excellence in knowledge and skills, 2) independence, 3) readiness
for duty, 4) focus in duties and responsibility, 5) performance in carrying out the tasks of the Board of Directors
and 6) having long-term vision on value creation. The second also covers six main topics including 1) structure
and qualifications of the Board of Directors, 2) roles, duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors, 3) practices
of the Board of Directors, 4) communication among the Board of Directors, 5) relationship among the Board
of Directors and with the management and 6) preparation and process of the Board of Directors’ Meeting and
Subcommittee Meeting.
The Administration Department shall be responsible for proposing the evaluation forms to the Board of
Directors for revision to ensure correctness, completeness and consistency with the requirements set up by the
regulatory bodies. Once the evaluation is completed, the Administration Department shall then conclude the
results and report it to the Board of Directors, followed by carrying out any improvements required for better
efficiency.
Regarding the evaluation scores of Board of Directors’ performance in 2015, the average self-evaluation scores
in the case of individual performance and the performance of the Board of Directors as a whole were 94.93% and
92.60%, respectively, both of which are considered to be at excellent level.
The evaluation results were concluded and reported to the Board of Directors by the Administration
Department at TCG Board of Directors’ Meeting in order to seek opinions as well as to be used as a framework
in reviewing performance, problems and obstacles occurred in order to analyze the performance of the Board of
Directors whereas suggestions were used to further improve and develop the Board of Directors’ operation.
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
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Board of Directors Meeting Attendance
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) has yearly defined the Board of Directors’ Meeting in advance.
In 2015, the Chairman of the Board of TCG defined the usual meetings on every Monday of the fourth week
of the month for TCG’s Board of Directors and every Monday on the second week of the month for Executive
Board. However, the special session of the meeting might be held as deemed appropriate.
In 2015, a total of 15 meetings were held by TCG’s Board of Directors, 11 meetings were held by the Executive
Committee, 11 meetings were held by the Audit Committee, 2 meetings were held by Independent Committee,
10 meetings were held by Risk Management Committee, 7 meetings were held by Corporate Governance and
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR), 8 meetings were held by Employee Welfare Committee,
5 meetings were held by President Nomination Committee and 2 meetings were held by Top Management
Remuneration Subcommittee. The details are as follows:
Committee
Name List of Directors

Board of Executive Audit Independent
Risk
CG&CSR Employee President
Top
Directors Committee Committee Committee Management Committee Welfare Nomination Management
Committee
Committee Committee Remuneration
Subcommittee

Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon 15/15

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Col. Prasert Shusang

15/15 11/11

-

-

-

-

-

5/5

-

Mr. Niwat Kanjanaphoomin

15/15 11/11

-

-

10/10

-

-

-

-

Prof. Supalak Pinitpuvadol

12/13 11/11

-

-

-

-

-

5/5

-

Mrs. Nongram Wongwanich

15/15

-

11/11

2/2

-

-

-

5/5

2/2

Miss Kannikar Ekpaopun

14/15

-

10/11

2/2

-

7/7

-

-

-

Mr. Phon Rugtrakul

14/15

-

11/11

2/2

-

6/6

-

-

2/2

Mr. Aroon Kamolkitpaisal

15/15

-

-

2/2

-

-

8/8

5/5

-

Mr. Vallobh Tejapaibul

10/12

7/8

-

-

6/8

-

-

-

-

0/2

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Mr. Vorapol Socatiyanurak
Remark :
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The number of meeting attendance and the number of meetings held were defined in ratios such as 2/3, meaning that a
director attended 2 meetings out of a total of 3 meetings held.
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Details of the Directors’ Remuneration
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) has paid remuneration for the directors according to the standard rate
specified by the State Enterprise Policy Office (SEPO) in accordance with the Cabinet’s resolution. TCG has carried
out payment of monthly remunerations and meeting allowances to each member of the Board of Directors and
Committees/Subcommittees/Working Groups according to the following rates and criteria:
1. Monthly remuneration must not exceed 10,000 Baht per month per person. However, the Chairman of the
		 Board shall be paid twice the amount of the director’s monthly remuneration.
2. Meeting allowance in the case of appointed person is as per the following details: 		
		 2.1 TCG’s director shall receive meeting allowance of not more than 10,000 Baht per time per person and
				 not more than once a month.
		 2.2 TCG’s director who is appointed as a member of other committees/subcommittees/working groups shall
				 receive meeting allowance for each individual meeting of not more than 10,000 Baht per time per person
				 and shall be paid only to those directors who attended such meeting. However, each director shall attend
				 meetings of no more than 2 committees in total and must attend by no more than once per committee.
		 2.3 External party shall receive meeting allowance of not more than 3,000 Baht per time per person and
				 shall be only paid upon meeting attendance.
Nevertheless, the Chairman of the Board and Vice Chairman of the Board shall receive meeting allowance at the
rates of 25% and 12.5%, respectively, which are higher comparing to the rate of meeting allowance for directors.
In 2015, TCG paid remunerations to the directors according to the Letter of State Enterprise Policy Office
(SEPO) No. Gor.Kor. 0803.2/Wor.85 dated on 6 August 2013 re: Meeting Allowance and Remuneration Rates for
Private Enterprise Committees totaling Baht 3,810,928.58 of which can be divided into monthly remuneration
totaling Baht 1,168,928.58 and meeting allowance by committees totaling Baht 2,642,000 as per the following
details:
The Board/Committee
TCG’s Board of Directors
Executive Committee
Audit Committee
Independent Committee
Risk Management Committee
Employee Welfare Committee
Corporate Governance & Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR)
President Nomination Committee
Top Management Remuneration Subcommittee
Remark :

Remuneration for Directors (Baht)
Monthly Remuneration

Meeting Allowance

1,168,928.58
-

1,030,000.00
427,500.00
450,000.00
85,000.00
223,000.00
100,000.00

-

168,500.00

-

142,500.00
15,500.00

The meeting allowances for the Board/Committee have also included meeting allowances for the directors/committees who
are external party and the Secretary of the Audit Committee.
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
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Meanwhile, meeting allowances by directors’ name list (applicable to only those who are members of
TCG’s Board of Directors) are as per the following details:
The Board of Directors

Remuneration of the Director (Baht)
Monthly Remuneration

Meeting Allowance

Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon

240,000.00

150,000.00

Mr. Aroon Kamolkitpaisal

118,571.43

280,000.00

Miss Kannikar Ekpaopun

120,000.00

337,500.00

Col. Prasert Shusang

120,000.00

295,000.00

Mrs. Nongram Wongwanich

120,000.00

337,500.00

Mr. Vorapol Socatiyanurak

14,642.86

-

Mr. Niwat Kanjanaphoomin

120,000.00

345,000.00

Mr. Phon Rugtrakul

120,000.00

320,000.00

Prof. Supalak Pinitpuvadol

105,714.29

230,000.00

90,000.00

200,000.00

Mr. Vallobh Tejapaibul
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TCG’s Management Team

Mr. Niwat Kanjanaphoomin			
Acting President
Age 54		
Education
Master’s Degree in MBA, Massey University, New Zealand 		
Bachelor’s Degree in Computer Engineering,
King Mongkut’s Institute of Technology (Ladkrabang)
Work Experiences
Deputy Managing Director, Srinanaporn Marketing Co., Ltd.
Managing Director, The Thai Bond Market Association
Chief Executive Officer, National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.
Senior Director-General, Government Pension Fund
Vice President, Bank Thai Public Company Limited
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Mr. Wichet Warakul			

Senior Executive Vice President (Business Group)
Age 51 		
Education
Master’s Degree in MBA (Finance), University of Akron, Ohio, USA.		
Bachelor’s Degree in Industrial Engineering, Prince of Songkhla University
Years of service at TCG : 4 years and 6 months
Work Experiences
Senior Executive Vice President (Business Group),
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (13 June 2011 – Present)
Executive Director, Siam Bansu Leasing (2002) Co., Ltd. (2010 – 2011)
Deputy Managing Director,
The Siam Industrial Credit Public Company Limited (1994 – 2009)
Manager, Morgan Grenfell (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (2535 – 2537)
Assistant Manager, Finance One Public Company Limited (1991 – 1992)
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Mrs. Niparat Pisitpitayasaree			

Senior Executive Vice President (Administration Group)
Age 57 		
Education
Master’s Degree in Business Administration,
University of Thai Chamber of Commerce			
Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting, Krirk University
Years of service at TCG : 23 years and 10 months
Work Experiences
Senior Executive Vice President (Administration Group),
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation TCG) (1 December 2012 – Present)
Acting Vice President, Accounting and Finance Department (1 December 2012 - 18 April 2013)
Chief President, Accounting and Finance Department, (23 January 1998 - 30 November 2012)
Acting Vice President, Planning and Corporate Strategy Department
(31 October 2008 – 21 April 2010)
Acting Vice President, Human Resource and Corporate Department
(13 January 2010 – 31 May 2010)
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Mr. Chaturit Chantarakarn			

Senior Executive Vice President (Supporting Group)
Age 47 		
Education
Master’s Degree in MBA (Strategic Management), Cleveland State University, Ohio, USA
Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration, Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy
Chulalongkorn University
Years of service at TCG : 1 year and 11 months
Work Experiences
Senior Executive Vice President (Supporting Group) (2 July 2014 – Present)
Vice President, Unsecured Lending Products & Payments,
Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited (May 2008 – June 2014)
Deputy Vice President,
Kasikornbank Public Company Limited (February 2006 – April 2008)
Top Executive, Easy Buy Public Company Limited (March 1999 – October 2005)
Business Development, BPC Group Company Limited (October 1993 – August 1996)
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Mr. Sist Wongsariya

Vice President,
Office of the Directors and President

Miss Thanaporn Prakaikiet		

Senior Specialist,
Office of the Directors and President

Mr. Prasert Chaichanudomsuk

Senior Vice President,
Credit Guarantee Analysis Department

Mr. Werawat Wajchalapong

Senior Vice President,
Debt Management Department

Miss Yanee Ruamragsa

		

Senior Vice President,
Credit Guarantee Operations Department
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Mr. Chanchai Lertmahandpueti		

Senior Vice President,
Information Technology Department

Mr. Anusorn Emkamol

Vice President,
Human Resources Department

Mrs. Israporn Arunprasert

Vice President,
Office Administration Department

Mr. Siripong Pansanit

Vice President,
International Affairs Department

Mr. Wiroj Sittijaroenrung		

Vice President,
Internal Audit Department
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Mrs. Phakamas Sujjapongse

Vice President,
Accounting and Finance Department

Mr. Khomsun Wattanawanaphong

Vice President,
Branch Administration Department

Miss Pranee Wongamnuaykul

Vice President,
Risk Management Department

Mrs. Kanoknon Wongmonta

Vice President,
Legal and Compliance Department

Mr. Kriengkrai Chaisiriwongsuk

Vice President,
Marketing & Product Development
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Mrs. Pongtip Thesaphu

Vice President,
Public Relations Department

Mr. Pittaya Pariwattanasak

Vice President,
Claims Department

Mrs. Dusida Tapvong

Vice President,
Corporate Strategy Department

Mr. Chalermchai Piboonsiri

Senior Specialist
(Supporting to Claims Department)
		
Claims Department

Mr. Pongpit Pinsai

Acting Vice President,
Investment Department

Mrs. Jiraporn Thongsri
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Acting Vice President,
Business Process Improvement Department
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Changes in TCG’s Management Team in 2015
Mr. Vallobh Tejapaibul resigned from President, effective from 1 October 2015.
Mr. Niwat Kanjanaphoomin, a director of TCG, has been appointed as Acting President from 1 October –
31 December 2015.
Remuneration of Top Management
The first determination on the remuneration of TCG’s President shall follow the nomination procedure. The
Board of Directors shall appoint Top Management Remuneration Subcommittee to consider the appropriateness of
the determination on the remuneration rate. Regarding the annual increase of salary, the Board of Directors shall
consider and approve relevant programs and indicators including performance appraisal criteria in order to make
consideration for the annual increase of remuneration based on the level of achievement of indicators and the
overall turnover of TCG. The remuneration of TCG’s Vice President and the annual increase of such remuneration,
on the other hand, shall be determined under the discretion of the Director and President based on the knowledge,
competence and performance of such individual mainly in meeting organizational indicators, programs and targets.
The remuneration of top management during the past three years was totaling 43,131,404.81 Baht whereas the
total amount of welfare was equaled to 524,206.74 Baht.
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Operating Results
Industrial Situation and Economic
Industrial Situation and Economic Outlooks
Since the year 2014, the Bank of Thailand (BOT) has been reviewing the country’s economic growth rate
several times and before it finally decided to cut the estimated GDP from 3.0% down to 2.7% in December 2015.
This encouraged the government to promote investment activities within the country in order to stimulate faster
economic recovery, including promoting investment in infrastructures, accelerating governmental expenditures
through various programs, implementing measures that help to stimulate foreign investments as well as
employment and economy at local level and measures that help to stimulate domestic consumption and
support the SMEs. The implementation of such measures has allowed the country’s GDP in Q1 and Q2 of 2015 to
expand by 3.0% and 2.8%, respectively. Nevertheless, negative factors resulting from slow growth in the exports
sector still remain due to slight improvement in both global and domestic economy.
At the same time, the government has also determined financial measures to stimulate the overall economy,
including measures to assist low-income farmers, tax reduction or tax exemption measures, measures to provide
financial aid through village fund, nano finance measures and measures to promote policy loan schemes to
assist small and medium enterprises in accessing more financial sources which also include credit guarantee service
provided by Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG). Upon comparing credit growth based on the size of
commercial bank, it can be found that the overall credit sector has expanded significantly, particularly credits for
the SMEs of which extensive growth can be clearly seen following the improvement overall economic situation
					 and the implementation of measures which help
					 stimulate the SMEs industry by focusing more on
					 assisting small enterprises. As a result, SMEs credit
					 outstanding for small enterprises at the end of Q2
					 of 2015 rose to Baht 3.46 trillion from Baht 3.28
					 trillion in Q4 of 2014, or an increase by 6%.
					 Meanwhile, SMEs credit outstanding for medium
					 and large enterprises remained relatively stable
					 comparing to the same period. However, the
					 increase in the amount of SMEs credits for small
					 enterprises will likely lead to higher risk of default
					 since the debtors involved are considered to be
					 high-risk group. As at Q2 of 2015, the NPL of SMEs
					 credit outstanding has increased to Baht 1.34
					 trillion from Baht 1.14 trillion in Q4 of 2014, or an
					 increase by 18%.
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Credits Outstanding of Commercial Banks in the System
(Billion)
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Source : Computed from the database of the Bank of Thailand (BOT). The above credit amount, NPL and the number of clients
		 of commercial banks are categorized based on the business size of the Bank of Thailand (as at 30 June 2015)

Apart from the above measures, there are also other measures that have been implemented by the
government to further promote economic growth, especially measure concerning SMEs development in hope
to drive the country’s economy which has become part of the national agenda. Such measure shall involve
integrating, supporting, promoting and uplifting SMEs competencies, all of which requires the collaboration
between public and private organizations and relevant agencies in order to create positive environment for SMEs
industry and further allow sustainable growth in the future.
Hence, continuous growth in the overall SMEs industry can likely be expected which is in line with the current
economic situation and measures implemented by the public sector as well as relevant agencies. The amount of
SMEs credit starting from the end of 2015 is expected to rise by an average of 7%, or around Baht 300,000 million
in terms of additional SMEs credit outstanding.
GDP Growth Rate and Additional SMEs Credit Outstanding
(Million)

(Percent)
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Source : Marketing & Product Development Department, Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
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Credit Guarantee Performance
1. Credit Guarantee Performance
Million Baht
120,000
102,802
100,000
82,752

87,080
79,249

80,000
61,051
60,000

52,446
42,585

40,000
24,357

21,558
20,000

13,346

2008

25,250

17,641

5,763

3,299 1,366
0

28,029

2009
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2012

Amount (Million Baht)

2013

2014
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Year

Number of Projects (SMEs)

2. Guarantee Outstanding at the End of Year
Million Baht
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2012

2013

2014

Number of Projects (SMEs)

2015

Year

3. Guarantee Approval Classified by Region 2015
Total
Bangkok Metropolitan Region*
Central Region
Eastern Region
Northern Region
Northeastern Region
Southern Region

11.44%

250,000

14.06%
43.41%

212,507

500,000

14.41%

200,000

494,288.09

400,000

8.13% 8.55%

150,000

600,000

300,000

100,000

38,890

69,115

50,000

21,842

0

16,750

28,539

37,371

214,531.72

200,000
100,000

42,268.61 40,189.72

0

Number of Projects (SMEs)

71,237.53 69,504.22 56,556.29

Amount (Million Baht)

* Bangkok Metropolitan Region consists of Bangkok, Samut Prakarn, Nonthaburi, Samut Sakhon and Nakhon Pathom.

4. Guarantee Approval Classified by Business Cluster for 2015
Total

2.14% 1.65% 0.64% 0.98% 0.69%

200,000

Service
Goods Production and Other Businesses

600,000

Food and Beverage

16.83%

6.85%
4.00%
6.59%

12.19%

500,000

10.04%

494,288.09

212,507

250,000

2.17%
2.40%
2.64%
2.72%
3.91%
3.39%

Agriculture
Steel, Steel Product and Machinery
Motor Vehicle
Consumer Goods

10.44% 9.73%

Chemical and Medical Supplies
400,000

Textile and Apparel
Electric Appliance and Electronics
Wood and Wooden Products

150,000

Paper Pulp and Printed Matter
300,000

Plastic and Plastic Products
Petrochemical and Energy
Gemstone and Jewelry

100,000
200,000

Other Mineral Products
Shoes and Leather

0

Number of Projects (SMEs)

Ceramic, Glass and Sheet Glass

100,000

0

83,203.34
60,276.69
49,644.54
48,092.08
51,577.69
32,585.71
19,748.55
33,858.13
16,730.57
19,305.75
13,451.71
13,039.58
11,881.52
10,718.54
10,576.93
8,168.61
3,164.23
4,854.28
3,409.64

50,000

40,856
29,305
23,415
21,462
15,981
13,183
13,073
11,844
10,997
6,449
5,120
4,740
3,273
3,067
2,916
2,282
1,702
1,552
1,290

Rubber and Rubber Products

Amount (Million Baht)

Source : Information from New Credit Guarantee System (Magic System: RPT61030-2, RPT41020, RPT62010) as at 11 January 2016.
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TCG’s Major Performance from 2009 – 2015
4,000,000

900,000

3,436,774

800,000

771,532

700,000

639,291

600,000
500,000

397,102

400,000

1,153,080

187,534

200,000

107,925
100,000 406,615
65,572
2009

745,680

3,000,000
2,500,000

494,288

2,299,052

1,724,519

268,950

300,000

0

2,759,319

529,668

3,500,000

391,486

2,000,000
1,500,000

330,436
1,000,000

243,355

500,000

160,604

108,158
1010

Approved Credit Guarantee (Million Baht)

2011

2012

2013

Credit in the Economic System (Million Baht)

2014

2015

0

Former Outsourcing in the Economic System (Person)

Source : Corporate Strategy Department, Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)

Supporting Governmental Policies
In 2015, (1 January 2015 – 31 December 2015), TCG developed credit guarantee schemes and relevant measures as per the following details:
1. SMEs Speedy Loan Guarantee Scheme 2015 for Siam Commercial Bank PLC, totaling the credit
		 amount of Baht 5,000 million
		 Already signed MOU with Siam Commercial Bank on 5 January 2015 and began accepting service requests.
2. Portfolio Guarantee Scheme 2015 for CIMB Thai Bank PCL, totaling the credit amount of Baht 2,000
		 million
		 Signed MOU with CIMB Bank PLC on 25 March 2015 and began accepting service requests.
		 As at 31 December 2015, a total of 13 credit guarantees were approved, totaling the amount of credit
			 guarantee of Baht 130 million.
3. Policy Loan Guarantee Scheme for SME Bank , totaling the credit amount of Baht 15,000 million
		 On 16 June 2015, the Cabinet gave approval to TCG to initiate the project. TCG signed MOU with SME
			 Bank on 20 July 2015 and began accepting service requests.
		 As at 31 December 2015, a total of 1,142 credit guarantees were approved, totaling the amount of
			 credit guarantee of Baht 3,831.37 million.
4. Portfolio Guarantee Scheme Phase 5 (Revised Edition 70 : 30), totaling the credit amount of Baht
		 80,000 million
		 On 14 July 2015, the Cabinet gave approval to TCG to initiate the project (in replacement of Portfolio
			 Guarantee Scheme Phase 5, totaling the amount of Baht 240,000 million). TCG signed MOU with a total
			 of 10 banks. Later, the Cabinet revised and amended the criteria and therefore such scheme has been
			 revoked.
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5. Portfolio Guarantee Scheme Phase 5 (Revised), totaling the credit amount of Baht 100,000 million,
		 according to the resolution of the Cabinet dated on 8 September 2015.
		 On 14 July 2015, the Cabinet gave approval to TCG to initiate the project (in replacement of Portfolio
			 Guarantee Scheme Phase 5 (Revised Edition 70:30) totaling the amount of Baht 80,000 million). TCG
			 signed MOU with a total of 19 banks in September 2015 and began accepting service requests.
		 As at 31 December 2015, a total of 9,266 credit guarantees were approved, totaling the amount of
			 credit guarantee of Baht 41,999.61 million.
6. Portfolio Guarantee Scheme per Financial Institution Phase 4, totaling the credit amount of Baht
		 10,000 million.
		 A project carried out by TCG to handle credit guarantee applications submitted SMEs clients from
			 various banks while waiting for approval from the government. The extension of credit amount and
			 duration of application acceptance under PGS Phase 5 Project from the previous deadline dated on
			 31 December 2015 are currently under consideration.
		 In July 2015, the project was approved by the resolution of the Board of Directors, allowing TCG to sign
			 MOU with a total of 7 banks in September and October and began accepting service requests.
		 As at 31 December 2015, a total of 15 credit guarantees were approved, totaling the amount of credit
			 guarantee of Baht 30.6 million.
7. Portfolio Guarantee Scheme for Handling the Credit Guarantees under PGS that is Coming to Due
		 from the year 2016 onwards (PGS Renew)
		 A project initiated by TCG to handle credit guarantees of SMEs that are coming to due from the year
			 2016 onwards.
		 In November and December 2015, the project was approved by the resolutions of the Board of
			 Directors. TCG is currently under establishing MOU with 3 financial institutions and is expected to be
			 signed in January 2016.
8. Portfolio Guarantee Scheme for Micro Entrepreneurs Phase 2, totaling the credit amount of Baht
		 13,500 million.
		 In November 2015, the project was approved by the resolution of the Board of Directors. On 20
			 November 2015, a letter was submitted to the Ministry of Finance to request financial supports for the
			 PGS for Micro Entrepreneurs Phase 2, totaling the credit amount of Baht 13,500 million. The request
			 is currently under the consideration of the Cabinet.
9. Portfolio Guarantee Scheme for Innovation and Technology SMEs, totaling the credit amount of
		 Baht 2,000 million.
		 The project was approved by the resolution of the Board of Directors in December 2015. On 22 January
			 2015, a letter was submitted to the Ministry of Finance.
Measures to Assist the SMEs
1. Measure for raising additional first-year guarantee fees of which the government must pay on behalf of SMEs
		 under PGS Phase 5, totaling the amount of Baht 20,000 million.
		 On 16 June 2015 and 14 July 2015, the above measure was approved by the resolution of the Cabinet.
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Assisting and Developing SME Entrepreneurs
As part of its core missions, Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) provides support to Small and Medium
Enterprises (SMEs) through guarantee service for the SMEs that have potentials but lack collateral security in order
to enable them to acquire the required amount of loans from financial institutions and at the same time raising
confidence among financial institutions in making credit expansion.
Based on the past operating results up until December 31, 2015, TCG provided credit guarantees to 212,507
SMEs with accumulated credit guarantees value of Baht 494,288.09 million, allowing SMEs to acquire loans from
financial institutions totaling the amount of Baht 770,000 million, or 1.5 times of the accumulated credit guarantee
amount, and opening doors to the employment more 3,400,000 workers. Such loans were distributed among
various regions nationwide as follows: Bangkok and Municipality 43.41%, northern region 14.41%, northeastern
region 14.06%, central region 8.55%, eastern region 8.13% and southern region 11.44%. Evidently, credit guarantee
service provided by TCG is one of the crucial factors in driving the country’s economy toward strength and
sustainability.
Employment more

3,400,000
workers

Acquire loans from
financial institutions
totaling the amount
of Baht

770,000
million

Bangkok and
Municipality

Eastern region

Northern region

8.13%

14.41%

43.41%

Northeastern
region

Central region

8.55%

14.06%

Loans were
distributed among
various regions
nationwide
as follows

Southern region

11.44%

Apart from the prescribed core missions, TCG also focuses on building understanding among SME
entrepreneurs and preparing them to ensure that they are aware of and understand the roles and duties
of TCG including its products and services. Hence, TCG mainly aims at meeting the needs of under-served
entrepreneurs and entrepreneurs that require larger investment capital by enabling easier access to financial
sources through the following activities:
1. “Access to Financial Sources Activity” was organized to invite local financial institutions to join the
event to help give credit advice while the National Credit Bureau was also invited to assist those who wished to
check their credit information. This is to ensure the most comprehensive service for applicants to allow highest
convenience. In addition, discussion sessions were held to educate SMEs from every region nationwide. In 2015,
the activity was held 11 times with a total number of 3,261 participants of which 935 participants consulted with
50

Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
Annual Report 2015

experts and 617 participants applied for loans, totaling the amount of Baht 2,032.54 million. Once advice and
recommendations had been given, TCG then helped make arrangement and submit the applications to financial
institutions. A total of 448 entrepreneurs received the required loans, totaling the credit amount of Baht 273
million. Of this number, a total of 84 SME entrepreneurs received loans from TCG, totaling the amount of credit
guarantee of Baht 102 million whereas the remaining 169 SME entrepreneurs were still under preparation for bank
loan application which was to be further followed up by TCG.
2. “Credit Guarantee Clinic” is an activity organized to provide guidance and advice on how to be prepared
for credit guarantee application, including conducting initial inspection, or pre-screening, based on general criteria
which financial institutions often used in making consideration before approving loans to applicants. In 2015, the
activity was held 4 times with a total number of 3,063 participants of which 2,068 participants consulted with
experts and 1,798 participants applied for loans, totaling the amount of Baht 4,943 million. Once advice and
recommendations had been given, TCG then helped make arrangement and submit the applications to financial
institutions. A total of 295 entrepreneurs received the required loans, totaling the credit amount of Baht 731.48
million. Of this number, a total of 259 SME entrepreneurs received loans from TCG, totaling the amount of credit
guarantee of Baht 583.344 million whereas the remaining 1,500 SME entrepreneurs were still under preparation for
bank loan application which was to be further followed up by TCG.
In addition, TCG has been introducing “Online Credit Guarantee Clinic” since Q2 of 2015 as an alternative
channel of communication and access for SME entrepreneurs in reaching TCG consultation service. Apart from
joining the event, entrepreneurs can directly contact TCG branch offices for consultation service. From July –
December 2015, a total number of 795 SME entrepreneurs used direct consultation service provided by local TCG
branch offices nationwide. If the entrepreneur fulfilled the specified requirements, the responsible local branch
offices will then make arrangement and forward the application to financial institution.
3. “SMEs Development in Collaboration with University Business Incubator (UBI)” is an activity which
aims to create opportunities and assist OTOP and Community Enterprise in accessing financial sources, including
supporting small enterprises that are unable to access the required financial sources as well as startups. In
addition, the activity was organized to provide guidance and advice on the proper way to manage a business
and financial matters to enable wider access to financial sources. In 2015, the activity was held 23 times with a
total of 1,451 participants of which 786 participants consulted with experts and 528 participants applied for loans,
totaling the amount of Baht 746.45 million. Once advice and recommendations had been given, TCG then helped
make arrangement and submit the applications to financial institutions. A total of 66 entrepreneurs received the
required loans, totaling the credit amount of Baht 22.74 million. Of this number, 59 SME entrepreneurs received
loans from TCG, totaling the amount of credit guarantee of Baht 15.09 million.
4. “TCG Orientation SMEs” is an activity organized to establish good relationship between TCG and the
clients which TCG provide credit guarantee, including inspecting and monitoring business trend in hope to
continuously achieve customer satisfaction in terms of credit guarantee service provided TCG. In 2015, a total
number of 15,004 clients joined the inspection visit. Of this number, a total of 1,874 entrepreneurs required
additional loans, totaling the amount of Baht 8,608 million whereas the other 1,721 entrepreneurs needed credit
guarantee from TCG, totaling the amount of Baht 6,398 million.
5. “TCG Orientation Bank” is an activity held to organize conferences and small-group seminar sessions
among local financial institutions with the aim to educate them regarding the criteria and practice concerning
credit guarantee application, including coordination and follow up process concerning the submission of credit
guarantee application and continuously establishing good relationship. A total of 4 regional seminar sessions took
place. In 2015, the activity was held 2,525 times of which 148 sessions were small-group seminar and the remaining
2,377 sessions were meetings and conferences held with financial institutions with a total number of 7,129
participants attended.
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
51
Annual Report 2015

Resource Management
Information Technology (IT) System Management
TCG had defined its operational practice guideline that is in line with and supports the strategic plan of the
organization in its IT Master Plan. In 2015, the organization had developed IT System that is capable of meeting
the needs in five following aspects:
1. Core Business Development for Supporting Products and Services
		 TCG had improved its existing credit guarantee system to be able to support new products, including
			 uplifting system efficiency in handling larger number of transactions. Meanwhile, core guarantee system
			 (CGS) is expected to be developed in 2015 and 2016.
		 • TCG further developed its credit guarantee online application submission system to enable auto
			 approval process. This does not only allow system improvement but also provide alternative channel
			 in using service and enhance the efficiency of financial institutions in handling credit guarantee
			 applications of SME clients, allowing the credit guarantees provided to meet the specified targets.
2. Integrated Decision Support System Development (DSS)
		 TCG planned to develop its accounting and financial information system in 2015 and 2016 by
			 incorporating Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) as part of the system to ensure that the management
			 can make financial and investment planning in the most efficient manner. Moreover, IT systems for
			 internal audit and internal control had also been developed to support internal audit operations.
		 TCG had improved and developed IT systems for issuing reports to ensure higher efficiency in terms of
			 measurement and operating results analysis. This included data warehouse, MIS, ESS, B-Request and
			 audit management system. The improvement and development of such systems had been com
			 pleted and commenced operation in 2015.
		 TCG had developed and improved its Call Center, CRM and Branch Activity (BA) related systems for
			 storage and providing information to clients, banks and interested persons.
3. Development of Standardized and Secure IT System
		 • TCG had constructed a data center which meets safety standard requirement and provided tools that
			 will enable efficient Centralize Data Backup System which is expected to be in operation in 2015-2016
			 for handling important information.
		 • TCG had provided co-location as part of Alternate Site Operation Project 2015-2016 in order to support
			 its Business Continuity Plan.
		 • TCG had reviewed its IT Security Policy to ensure it is in line with the laws, regulations and orders in
			 order to uplift the safety and security level of TCG IT system, information and knowledge.
4.
		
		
		

TCG IT System Management for Optimal Efficiency
TCG had adopted IT service standard in order to enhance its services. At the same time, service guidelines
and indicators had been reviewed to ensure that TCG IT service is carried out in accurate, correct and secure
manner and available at all times.

5.
		
		
		
		

IT Support for Sustainable Learning
TCG continuously supported and promoted IT skills development and learning among its employees,
including the development information technology for knowledge building among employees and the
management (CEO/CIO/CFO) in the aspects of IT management, IT system application and other relevant
aspects.

In 2016-2018, TCG has set the budget for the Project Development of Core Business and Information Systems
amount Baht 38.38 million.
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Human Resource Management
In 2015, TCG continued to focus on its two main personnel development plans which included TCG Career
Management Plan and Employee Engagement Plan. The first plan mainly emphasizes on uplifting personnel
capacity and readiness in terms of performance efficiency in order to support corporate efficiency enhancement
strategy while the second plan mainly aims to strengthen personnel bonds. Nevertheless, the ultimate goal of
such plans is to enhance the efficiency, stability and growth of both the organization and personnel in continuous
and sustainable manner which will in turn help to attain the determined operational targets. In 2015, both plans
achieved great success as per the following details:
1. Career Management Plan has adopted career management principle which involves the determination
of Career Path, organizing Training Roadmap, conducting Succession Planning and incorporating Competency
Development to ensure that the formulated development plan and management approach are in line with each
other. The determined Career Path has included the following personnel development elements:
		 1.1 Competency Assessment Analysis, which affects the indicator in terms of the level of success of the
			 development and elimination of Competency Gap, mainly focuses on personnel development
			 through the determination of Competency Gap by comparing between Actual Competency with
			 Expected Competency, followed by formulating development and competency enhancement plan
			 in the areas which the personnel are still lacking of and uplifting higher performance efficiency.
		 1.2 Individual Development Plan, which affects the indicator in terms of the level of success of
			 Competency Gap Development (enabling 100% IDP), involves formulating personnel development
			 plans which can ensure that all personnel have the knowledge, skills and competence as required
			 and needed.
		 1.3 Training Year Plan which mainly focuses on personnel development through formulating a whole-year
			 training and development plan for each individual personnel to ensure proper personnel training and
			 development. This shall in turn support Competency Gap development which is an indicator of the
			 overall success of corporate personnel development.
Furthermore, TCG personnel development based on Competency Gap also included organizing trainings/
seminar sessions according to the determined programs based on Competency Gap and utilizing personnel
development tools beyond classroom training. In addition, TCG had developed Competency Development
System for enhancing personnel competency to ensure they have the required knowledge and skills in performing
their duties. This system involves assessing the knowledge, skills and working behavior of personnel in comparison
with the expected competence level specified by TCG for the concerned position with the aim to develop and
strengthen corporate personnel which is the main driving force towards achieving the determined goals.
Regarding the 2015 operating results in terms of personnel development, TCG was able to achieve the
determined Competency Gap Development targets in the overall.
Furthermore, TCG places great importance in raising awareness among employees and encouraging them to
uphold honesty and TCG Code of Ethics, including promoting all supervisory level personnel to emphasize on
developing their subordinates as well as providing proper guidance and advice in order to strengthen their teams
and further ensure that all determined operational plans, targets and missions of TCG are efficiently met.
2. Employee Engagement Plan
		 TCG Human Resources Department had followed every procedure specified in the plan. The evaluation
results in terms of employee’s engagement and satisfaction exceeded the expected target. In 2015, various activities
were held in order to promote personnel engagement such as HR Clinic, Audio Broadcast, Emergency Loans
Program, including offering employees the chance to join marketing activities with Public Relation Department,
Marketing and Product Development Department and Branch Administration Department, Career Path
Communication, and Volunteers Support Fund Project. Such activities helped to promote good corporate image,
including career progress as well as career challenges and independence. Nevertheless, TCG is determined to
further uplift employee’s level of engagement in order to support corporate sustainability strategy.
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Risk Factor and Risk Management
TCG Risk Management Overview
At TCG, risk management is prioritized as the organization mainly focuses on developing and enhancing its
risk management system to ensure highest efficiency and at the same time to ensure that all major risks are
covered and that the existing system meets the international standard requirements. This will not only enable
TCG to achieve the determined organizational objectives and operational targets but also add higher value to the
organization and ensure stable growth. Hence, TCG managed various risks by using the good practice of COSO
(ERM-Integrated Framework) determined by State Enterprise Policy Office (SEPO) under the Ministry of Finance and
the practice of the Bank of Thailand as guidelines in managing five key risk factors including credit risk, strategic
risk, operational risk, market risk and liquidity risk. In addition, risk management structure, policy and procedure
had also been established to ensure efficient risk management whereas its suitability and adequacy are constantly
reviewed to ensure they are in line with current business situation.
TCG also adopted Enterprise-Wide Risk Management by formulating risk management policy that supports
core strategies of the organization, including identifying risks that may potentially obstruct the organization from
achieving operational objectives and targets, determining severity level criteria for each risk factor, conducting risk
assessment, formulating risk management plan that is capable of maintaining proper risk appetite, monitoring and
reporting risk management outcome as well as risk management assessment results in concrete and constant
manner, preparing Risk Map that completely displays the relationship between risk factors and its impact, identifying
Key Risk Indicator, Risk Appetite and Risk Tolerance of every risk factor in order to monitor risk management
results to ensure they are under acceptable level and in line with the determined target. Furthermore, trainings
were constantly provided while knowledge and understanding regarding risk management were regularly
communicated and promoted among every level of the management and employees within the organization
in order to incorporate risk management as part of organizational culture. Also, surveys on risk management
awareness were conducted among employees in order to develop and improve current risk management system
for better efficiency.
In 2015, TCG managed various risks which can be summarized as follows:
1. Credit Risk Management
		 Credit risk (credit guarantee) means risk that occurs when a client which TCG provided credit guarantee is
unable to repay debt to the financial institution providing the loan or risk that resulted from potential event of
default and causing TCG to pay for the insurance money which may affect the capital and income of TCG.
		
		 TCG had reviewed its credit guarantee policy as well as credit risk management policy (credit guarantee)
to ensure appropriate and adequate risk management process and proper risk appetite while implementing its
credit guarantee policy in the nature that allows for the controlling of proper risk level by constantly launching
Portfolio Guarantee Scheme and Non Performing Credit Guarantees (NPGs) which can help to limit debt amount
and potential losses, including clearly specifying the duration of guarantee period. At the end of year 2015,
TCG faces credit guarantee burden of around 97.66% of its total guarantee burden. Nevertheless, payments of
insurance money were closely followed up while the controlling of risks which may result from such credit
guarantee was also closely monitored.
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		 The monitoring, controlling and overseeing of NPGs debtors are also an essential part of credit risk
management. Hence, follow-up measures to reduce NPGs debt, whether it be existing NPGs or new NPGs which
occurred in 2015, had been implemented in order to define preventive and corrective measures for NPGs debt
to ensure it is in line with the determined target and at the same time to assist SMEs with potentials in making
debt payment, including finding ways to minimize damages for TCG. Regarding the debtors whose insurance
money had already been paid by TCG, close follow up on the repayment of such insurance money was carried
out through a compromise and the execution of legal measures concerning debt repayment. Furthermore, credit
risk management tools were constantly developed and improved such as Credit Scoring to ensure that each tool
is correct, accurate and up-to-date while risk limit had been defined and risk level was closely monitored. At the
same time, Stress Testing had been carried out in order to assess capital adequacy.
2. Strategic Risk Management
		 Strategic risk means risk which occurs following the defining of strategic and operational plans as well as
the implementation of such plans in the manner that is unsuitable or conflicting with internal factors and external
environment which may adversely affect the income, capital or the survival of a business.
		 TCG had reviewed its strategic risk management policy to ensure that the organization has appropriate and
adequate strategic risk management process that is capable of supporting and maintaining risks within acceptable
level. In addition, TCG continuously developed and improved its strategic risk management by adopting COSO
(ERM-Integrated Framework) risk management practice in formulating Enterprise Plan, including overseeing and
monitoring operating performance to ensure it is in line with the determined target and creating Portfolio View of
Risk to be used in managing risks that reflect the risk tolerance of each risk factor that may affect the overall risk
tolerance but within the scope manageable by corporate capability. Furthermore, operating performance was
also monitored and forecasted using Portfolio View of Risk in evaluating risk impact on achieving the determined
target. Meanwhile, the level of risk and the level of capital for operational support were constantly evaluated to
ensure that TCG has sufficient capital for handling any potential impact which may arise in the future.
3. Operational Risk Management
		 Operational risk means risk that may lead to damages as a result from the lack of good corporate
governance and proper management and control. Such risk may be related to internal operational procedure,
personnel, work process or external factors and may impact the income and capital of TCG.
		 CG had reviewed its operational risk management policy in order to be used as a guideline in determining
appropriate and adequate operational risk management process that is capable of supporting and maintaining risks
within acceptable level. In addition, TCG continuously developed and improved its operational risk management
through the use of key risk management tools which included Control Self Assessment (CSA), Key Risk Indicator (KRI)
and Loss Incidents Report. TCG also developed comprehensive operational risk data system which enables different
departments and branch offices to instantly report and record the damages resulting from operation in real-time or
conduct reports on a monthly basis. Furthermore, Business Continuity Management Policy (BCM) was constantly
reviewed together with Business Continuity Plan. At the same time, a Business Continuity Plan in the case of an
outbreak of a deadly contagious disease was also defined whereas BCP testing was regularly carried out to ensure
the continuity of TCG business operation under emergency situations.
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4. Market Risk Management
		 Market risk means risk which may expose TCG to damages as a result from changes in the value of
assets on balance sheet due to the fluctuations of interest rates, price of equity instruments and exchange rates.
The loss and profit deriving from such changes in market price may be due to general market risk and/or specific
market risk.
		 TCG had reviewed its market risk management policy to ensure that the organization has appropriate and
adequate market risk management process that is capable of supporting and maintaining risks within acceptable
level. TCG had also cautiously reviewed its investment policy, including practicing regular monitoring and evaluation
of performance, reporting its capital management outcome to the Capital Management Committee and Risk
Management Committee on a monthly basis. In 2015, Strategic Asset Allocation (SAA) policy was still implemented.
Under such policy, the investments in private bonds and equity instruments were made by no more than 11% and
15% of the investment capital, respectively. In addition, appropriate risk limits such as VaR, Beta and Duration of
Portfolio were also determined whereas risk indicators that signal warnings on improper management of returns
which leads to failure in meeting the determined investment target were closely monitored. Also, Stress Testing
was carried out to assess capital adequacy. Furthermore, TCG had reviewed its Stop Loss policy to ensure it is
suitable with the nature of the concerned instrument. However, in the case of significant changes, every asset
management company responsible for capital management shall be required to propose ways on how to improve
the existing investment strategies to Capital Management Committee for consideration.
5. Liquidity Risk Management
		 Liquidity risk means risk resulting from the fact that TCG fails to make payments of debt and insurance
money to financial institutions because it was unable to convert assets into cash within the specified period or
unable to acquire sufficient investment capital or able to provide investment capital but by exceedingly high cost
which may impact the income and capital of TCG.
		 TCG had reviewed its liquidity risk management policy to ensure that the organization has appropriate and
adequate liquidity risk management process that is capable of preventing and controlling risks within acceptable
level. Since the majority of TCG’s credit guarantees are provided in a form of Portfolio Guarantee Scheme by
which insurance money is to be paid by annual installment and of which the amount of payment will be notified
in advance, TCG therefore had sufficient time to prepare its liquidity. In addition, TCG made sure that its liquidity
management procedure is up-to-date and has a clear cut management by dividing it into two portions: 1) liquidity
for regular operation and payment of insurance money of TCG and 2) liquidity for payment of insurance money
provided with a condition that such payment of insurance money must come from guarantee fees earnings. Also,
detailed cash flow estimations had been prepared on a monthly basis, quarterly basis and yearly basis in order to
prepare suitable liquidity for payment period while risk limits were separately determined by the nature of insurance
money payment. In addition, risk values were closely monitored and Stress Testing was carried out while Liquidity
Emergency Plans for handling irregular situations and crisis had also been prepared.
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Internal Control and Internal Audit
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) places great importance in having good internal control, good
corporate governance and management practice that is reliable, transparent and fair to all stakeholders, including
instilling the culture of raising awareness on the importance of risk management and adequacy of internal control
in every operation carried out by TCG. Every department of TCG is encouraged to uphold good internal control
practice in accordance with the regulation of State Audit Commission Re: The Determination of Internal Control
Standard to be used as a guideline in operating the business of TCG as well as guidance of practice for employees.
Furthermore, risk management process and internal control system must be audited by the Audit Committee in
terms of efficiency, effectiveness and adequacy, including discussed and evaluated by internal auditor in terms
of appropriateness of the scope of responsibility, operational plan and evaluation on the adequacy and quality
of internal control system, and reporting to TCG Board of Directors in case of any suggestions or discovery of
significant flaws to allow further improvement of the system.
TCG prioritizes good corporate governance by establishing good corporate governance policy and related work
procedure as well as preparing Internal Control System Handbook and Personnel Handbook. Employee code of
conduct has also been defined, including professional ethics and disciplinary measures in case of violation of such
code and serious offences. This is to ensure that each employee performs their duties in efficient and transparent
manner and with fairness towards all stakeholders. Furthermore, operating performance and internal control are
regularly audited in order to raise a sense of caution and carefulness among the staffs while on duty.
At TCG, controlling activities have been incorporated as part of work process whereas appropriate control
structure has been established in every function. Regarding work process, the duties and responsibilities of
operation function and monitoring and evaluation function are clearly separated to ensure proper checks and
balances. In addition, any activities which may lead to conflict of interests shall be identified and handles
according to applicable rules and regulations of TCG.
The inspection and monitoring of TCG business operation by Internal Audit Department mainly aims to help
the Audit Committee in performing their duties of monitoring and overseeing internal control, good corporate
governance, risk management and other operations of TCG in systematic manner. This also includes ensuring
compliance with the laws and regulations of the state as well as the policies, regulations and operational ethics
of TCG, assessing the adequacy of internal control system, ensuring proper risk management, and reporting
corporate governance outcome and the audit results to the directors, presidents and the management in
order to determine corrective measures and presenting them to the Audit Committee on a monthly basis.
Furthermore, Internal Audit Department is responsible for providing advice concerning internal control system
as well as relevant regulations and orders to ensure the organization practices good corporate governance in
accordance with the operational framework stipulated in the regulation of the Ministry of Finance Re: Audit
Committee and Internal Audit Unit of State Enterprise.
Nevertheless, TCG have always recognized the importance of internal control while carrying out its business
operations as it allows for efficient operation as well as building confidence, upon reasonable grounds, that
the operations carried out by TCG can successfully achieve the determined objectives, generate returns in the
long run and ensure reliable financial and performance reporting as well as compliance with the laws, rues and
regulations and at the same time preventing any actions which may damage the property and reputation of TCG.
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Operational Strategies and Policies
Operational Strategies and Policies
The operational framework of Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) for 2016 – 2020 shall be carried out in
under Corporate Development Policy (2016 – 2020), a 10 year policy that will pave way for TCG towards becoming
a “The national credit guarantee institution which a crucial role in developing and promoting the SMEs in
accessing financial sources” as per the following details:
TCG Operational Framework 2016-2020
VISION
“The national credit guarantee institution with a crucial role in developing and promoting the SMEs in accessing financial sources”

1. Assisting SMEs in all sectors access to
finance.

Mission
2. Developing SMEs to a quality and
efficient entrepreneurs.

Corporate Strategy

Corporate Strategy

3. Enhancing TCG organization’s capabilities.
Corporate Strategy

Strategy No. 1
Strategy No. 2
Strategy No. 3
Enlarging customer base in every group, Empowering SMEs by promoting financial Laying out Internal Operation Management
particularly Micro SMEs, for financial
System that Enables Efficient Connection
literacy.
additionality.
with Financial Institutions.
Goal : Minimize the differences in economic, Goal : Educate the SMEs to gain more Goal : Enhance the performance efficiency
social and increase competitiveness
financial basic knowledge from various and effectiveness for the benefit of people
institute
Operation Strategies and Actions
Operation Strategies and Actions
Operation Strategies and Actions
Strategy
Action
Strategy
Action
Strategy
Action
1.1 Uplifting ICT
System Efficiency
1.1 Applying
1.1 Joining with
1.2 Generating Returns
strategic marketing
partners to
from Liquidity
1. Aggressive
to increase the
enhance financial 1. Corporate and
Management
marketing strategy
guarantee for
1. Knowledge
basic knowledge
Work System
1.3 Generating Returns
for enlarging
SMEs and increase Incubator Strategy
for SMEs
Efficiency
from Private Fund
customer base
the guarantee
1.2 Evaluate the
Enhancement
Management
based for Micro
knowledge of the
1.3.1 Non-NPGs Debt
SMEs
SMEs
Management
1.3.2 NPGs Debt
Management
2.1 Provide the
2. Mass
2.1 Enhance the
2.1
Creating
2.
Providing
Advice
advice and
2. Personnel
Communication
personnel
awareness
and Suggestions
suggestion for
development
Strategy
efficiency
participants
3.1 Organize the
3.1 Achieving higher 3. Building
activities with
3. Service Excellence
customer and
Understanding on
partners to
3. Reduce cost
3.1 Cost management
Strategy
stakeholder
Credit Guarantees
enhance the
satisfactions
among SMEs
knowledge for
SMEs
4. Transferring of
4.1 Transferring of all
Knowledge
knowledge for
through Online
SMEs through
Public Media
Social Media
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Strategy No. 1 : Enlarging customer base in every group, particularly Micro SMEs,
for financial additionality
Strategy No. 1 mainly focuses on expanding the amount of credit guarantees for newcomers and at the same
time providing a more comprehensive service in order to meet the requirements of every customer group and
increasing guarantee amount to enable SMEs in acquiring larger amount of loans from financial institutions as follow:
1. Aggressive marketing strategy for enlarging customer base
		 TCG carries out its business operation by integrating the 4P marketing strategies (Product, Price, Place,
Promotion), all of which are correlating to one another starting from top management to various functions within
the organization. Meanwhile, the customers were divided into two groups including financial institution group and
SMEs group. The marketing approach for each specific is as follows:
		 Group 1 Financial Institution : TCG focuses on carrying out credit guarantee product development that
is consistent with the requirements of each financial institution, including establishing close ties with financial
institutions in order to raise awareness and understanding and at the same time stimulating the demands of
financial institutions in using the service of TCG. Furthermore, TCG also emphasizes on developing and improving
its work processes to ensure they are in line with one another, including collaboratively organizing activities with
financial institutions in order to promote and support disbursement of SMEs loans.
		 Group 2 Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) : TCG classifies its SMEs clients according to the value of
fixed assets which included Micro SMEs, Small Enterprise and Medium Enterprise and shall carry out its marketing
operations by focusing on establishing good relations with relevant organizations in order to organize activities for
supporting and promoting disbursement of SMEs loans, including raising guarantee amount, building SMEs network,
collecting and preparing Customer Understanding to enable guarantee product development, conducting research
as well as inventing and developing guarantee products that can address the needs of customers. The developed
guarantee products can be divided into two groups including credit guarantee scheme according to government policy
and credit guarantee scheme provided by TCG, both of which are consistent with the requirements of each financial
institution.
		 In addition, TCG also defines operational procedures together with allied organizations in order to create
opportunities for SMEs in accessing financial sources through various activities with the aim to create understandings
on the services and guarantee requirements of TCG, including offering alternative channels of communication
for SME entrepreneurs by coordinating with and forwarding SME entrepreneurs to financial institutions to enable
convenience in acquiring loans. Furthermore, TCG shall also maintain and expand its cooperation with business
partners that will support TCG in assisting new SME clients in accessing financial sources and building new
partnership with TCG.
2. Mass Communication Strategy
		 As TCG is expected to complete its 25th Year Anniversary in business operation in the year 2016, TCG
therefore plan to use this special occasion as its theme of communication which is “25th Year TCG towards
300,000 Million Baht Guarantee”. Such theme shall be clearly and continuously communicated by the Public
Relations Department while still upholding Integrated Communication through various communication devices
namely advertisement, press releases and various activities. TCG shall also focus on using social media as
means to communicate with the targeted group and mainstream media with comprehensive service as means for
organizing activities and creating awareness on an extensive scale, including using online advertising media, radio,
press release and public media relations to stimulate corporate movements in creating awareness.
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3. Service Excellence Strategy
		 To ensure that the determined strategy is achieved effectively, TCG therefore defined an operational
procedure which mainly focuses on efficient work process by starting from formulating appropriate work plans
that are in line with one another, highlighting key elements of each work process in order to achieve customer
satisfaction, designing suitable and efficient work procedure, including determining indicators for controlling,
inspecting and improving the performance of each procedure. Furthermore, TCG has also defined the structure
of Branch Offices as its sales force according to each geographical setting in order to ensure comprehensive
service coverage and at the same enable TCG to closely coordinate with and provide sales service to its clients
and promptly resolving problems in each area in order to achieve higher customer satisfaction. In addition, Call
Center Service is also made available for customers and third parties to raise comments and suggestions. In
2015, a survey on customer satisfaction and “Voice of Customer” project was carried out, allowing TCG to draw
valuable information from customers to further develop its products and service operations in order to better
meet customer demands and at the same time achieving higher customer and stakeholder satisfactions.

Strategy No. 2 : Empowering SMEs by promoting financial literacy
This second strategy mainly aims to uplift the competence of SME entrepreneurs by enabling them to
efficiently compete in the market. This includes properly preparing the SMEs for loan request, establishing
coordination between SMEs and financial institutions that are financial sources, including following up on the
submitted loan request until approval has been given and after the requested loan has been acquired from
financial institution. The second strategy also involves strengthening business management capability of SMEs in
various aspects to ensure they are competition in the market.
1. Knowledge Incubator Strategy
		 1.1 Joining force with UBI (University Business Incubators) in educating Un-served SMEs in order to create
opportunities among OTOP and Community Enterprise, small businesses that are still lacking the potential in
accessing financial sources but wish to conduct business as well as start-up businesses, including assisting them in
gaining access to financial sources. To achieve this, TCG staffs from every branch office nationwide must cooperate
with business incubators and educational institutions that require knowledge enhancement for the students and
general public by sharing advice and knowledge as well as acting as a guarantee for entrepreneurs, all of which
are carried out under a project called “Empowering SMEs to Gain Access to Financial Sources together with UBI”.
		 1.2 Empowering Under-served SMEs through knowledge enhancement by cooperating with various
organizations namely Thai Chamber of Commerce which TCG collaboratively organized Young Entrepreneur
Chamber of Commerce (YEC) in order to support and further improve the operations of Provincial Chamber of
Commerce, Thai Chamber of Commerce and TCG in building young entrepreneur network nationwide for mutual
benefits.
		 1.3 Developing SME entrepreneurs in order to create alternative marketing channel specifically for
supporting ASEAN Economic Community which is in line with the government policy that focuses on preparing the
country for the upcoming ASEAN Economic Community. This is to ensure mutual economic benefits among the
ten ASEAN member countries by organizing trainings and seminar sessions that focus on knowledge enhancement
on “SMEs Development for Alternative Marketing and Trading Channel towards AEC”.
2. Providing Advice and Suggestions
		 TCG promptly cooperate with its allied partners and new partners in order to expand the scope of activities
which help to support TCG in assisting SMEs and at the same time allowing them to gain benefits from participating
in such activities as well as enabling wider access to financial sources.
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3. Building Understanding on Credit Guarantees among SMEs
		 TCG continuously collaborate with financial institutions and allied partners in establishing synergy through
numerous activities which are carried out under the collaboration between TCG and financial institutions as well as
relevant public and private organizations in order to assist the targeted group of SMEs and keeping them informed on
aiding measures implemented by government sector, including providing convenience for SMEs that seek credit and
credit guarantees advice as well as advice on the submission of loan request to financial institutions. This is to assist
the SMEs in gaining access to financial sources in the most effective manner which shall in turn help to build a clear
SMEs promotion network.
4. Transferring of Knowledge through Online Public Media
		 TCG has collected information, knowledge and movements relating to SMEs from both local and global
sources, all of which are communicated to the general public via online communication channel as it allows for
quick and up-to-date information access.

Strategy No. 3 : Laying out Internal Operation Management System that Enables Efficient
Connection with Financial Institutions
The third strategy mainly focuses on enhancing performance efficiency and effectiveness in response to
rapid credit guarantee expansion plan and at the same time emphasizes on Micro SMEs group. Hence, proper
operational systems capable of handling changes and supporting credit guarantee expansion in the future are
required as follow:
1. Corporate and Work System Efficiency Enhancement
		 1.1 Uplifting Information Technology System (IT) Efficiency
			 The development of IT system equipment for supporting information management will not only
ensure up-to-date information but also help to raise the efficiency of various operations by ensuring quick and
efficient management as well as access of information among employees. Hence, a project on new guarantee
system development has been initiated by TCG in order to support future business expansion while other
information systems have also been developed and essential softwares are provided in order to be applied
in various operations to ensure effectiveness. TCG also recognizes the importance of IT GRC (Governance, Risk
Management and Compliance) which shall enable the use of IT system that will allow systematic and proper
management, including preventing redundancy, reducing risks and at the same time enhance performance
efficiency and capable of supporting quick and prompt coordination. Hence, IT Committee and Information Security
Working Group have been set up. Its members consist of representatives from various functions and experts
from external organizations who are invited to give consultation on information technology project management
and help to formulate policies, operational plans, budget or various projects, including providing suggestions and
resolutions for resolving IT-related problems that may arise, allowing TCG to minimize risks and able to monitor
and evaluate operational performance in efficient manner.
		
		 1.2 Generating Returns from Private Fund Management
			 TCG develops its work process in order to increase productivity of private fund management in
terms of generating returns from both private fund and liquidity management. This is carried out through
finding ways and opportunities for creating new investments, including reviewing and improving investmentrelated policies and restrictions as well as employment contract for management companies and related
fees structure to ensure they are suitable and able to draw the attentions of management companies.
Furthermore, measures to closely monitor market situations and corporate performance have also been
implemented to allow assessment on investment impacts to ensure prompt adjustment of investment strategies.
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		 1.3 Debt Management
			 TCG focuses on providing Portfolio Guarantee Scheme by emphasizing its roles as a financial
institution in providing consultation service to assist SMEs and debtors in improving their operational efficiency,
including coordinating with lenders in order to minimize problems and conflicts which may arise between lenders
and debtors to ensure the survival of SMEs. TCG mainly focuses on supporting the projects under which the
government provides financial aid in terms of claim payment which helps to reduce the number of claim
applications and at the same time assists the SMEs with potentials that still have debt resolving problem and shall
carry out evaluation based on the number of cases that have been resolved.
			
			 Meanwhile, Non-Portfolio Guarantee Scheme shall mainly involve continuous formulation of operational
plans and targets concerning NPGs debt management, including focusing on providing consultation to debtors and
coordinating with lenders in order to seek preventive measures and quickly resolve performing NPGs. This is done by
considering all groups of debtor whether it is recent defaults, current NPGs or new NPGs. All groups shall be given
proper advice and assistance in preparing debt payment plan. In the event that NPGs are still lacking the business
potential that will enable debt structure improvement, TCG shall help to seek new ways for improving NPGs
potentials, including coordinating with lenders to ensure quick debt structure improvement. In 2016, TCG is expected
to being collecting partial debt from outsources. If such debt collection meets the determined target, TCG shall
further develop its debt collection method through outsource expansion.
		
		 1.4 Follow up on the Collection of Claim Payment
			 In regards to current debt collection process, TCG mainly focuses on collecting claim payment,
particularly among new debtors, by means of negotiation and compromise. TCG also established a policy which
requires all eleven branch offices nationwide to follow up on debtors within their concerned area whose claim
payment has yet been collected as a way to bring out the strengths of TCG branch offices each of which are
experts within their local area and have established good relations with entrepreneurs and financial institutions,
all of which will ensure that all debt collections can be closely and quickly followed up. In addition, debt
collection timeframe for non-cooperative debtors has also been defined in order to seek ways or legal measures
in enforcing debt payment.
		 1.5 Improving the Performance of Credit Guarantee Process
			 TCG has continuously developed and improves its credit guarantee system. This includes the
development of online credit application and credit guarantee application via facsimile, e-mail and webpage of
TCG to ensure better convenience. Furthermore, Auto Approval System has been developed in order to improve
TCG credit guarantee application approval process whereas Barcode System is used to ensure accurate and quick
internal management operation. Also, after-credit guarantee service operation and Core Guarantee System have
been developed to allow convenient, quick and accurate credit guarantee process and at the same time capable
of handling extensive workload in order to achieve higher customer satisfaction.
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Corporate Governance
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) realizes the significance of operating business with transparency,
fairness and honesty and based on corporate governance. Hence, Corporate Governance & Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR) has been appointed by the Board of Directors to be responsible for defining
corporate governance principle and policy based on state enterprise corporate governance principle and practice
defined by the Office of State Enterprise Policy Commission (SEPO) under the Ministry of Finance and the seven
international corporate governance principles to be used as framework in carrying out related operations and
corporate social responsibilities as follows:

Responsibility

Corporate
Governance

Equitable
Treatment

Participation

Accountability

Value Creation
Transparency

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Ethic

Accountability
Handling responsibility with sufficient capability and efficiency
Equitable treatment among all stakeholders
Transparency in running operation and disclosure of information
Value creation both in short-term and long-term
Promoting good corporate governance and ethics
Encouraging participation and opportunities for the general public to share opinions.

Based on the aforementioned corporate governance principle, TCG has defined corporate governance policy
of which comprises of five following sections: 1) Shareholders’ Rights and Equity, 2) Board of Directors’
Responsibility, 3) Roles of Stakeholders, 4) Disclosure of IT Information and Transparency and 5) Code of Conduct
and Business Ethics, to be used as guideline as well as upheld and followed by the Board of Directors, the
management and employees in order to instill good organizational culture within TCG.
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Corporate Governance Operational Plan
In 2015, TCG had defined operational plan and activities relating to corporate governance and complied
with related rules. The corporate governance strategies carried out by TCG in 2015 cover the following
three core aspects including:
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Strategy No. 1 Promoting corporate governance throughout the organization
1.1 “Share Kwuam Dee: The series” was organized by inviting employees to share their memorable photos
		 or short stories describing their act of good deeds in order to share experiences and at the same time
		 inspire their colleagues to do good deeds.
1.2 A special session on the topic of “Honesty at Work” by Phra Maha Ngampon Kittisopano was held.
1.3 A training program on “TCG Corporate Governance” was provided during new staff orientation.
1.4 Information and articles relating to corporate governance were publicized / distributed on a quarterly basis.
1.5 Corporate Governance Policy had constantly been reviewed and improved to ensure it is up-to-date.
Strategy No. 2 Preventing and eliminating corruptions
2.1 “TCG Against Corruptions” seminar session by was held by inviting experts from the Office of National
		 Anti-Corruptions Commission (NACC) to educate the management and employees of TCG regarding
		 anti-corruptions as well as prevention and elimination of conflict of interests and bribery concerning
		 government officials.
2.2 TCG took part in the Integrity & Transparency Assessment (ITA) organized by the NACC.
Strategy No. 3 Building Sustainability
3.1 TCG constantly audited its corporate compliance starting from rules and regulations compilation,
		 communication, auditing and reporting process.
3.2 Operational Authority Handbook had been developed and revised to be used as operational guideline by
		 the management and employees.
3.3 Training sessions were held to educate personnel regarding important rules and regulations such as the
		 essential elements of Debt Collection Act B.E. 2558 (2015), regulations concerning transportation expenses
		 and hire-purchase.
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Roles of Stakeholders
TCG realizes the rights and roles of every group of stakeholders, both internal and external, and has therefore
incorporated as part of its corporate governance policy and distributed the information through various media such
as TCG website in order to inform all stakeholders and encourage cooperation between TCG and stakeholders
in creating stability and sustainability for the organization as follows:
1. Code of Best Practice towards Shareholders: TCG focuses on achieving good returns through its
business operation as well as continuous growth, including maintaining stable and strong financial position,
carrying out business with carefulness and transparency, enhancing level of competitiveness and upholding
the code of business ethics
2. Code of Best Practice towards Government Sector: TCG supports all operations of government sector
and complies with the criteria and policy of regulators, including encouraging and supporting engagement in various
activities initiated by government sector in order to jointly enhance the country’s economic growth and stability.
3. Code of Best Practice towards Customers: TCG is committed to provide customer service with
willingness and full extent of capability as well as with equity and fairness. A team of experts is also provided for
giving advice to customers in courteous and gentle manner.
4. Code of Best Practice towards Creditors: TCG is committed to comply with every term and condition
as agreed with each creditor in order to uphold the reputation and credibility of TCG among all creditors and
stakeholders.
5. Code of Best Practice towards Business Partners: TCG strictly informed all employees relevant to the
purchasing and selling of TCG assets as well as all types of TCG products and services to ensure the best interest
of TCG without putting into account personal interests or interests of others, including providing only complete
and accurate information to business partners.
6. Code of Best Practice towards Business Allies: TCG is committed to follow the agreements established
with business allies of TCG, including providing mutual assistance for the benefits of the overall business income.
7. Code of Best Practice towards Competitors: TCG has no policy to compete with other competitors by
means of slandering, defamation or manipulation of facts.
8. Code of Best Practice towards the Society and Environment: TCG is committed to behave as a good
citizen and always prioritizes its responsibility towards the society and country, including supporting social
activities and jointly developing the society, community and the environment as well as supporting government
policies for the benefit of the overall country.
9. Code of Best Practice towards the Board of Directors and the Management: The Board of Directors
and the management of TCG are well aware of their rights and are ready to become a role model in exercising
rights and perform duties within the scope defined by TCG.
10. Code of Best Practice towards Employees: By realizing the importance of human resource as a major
driving force of an organization, TCG therefore tries to maintain and select only competent personnel. At the
same time, personnel development is also emphasized through trainings and various learning process in order to
encourage self-learning and lifelong learning among employees. At TCG, personnel development is carried out in
order to create professional employees equipped with the knowledge and skills for achieving operational success
and creating highest customer satisfaction, all of which is part of sustainable development and the building of
learning organization.
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Disclosure of IT Information and Transparency
TCG prioritizes the significance of disclosure of information, whether financial or non-financial, and therefore
established disclosure policy to ensure that such disclosure of information is carried out in accurate and
transparent manner and in compliance with the Official Information Act B.E. 2540 (1997), including to raise
awareness and confidence among all stakeholders. Such policy is reviewed on a yearly basis to ensure it is
consistent with the current situation. Furthermore, TCG continuously expand its communication channel to
ensure that every stakeholder has full information access as follows:
1. External disclosure such as Annual Report, TCG website www.tcg.or.th and other advertising media such
as television, radio, newspapers and magazines.
2. Internal disclosure such as Intranet, audio broadcast and bulletin board.
As a state-owned enterprise governed by the Ministry of Finance and a government organization as per
the Official Information Act B.E. 2540 (1997), TCG therefore continuously discloses its information to general
public in accordance with the specified act for the benefits of the public in reaching TCG information access
as follows:
1. Disclosure of Information relating to Hire-Purchase
		 TCG publicizes hire-purchase information through its official website. The contents comprise of hirepurchase announcements, medium price announcement, drafted TOR announcement, invitations, announcement
of bid winners, and summary of hire-purchase to allow convenience in searching hire-purchase information of TCG.
2. Disclosure of TCG Information and Customer Information to Agencies and External Parties Upon Request
		 TCG gives full cooperation in providing information or documentation when requested by authorized agencies
such as the Office of Auditor General of Thailand, the Bank of Thailand, the Ministry of Finance, Revenue Department,
the court, Law Execution Department, etc. The disclosure of such information and documentation shall be done in
accordance with the laws and disclosure policy of TCG.

O P E N D ATA A N D T R A N S PA R E N C Y

68

Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
Annual Report 2015

Contact Information, Complaints, Whistleblowing and Expression of Opinions
TCG has prepared a number of communication channels to allow convenience for all stakeholders in raising
enquiries, complaints, whistleblowing, and giving comments or suggestions as follows:

Contact
Information
Complaints
Whistleblowing
Opinions

•
		
•
•
•
•
•

Office of the Directors and Presidents of Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
Charn Issara Tower 2 (17th – 18th Floor), 2922/243 New Petchburi Road, Bangkapi, Huay Kwang, Bangkok 10310
Call Center: 0-2890-9999
Tel.: 0-2890-9988 ext. Public Relation Department์
Fax.: 0-2890-9900, 0-2890-9800
www.tcg.or.th
Hotlines for whistleblowing or report corruptions: 0-2890-9977, 0-2890-9955

Employees may raise complaints, suggestions or comments with Human Resources Department or
whistleblowingor report corruptions by calling hotline number 0-2890-9977 or 0-2890-9955.

Code of Conduct and Business Ethics
TCG emphasizes the importance of good and proper practice during operation among every level of personnel
in order to ensure efficiency as well as raising credibility among customers and general public. Hence, the code
of conduct and business ethics for the management, employees and directors of TCG have been defined and
prepared in a form of handbook to be distributed among all personnel so that each individual is aware of and
uphold such code while on duty.

Conflict of Interest
At TCG, the management and employees are prohibited from performing any actions which may be conflicting
with the interests of TCG. A procedure for preparing Conflict of Interest Report has been defined to be upheld
and followed by the management and employees. Each year every personnel are required to certify a list of
conflict of interests whereas a special team has also been set up to carry out the auditing of conflict of interest
of the management and employees.
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Report of the Board of Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reports
TCG’s Board of Directors has given the precedence and aware of the obligation on behalf of the directors who
are responsible for financial statements and financial information appeared in annual business report. Therefore,
such financial statement preparation has been governed in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and standards under proper accounting policy and regular practical adherence by holding reasonability,
reality, completeness, accuracy and carefulness principles so that TCG’s performance can be truly reflected.
In addition, the performance has been reported and the significant information has been continuously and
transparently disclosed for shareholders’ benefits.
TCG’s Board of Directors has prepared to have and sustain effective and proper risk management system,
internal control system, internal audit, and governance for assurance on adequate, complete and accurate
financial statements in asset preservation as well as significant prevention on corruption or unusual operation.
TCG’s Board of Directors has appointed Audit Committee and Independent Committee to perform the
governance and verification on reliability and accuracy of the financial reports. Risk Management Committee
consisting of the knowledgeable and competent committee members has been appointed to perform the
proper and adequate governance on internal audit control. Therefore, we have been confident that aforesaid
TCG’s financial statements have been reliable. The Audit Committee has expressed their opinion in the Audit
Committee Report and the Risk Management Committee has expressed their opinion in the Risk Management
Committee Report. These Reports have already been presented in this Annual Report.
TCG’s financial statements have been audited by the auditor of Office of the Auditor-General of Thailand. In
the said audit, TCG has rendered the information and documents used to supplement the bookkeeping pursuant
to the auditor’s request so that the auditor can audit and express the opinion in accordance with auditing
standards. The auditor’s opinion has been appeared in the Auditor’s Report and already presented in Annual
Report.
The opinion of TCG’s Board of Directors indicated the adequacy, appropriateness and ability to create the
reasonable confidence of TCG’s overall internal control system by the way that TCG’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2015 has been legally reliable in accordance with generally accepted accounting
standards and relevant regulations.

(Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon)
Chairman of the Board
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(Mr. Nitid Manoonporn)
President

Analysis of Financial Position
Assets
As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s total assets for Baht 16,147.97 million, decreasing from 2014 for 3.58%, has
consisted of current assets for Baht 14,473.99 million, decreasing from 2014 for Baht 1,691.00 million or decreasing
for 10.46% which has partly been the decrease in private funds that yielded 2.02% of return on investment ratio.
At the end of 31 December 2015, net assets of private funds were Baht 9,811.90 million. During the year, TCG
gained total guarantee fee for Baht 4,526.67 million, total governmental compensation in part of loss and fee
compensation for Baht 1,547.57 million, and receipt of claims payment refund for Baht 137.49 million, etc.
However, during the year, TCG’s total claims payment was Baht 6,432.33 million and operating expenses was Baht
373.56 million.
Total non-current assets were Baht 1,673.97 million, increasing from 2014 for Baht 1,090.58 million or
increasing for 186.94%. However, it was the increase from long-term deposit of which TCG yearly yielded 2.10 3.15% of return on investment ratio.

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
As at 31 December 2015, current liabilities were Baht 8,318.81 million, decreasing from 2014 for Baht 661.70
million or decreasing for 7.37%, whereas 71.82% or Baht 5,974.26 million has been claims reserve, increasing
from 2014 for Baht 450.80 million or increasing for 8.16%. This claims reserve in combination with governmental
loss compensation for PGS 1, 2, 3 and 4 Projects and Flood 2011 Phase 1 Project were totaled to Baht 2,228.41
million. The balance of current liabilities was Baht 2,344.55 million, consisting of prepaid guarantee fee for 21.93%,
governmental loss and fee compensation for PGS Projects for 1.88%, and other liabilities for another 4.37%.
According to the provision of total claims reserve, it was Baht 5,974.26 million under classification into the
provision of claims reserve for normal project in the ratio of 100% of net guarantee obligation that has been in line
with the criteria of the Bank of Thailand for total amount of Baht 2,156.47 million, decreasing from 2014 for Baht
227.86 million or decreasing for 9.56%, and the provision of claims reserve for PGS Projects in the ratio of 100%
of recognized revenue based on duration for total amount of Baht 3,064.38 million, increasing from 2014 for Baht
74.77 million or increasing for 2.38%.
For total shareholders’ equity for Baht 7,829.15 million, increasing from 2014 for Baht 61.27 million or increasing
for 0.79%, it has been the increased part from 2015 overall operation that earned Baht 340.96 million for net profit
when combining the balance of retained earnings for Baht 792.91 million. In 2015, there were dividend payment
to shareholders for Baht 209.12 million, profit appropriation for legal reserved fund in the ratio of 10% of net
profit in total amount of Baht 34.09 million and loss from change in estimate in accordance with actuarial science
principle that has not yet been recognized for another Baht 0.18 million, resulting in TCG’s balance of unappropriated
retained earnings for Baht 890.48 million.
As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s total accumulated guarantee obligation was Baht 308,936.45 million, increasing
from 2014 for Baht 39,401.39 million. However, during the year, guarantee obligation increased for Baht 67,486.67
million and guarantee obligation decreased due to credit line cancellation and reduction and claims payment for
Baht 28,085.28 million.
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Revenues and Expenses
From overall operation for 2015, TCG’s total revenues were Baht 7,543.73 million, increasing from 2014 for Baht
1,284.90 million or increasing for 20.53% under classification into increases from guarantee fee revenue for Baht
327.71 million or increasing for 7.32%, and governmental loss compensation revenue for Baht 1,138.33 million or
increasing for 104.43%, and decrease in private fund management revenue for Baht 158.06 million or decreasing for
36.58% and other revenues for Baht 23.09 million or decreasing for 8.84%.
In part of total expenses of Baht 7,202.77 million, after adjustment of excessive record of claims reserve during
the year for Baht 450.80 million. After deduction of total doubtful accounts and bad debts for Baht 6,378.41 million,
the balance of operating expenses was Baht 373.56 million, increasing from 2014 for 10.32% under classification into
employee-related expense for 63.06%, and operating expenses and other expenses for 36.94%.

Comprehensive Profit (Loss)
In 2015, TCG’s gross profit before amortization of total bad debts, doubtful accounts, and claims were Baht
7,170.16 million, increasing from 2014 for 21.66%. After adjustment of claims reserve provision account for bad
debts and doubtful accounts, TCG’s total operating profit was Baht 340.96 million or 5.09 Baht for Earning per
Share, increasing from 2014 for Baht 3.06 million or increase in Earning per Share for 37.55 Baht.
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The Auditor’s Report
“…Fiscal Money is the Entire Nation People’s Money…”
The King’s Royal Speech

The Auditor’s Report
Presented to the Shareholders of Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation
		
The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand has audited the financial statements of Thai Credit
Guarantee Corporation constituting Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2015 and Comprehensive
Profit and Loss Statement, Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and Statement of Cash Flow for the Year
then Ended as well as notes to significant accounting policy summary and notes to other issues.
The Management’s Responsibility on Financial Statements
		
The Management is responsible for fairly accurate preparation and presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with financial reporting standards and responsible for internal control of which the
Management has considered as necessary so that the financial statements can be prepared without the material
misstatement of fact either occurred from fraud or error.
The Auditor’s Responsibility
		
The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand is responsible for opinion expression toward aforesaid
financial statements. According to the audit result of the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand, the Office of
the Auditor General of Thailand has functioned the audit in accordance with auditing standards that stipulates
that the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand shall comply with Ethics Requirement as well as audit planning
and operation in order to acquire reasonable confidence whether the financial statements have been free from
material misstatement of fact.
		
The audit including the application of audit method for acquisition of audit evidences on amount
of money and information disclosure in the financial statements. The audit method selected for application has
been depended upon the auditor’s discretion as well as the risk assessment from material misstatement of fact of
the financial statements either occurred from fraud or error. In such risk assessment, the auditor has considered
internal audit relevant to fairly and accurately preparation and presentation of financial statements of the entity
for design of audit method to be proper for the situation. However, it has not been for the purpose of opinion
expression toward the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, audit, and assessment on the accounting

The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
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policy’s appropriateness of which the Management has applied and the reasonability of the accounting estimate
prepared by the Management, as well as assessment on overall presentation of financial statements.
		
		
The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand has believed that audit evidences obtained by the
Office of the Auditor’s General of Thailand has been adequate and proper for application as the criteria in opinion
expression of the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand.
Opinion
		
The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand has stated the opinion that these aforesaid financial
statements have fairly and accurately presented Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation’s financial position as at 31
December 2015, and performance and cash flow for the year then ended in materiality in accordance with the
financial reporting standards.

(Miss Khamanat Jitraviriyakul)
Director Financial Audit Office No. 3

(Mr. Sattawat Boonkoy)
Group Director

The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand
11 April 2016
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Financial Statement
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2015
Notes

2015

Unit : Baht
2014

Cash and Cash Equivalents

4.1

784,277,583.36

38,577,402.41

Temporary Investment

4.2.1

12,249,865,899.89

15,693,750,800.15

Guarantee Receivables

4.3

19,337,102,366.41

13,086,334,565.62

Less Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

4.3

(19,337,102,366.41)

(13,086,334,565.62)

12,635,100.12

29,394,455.88

1,425,203,445.41

399,245,906.55

2,010,772.33

4,028,144.82

14,473,992,801.11

16,164,996,709.81

สินทรัพย์
Assets
Current Assets

Accrued Interest Receivables
Accrued Guarantee Fee Receivables

4.4

Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Long-Term Investment

4.2.2

1,525,000,000.00

500,000,000.00

Net Property, Plant and Equipment

4.5

129,190,109.70

71,678,012.42

Net Intangible Assets

4.6

16,377,815.29

8,420,814.55

3,404,382.25

3,297,925.83

1,673,972,307.24

583,396,752.80

16,147,965,108.35

16,748,393,462.61

Other Non-Current Assets
Total Non-Current Assets
Total Assets

Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation

Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
As at 31 December 2015

สินทรัพย์

Notes

2015

Unit : Baht
2014

Liabilities and Shareholder’s Equity
Current Liabilities
Advanced Guarantee Fee
1,824,211,372.84
1,831,236,453.99
Governmental Fee Subsidy
4.7
4,448,863.90
456,046.48
Governmental Loss Compensation for PGS Projects
4.8
151,835,661.59
1,474,986,965.05
Fee Waiting for Payback to Receivables
204,958,619.57
2,169,070.03
Provisions
4.9
32,827,385.85
27,103,139.96
Other Liabilities
4.10
126,267,064.69
121,090,139.92
Compensatory Security Reserve
3.10 4.11 5,974,263,358.22
5,523,465,660.45
Total Current Liabilities
8,318,812,326.66
8,980,507,475.88
Total Liabilities
8,318,812,326.66 8,980,507,475.88
Shareholders’ Equity
Share Capital
4.12
Registered Capital
Ordinary Shares for 68,399,467 shares at Par
Value of 100 Baht per share
6,839,946,700.00
6,839,946,700.00
Issued and Paid-Up Capital
Ordinary Shares for 67,024,730 shares at Par
Value of 100 Baht per share
6,702,473,000.00
6,702,473,000.00
Accumulated Profit (Loss)
Already Appropriated
Legal Reserve
4.13
143,160,947.04
109,065,094.60
Unappropriated
890,478,472.94
792,911,986.40
Other Compositions of Shareholders’ Equity
4.15
93,040,361.71
163,435,905.73
Total Shareholders’ Equity
7,829,152,781.69 7,767,885,986.73
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
16,147,965,108.35 16,748,393,462.61
Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Signed .......................................................
(Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon)
Chairman of the Board
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Signed .......................................................
(Mr. Nitid Manoonporn)
President

Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation

Comprehensive Profit and Loss Statement
For the Year Ended 31 December 2015

Unit : Baht
2014

สินทรัพย์

Notes

2015

Revenue from Guarantee Fees
Revenue Derived from Financial Management
Revenue from Governmental Loss Compensations
Other Revenues
Total Revenue
Expenses
Operating Expenses
Employee Expenses
Equipment, Office and Facility Expenses
Director Remuneration
Other Expenses
Asset Management Fee
Net Compensatory Security
Bad Debts
Doubtful Accounts
Compensatory Security
Governmental Loss Compensatory Security
Total Expenses
Operating Profit
Other Comprehensive Profit (Loss)
Unrealized Profit (Loss) from Valuation of
Available-for-Sale Investment Value
Loss from Actuarial Science Principle-Based Estimation
According to Employee Benefit Program
Other Comprehensive Profit (Loss)
Total Comprehensive Profit
Earnings per Share
Basic Earnings per Share

3.1
3.1
4.8
4.18

4,803,247,188.60
274,061,883.90
2,228,408,318.16
238,011,574.42
7,543,728,965.08

4,475,535,151.04
432,117,450.77
1,090,083,043.47
261,098,305.28
6,258,833,950.56

235,563,771.97
46,860,554.57
5,636,688.55
77,991,859.03
7,512,392.23

221,355,403.33
37,993,521.59
4,876,055.76
67,605,296.13
6,796,819.54

Revenues

3.2

4.8

4.15

(70,395,544.02)

145,251,611.07

4.9

(179,027.77)
(70,574,571.79)
270,383,952.56

(1,145,462.67)
144,106,148.40
690,062,534.38

5.90

8.15

Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Signed .......................................................
(Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon)
Chairman of the Board

121,674,507.94
61,467,975.97
6,256,732,968.67 5,280,550,557.24
(1,777,610,620.39) (1,057,851,108.45)
2,228,408,318.16 1,090,083,043.47
7,202,770,440.73 5,712,877,564.58
340,958,524.35
545,956,385.98

Signed .......................................................
(Mr. Nitid Manoonporn)
President
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Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation

Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
For the Year Ended 31 December 2015

สินทรัพย์

Notes

Balance as at
1 January 2014
Legal Reserves
Paid Dividend
Total
Comprehensive Profit 4.15
Balance as at
31 January 2014
Balance as at
1 January 2015
Legal Reserves
Paid Dividend
4.14
Total
Comprehensive Profit 4.15
Balance as at
31 January 2015

Unit : Baht

Other
Compositions
of Shareholders’ Accumulated Profit (Loss)
Equity
Issued and
(Below)
Paid-Up Capital Surplus
Capital from Appropriated
Changes in
Unappropriated
Investment Legal Reserve
Value
6,702,473,000.00

Total

18,184,294.66 54,469,456.00 465,566,795.59 7,240,693,546.25

-

-

54,595,638.60 (54,595,638.60)

-

-

-

-

145,251,611.07

-

-

(162,870,093.90) (162,870,093.90)
544,810,923.31

690,062,534.38

6,702,473,000.00 163,435,905.73 109,065,094.60 792,911,986.40 7,767,885,986.73

6,702,473,000.00 163,435,905.73 109,065,094.60 792,911,986.40 7,767,885,986.73
-

-

-

-

-

-

(70,395,544.02)

-

6,702,473,000.00

34,095,852.44 (34,095,852.44)

-

(209,117,157.60) (209,117,157.60)
340,779,496.58

270,383,952.56

93,040,361.71 143,160,947.04 890,478,472.94 7,829,152,781.69

Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Signed .......................................................
(Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon)
Chairman of the Board
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Signed .......................................................
(Mr. Nitid Manoonporn)
President

Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation

Statement of Cash Flow

For the Year Ended 31 December 2015
สินทรัพย์

Notes

2015

Unit : Baht
2014

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit from Operation
Reconciled and Adjusted Entry of Profit from Operation
in Term of Cash Received (Paid) from Operating Activities
Depreciation and Amortization
Bad Debts and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Compensatory Security
Provisions
Loss from Exchange Rate
(Gain) from Asset Amortization
Unrealized (Gain) from Investment
Interest Income
Cash of Interest Received
Profit from Operation before Change in Operating
Assets and Liabilities
Decrease (Increase) in Operating Assets
Guarantee Receivables
Accrued Guarantee Fee Receivables
Other Current Assets
Other Non-Current Assets
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Advanced Guarantee Fees
Governmental Subsides for Guarantee Fees
Governmental Compensation for PGS Project Loss
Fee Waiting for Payback to Debtor
Other Liabilities
Cash Payment from Operating Activities
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

340,958,524.35

545,956,385.98

18,851,207.13
6,378,407,476.61
450,797,697.77
5,545,218.12
18,852.00
(576,855.06)
(266,549,491.67)
(226,355,342.58)
241,632,725.13

15,138,949.08
5,342,018,533.21
32,231,935.02
4,340,208.47
6,762.36
(2,048,296.02)
(425,320,631.23)
(248,421,479.38)
251,143,024.34

6,942,730,011.80

5,515,045,391.83

(6,371,281,977.23)
(1,025,957,538.86)
1,998,520.49
(7,231,955.80)

(5,338,978,453.21)
(96,341,200.79)
126,814.75
(4,000,078.64)

(7,025,081.15)
3,992,817.42
(1,323,151,303.46)
202,789,549.54
(3,967,243.97)
(8,529,834,213.02)
(1,587,104,201.22)

22,614,424.57
(12,674,946.01)
(339,703,043.47)
17,904,217.24
(5,751,052,265.56)
(236,006,873.73)

Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation

Statement of Cash Flow (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2015

สินทรัพย์

Notes

2015

Unit : Baht
2014

Cash Flow from Investment Activities
Cash Payment in Temporary Investment
Cash Payment in Long-Term Investment
Cash Payment from Property, Plant and Equipment
Purchase
Cash Received from Intangible Asset Purchase
Cash Payment from Temporary Investment
Cash Received from Long-Term Investment
Cash Received from Sales of Property and Plant and
Equipment
Net Cash Received from Investment Activities
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Cash Payment for Dividend
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1 January
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31 December

4.1

(3,944,481,591.04)
(1,025,000,000.00)

(6,627,816,429.33)
(500,000,000.00)

(67,194,716.95)
(8,188,564.40)
7,586,002,412.16
-

(28,662,061.28)
(6,481,975.40)
6,720,002,365.99
595,000,000.00

784,000.00
2,541,921,539.77

2,115,000.00
154,156,899.98

(209,117,157.60)
(209,117,157.60)
745,700,180.95
38,577,402.41
784,277,583.36

(162,870,093.90)
(162,870,093.90)
(244,720,067.65)
283,297,470.06
38,577,402.41

Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Signed .......................................................
(Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon)
Chairman of the Board

82

Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
Annual Report 2015

Signed .......................................................
(Mr. Nitid Manoonporn)
President

Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2015

1. General Information and Operation of TCG
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) was founded as a juristic person according to Small Industry Credit
Guarantee Corporation Act B.E. 2534 (1991) which has been effective since 30 December 1991. The Headquarter
is located at 2922/243 Charn Issara Tower 2, 17th-18th Floor, New Petchburi Road, Bangkapi, Huay Kwang,
Bangkok 10310.
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) was established for performing credit guarantee service and
operation in relation to small industrial business (industrial engagement, handicraft manufacture, or other
business engagements as determined by the Board. However, they are in the nature of small business
owned by private sector parties who possess fixed assets according to the number determined in Ministerial
Regulation) for ability to accelerate credit distributions nationwide, resulting in more benefit toward social
and economic development of the country.

2. Criteria of Financial Statements Preparation and Presentation
2.1 Criteria of Financial Statements Preparation

		
		
		
		
		
		
		

These financial statements have been prepared according to Financial Report Standard and Accounting
Practical Guideline promulgated by Federation of Accounting Professions under Accounting Act B.E. 2543
(2000). Format of Financial Statements Presentation According to Accounting Standards TAS No. 1
(Revised 2013) on Financial Statements Presentation and Financial Statements Transaction Preparation
According to Proclamation of Department of Business Development on Determination of Brief
Transactions Required to be Available in Financial Statements B.E. 2011 dated 28 September 2011 which
has been issued based on the content in Section 11, Paragraph 3 of Accounting Act B.E. 2543 (2000).

2.2 Application of Accounting Estimates

		 In preparation of financial statements to be in line with Financial Reporting Standard, the executives shall
		 exercise their discretions on various respects of estimates and assumptions that affect the determination
		 on accounting policy and reporting of the sum in relation to assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and
		 disclosure of information for assets and contingent liabilities. The actual occurred result may be different
		 from estimation.
		 Estimates and assumptions applied in financial statements preparation shall be continuously reviewed.
		 The adjustment of estimates is recorded in the said accounting period that is reviewed under review and
		 in the future period that is affected.
		 The information of the estimates of uncertainties and significant assumptions applied in compliance
		 with accounting policy that contains the materiality for recognition of the sum in TCG’s financial statements
		 are disclosed in Notes to Financial Statements as follows.
			 4.2 Investment
			 4.4 Receivables from Guarantee and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
			 4.5 Net Property, Plant and Equipment
			 4.6 Net Intangible Assets
			 4.9 Provisions
			 4.16 Credit Guarantee Obligation for Small Industry
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2.3 Measurement of Fair Value

		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

From 1 January 2015, TCG has observed according to Financial Reporting Standards TFRS 13 on Measurement
of Fair Value. The observance based on this standard has no materiality impact toward operating results
reported in financial statements. The main conceptual framework of the new accounting policy regarding
fair value measurement is as follows.

		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

TCG measures fair value applying fair value hierarchy that reflects the materiality of the information used
in valuation as follows:

		
		
		

Level 3 Unobservable information including the case of asset or liability measurement from valuation
without use of observable information and information that has impact on fair value materiality, are
referred.

		
		

The transfer and change of fair value hierarchy occurs upon change of source or observable level of the
information used in fair value measurement.

Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price acquired from sales of assets or payment for transfer of liabilities between principle
market participants as at value measurement date. In the even of no principle market, the most
advantageous market where can be entered by TCG in value measurement date. TCG’s fair valuation
of asset which is non-financial asset is under the assumption that the said asset generates maximum
economic benefit.

Level 1 Bid-Ask Price in the market with liquidity for the same assets or liabilities is referred.
Level 2 Other directly or indirectly observable information apart from information in Level 1 of the same
assets or liabilities, and Bid-Ask Price either in the market with or without liquidity of similar financial tools
or valuation techniques using directly or indirectly observable information, are referred.

2.4 Compliance with New Accounting Standards, New Financial Reporting Standards,
		 Accounting Standard-Based Interpretation, and New Financial Reporting
		 Standard-Based Interpretation
		
		
		
		
		
		

Federation of Accounting Professions promulgated new accounting standards, new financial reporting
standards, accounting standard-based interpretation, and new financial reporting standard-based
interpretation. These are effective for financial statements with accounting period beginning on or after
1 January 2015 onwards. Accounting Standards, Financial Reporting Standards, Accounting StandardBased Interpretation, and Financial Reporting Standard-Based Interpretation that are not observed in
financial statements preparation and have no impact on financial statements are as follows.

			
		 TAS 2
		 TAS 11
		 TAS 12
		 TAS 23
		 TAS 27
		 TAS 28
		 TAS 29
		 TAS 40
84

Accounting Standards
(Revised 2014)
Inventories
(Revised 2014)
Construction Contracts
(Revised 2014)
Income Taxes
(Revised 2014)
Borrowing Cost
(Revised 2014)
Separate Financial Statements
(Revised 2014)
Investment in Associates and Joint Venture
(Revised 2014)
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economics
(Revised 2014)
Investment Property
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Effective Date
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015

			
Financial Reporting Standards
		 TFRS 3
(Revised 2014)
Business Combinations
		 TFRS 4
(Revised 2014)
Insurance Contracts
		 TFRS 5
(Revised 2014)
Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
				
Operation
		 TFRS 6
(Revised 2014)
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral
		 TFRS 8
(Revised 2014)
Operating Segment
		 TFRS 11 		
Co-Undertaking
		 TFRS 12 		
Disclosure of Information Relating to Interest
				
in Other Businesses
			
Accounting Standard-Based Interpretation
		 SIC 15
(Revised 2014)
Operating Leases - Incentives
		 SIC 25
(Revised 2014)
Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status
				
of an Entity or its Shareholders
		 SIC 29
(Revised 2014)
Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures
		 SIC 31
(Revised 2014)
Revenue-Barter Transactions Involving
				
Advertising Services
			
Advertising Services Financial Reporting Standards-Based Interpretation
		 TFRIC 5
(Revised 2014)
Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,
				
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
		 TFRIC 12 (Revised 2014)
Service Concession Arrangements
		 TFRIC 13 (Revised 2014)
Customer Loyalty Programs
		 TFRIC 15 (Revised 2014)
Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
		 TFRIC 17 (Revised 2014)
Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
		 TFRIC 18 (Revised 2014)
Transfers of Assets from Customer
		 TFRIC 20 		
Stripping Cost during Production Period for
				
Surface Mining

Effective Date
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
Effective Date
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
Effective Date
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015
1 January 2015

2.5 Accounting Standards and Financial Reporting Standards that are newly issued
		 and revised but not yet effective

		 Federation of Accounting Professions promulgated new accounting standards, new financial reporting
		 standards, accounting standard-based interpretation, and new financial reporting standard-based
		 interpretation. These are effective for financial statements with accounting period beginning on or after
		 1 January 2016 onwards as follows.
			
Accounting Standards
Effective Date
		 TAS 1
(Revised 2015)
Presentation of Financial Statements
1 January 2016
		 TAS 2
(Revised 2015)
Inventories
1 January 2016
		 TAS 7
(Revised 2015)
Cash Flow Statement
1 January 2016
		 TAS 8
(Revised 2015)
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
1 January 2016
				
Estimates and Errors
			
Accounting Standards
Effective Date
		 TAS 10
(Revised 2015)
Events after Reporting Period
1 January 2016
		 TAS 11
(Revised 2015)
Construction Contracts
1 January 2016
		 TAS 12
(Revised 2015)
Income Taxes
1 January 2016
		 TAS 16
(Revised 2015)
Property, Plant and Equipment
1 January 2016
		 TAS 17
(Revised 2015)
Leases
1 January 2016
		 TAS 18
(Revised 2015)
Revenue
1 January 2016
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		 TAS 19
(Revised 2015)
Employee Benefits
1 January 2016
		 TAS 20
(Revised 2015)
Accounting for Governmental Grants and Disclosure 1 January 2016
				
of Governmental Assistance
		 TAS 21
(Revised 2015)
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
1 January 2016
		 TAS 23
(Revised 2015)
Borrowing Cost
1 January 2016
		 TAS 24
(Revised 2015)
Related Party Disclosures
1 January 2016
		 TAS 26
(Revised 2015)
Accounting and Reporting of Retirement Benefit Plans 1 January 2016
		 TAS 27
(Revised 2015)
Separate Financial Statements
1 January 2016
		 TAS 28
(Revised 2015)
Investment in Associates and Joint Venture
1 January 2016
		 TAS 29
(Revised 2015)
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economics 1 January 2016
		 TAS 33
(Revised 2015)
Earnings per Share
1 January 2016
		 TAS 34
(Revised 2015)
Interim Financial Statements
1 January 2016
		 TAS 36
(Revised 2015)
Impairment of Assets
1 January 2016
		 TAS 37
(Revised 2015)
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
1 January 2016
				
Assets
		 TAS 38
(Revised 2015)
Intangible Assets
1 January 2016
		 TAS 40
(Revised 2015)
Investment Property
1 January 2016
		 TAS 41
(Revised 2015)
Agriculture
1 January 2016
			
Financial Reporting Standards
Effective Date
		 TFRS 2
(Revised 2015)
Share-Based Payment
1 January 2016
		 TFRS 3
(Revised 2015)
Business Combinations
1 January 2016
		 TFRS 4
(Revised 2015)
Insurance Contracts
1 January 2016
		 TFRS 5
(Revised 2015)
Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
1 January 2016
				
Discontinued Operation
		 TFRS 6
(Revised 2015)
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 1 January 2016
		 TFRS 8
(Revised 2015)
Operating Segment
1 January 2016
		 TFRS 10
(Revised 2015)
Consolidated Income Statements
1 January 2016
		 TFRS 11
(Revised 2015)
Co-Undertaking
1 January 2016
			
Financial Reporting Standards
Effective Date
		 TFRS 12
(Revised 2015)
Disclosure of Information Relating to Interest in
1 January 2016
				
Other Businesses
		 TFRS 13
(Revised 2015)
Measurement of Fair Value
1 January 2016
			
Accounting Standards-Based Interpretation
Effective Date
		 SIC 10
(Revised 2015)
Governmental Assistance-No Specific Relating
1 January 2016
				
to Operating Activities
		 SIC 15
(Revised 2015)
Operating Leases - Incentives
1 January 2016
		 SIC 25
(Revised 2015)
Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an
1 January 2016
				
Entity or its Shareholders
		 SIC 27
(Revised 2015)
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving 1 January 2016
				
the Legal Form of a Lease
		 SIC 29
(Revised 2015)
Service Concession Arrangements : Disclosures
1 January 2016
		 SIC 31
(Revised 2015)
Revenue-Barter Transactions Involving
1 January 2016
				
Advertising Services
		 SIC 32
(Revised 2015)
Intangible Assets - Website Cost
1 January 2016
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Financial Reporting Standards-Based Interpretation
		 TFRIC 1
(Revised 2015)
Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration
				
and Similar Liabilities
		 TFRIC 4
(Revised 2015)
Determining whether an Arrangement contain
				
a Lease
		 TFRIC 5
(Revised 2015)
Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,
				
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
		 TFRIC 7
(Revised 2015)
Applying the Restatement Approach under Financial
				
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economics
		 TFRIC 10 (Revised 2015)
Interim Financial Statements and Impairment
		 TFRIC 12 (Revised 2015)
Service Concession Arrangements
		 TFRIC 13 (Revised 2015)
Customer Loyalty Programs
		 TFRIC 14 (Revised 2015)
Restrictions of Assets According to Benefit Program,
				
Requirement of Minimum Capital and Interaction
				
of these Transactions for Accounting Standard
				
TAS 19 (Revised 2014) on Employee Benefits
		 TFRIC 15 (Revised 2015)
Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
		 TFRIC 17 (Revised 2015)
Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
		 TFRIC 18 (Revised 2015)
Transfers of Assets from Customers
		 TFRIC 20 (Revised 2015)
Stripping Cost during Production Period for
				
Surface Mining
		 TFRIC 21 (Revised 2015)
Levies
		
		
		

Effective Date
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016

1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016

TCG has arranged the preparedness in applying the said Accounting Standards, Financial Reporting
Standards, Accounting Standards-Based and Financial Reporting Standard-Based Interpretation, in relation
to observance which is during consideration on contingent impact towards financial statements.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policy
3.1 Revenue Recognition

		 3.1.1 Guarantee fee revenue is recognized upon approval on financial limit of project credit by yearly
				 advance collection based on determined rate and average of recognition according to time
				 proportion criteria.
		 3.1.2 Revenue derived from financial management
				 Interest received from cash at bank, certificate of deposit, bond and debenture are recognized
					 based on accrual basis.
				 Amortization of the variance between cost and par value of the investment money is recognized
					 as the interest income or reduced according to the time proportion through the consideration
					 on the real rate of return.
				 Profit from sales of debt securities and equity instruments are recognized as revenue in the
					 accounting period of sales.
		 3.1.3 Interest received is recognized according to time proportion criteria taking real rate of return of
				 asset into consideration.
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3.2 Revenue Recognition

		

It is recognized according to accrual basis.

3.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents

		
		

Cash and cash equivalents mean cash, financial institution deposit, and temporary investment with
payback maturity for not more than 3 months period.

3.4 Temporary Investment

		 3.4.1 Temporary investment which is the investment under TCG management consists of government
				 bond, fixed deposit, note receivables and certificate of deposit with period from 3 months but
				 not more than 1 year. It is presented with cost price.
		 3.4.2 Temporary investment which is the investment in private fund being managed by fund management
				 companies is the part of investment in available-for-sale securities. Marketable bond that is
				 classified as the available-for-sale security is presented in Statement of Financial Position with fair
				 value. Fair value of bond is calculated from the formula of free-risk rate of return that is adjusted
				 with proper risk rate. The increased or decreased book value of available-for-sale security is
				 recorded as comprehensive unrealized profit or loss and presented under the Shareholders’ Equity.
				 Marketable security is the available-for-sale security that is presented with fair value. The change in
				 fair value of available-for-sale security is recognized. The account of allowance for investment
				 value adjustment is recorded and presented as debit transaction of investment account, and
				 recognized as the separate transaction in Shareholder’s Equity until selling of investment. The
				 change in that fair value is recorded in Comprehensive Profit and Loss Statement.
		 TCG will test the impairment of the investment when there is the indication that that investment may have
		 impairment and it is adjusted by comparing with book value accepted for redemption of unit trust. The
		 loss from occurred impairment is recorded in Comprehensive Profit and Loss Statement. In disposal of
		 investment, variance between net cash obtained from sales and book value of that investment is recorded
		 in Comprehensive Profit and Loss. When some part of investment in the same type of debt securities is
		 sold, book value of the sold investment is calculated applying Weighted Average Method from total
		 holding quantity.

3.5 Receivable from Guarantee

		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

Receivable from guarantee represents the receivable that TCG pays debts to the banks according to
guarantee contracts that are reclaimable from the debtors (the borrowers). The interest is charged at
7.50% according to Civil and Commercial Code and recognized on a cash basis due to high possibility
that such interest will be uncollectible since the receivable from guarantee has been lack of liquidity
and has already been sued for execution by the bank (the lender). It has also been classified as the
non-performing debtor. From the past collection experience, such outstanding receivable has been
collectible for very few amount when compared with the outstanding receivables as at the date in the
Statement of Financial Position. Therefore, TCG has appropriated the allowance for doubtful accounts
at the rate of 100% according to the resolution of TCG’s Board of Directors No. 3/2001 dated 29 March
2001. Bad debts written off from the account have been taken to reduce the amount appropriated for
allowance for doubtful accounts.

3.6 Long-Term Investments

		
		

Fixed deposit, note receivables, and certificate of deposit with from 1 year and over period are presented
with cost price.
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3.7 Property, Plant and Equipment

		 Property, plant and equipment are presented in Statement of Financial Position with cost price deducted
		 with accumulated depreciation. The depreciation is calculated by Straight-Line Method according to
		 estimated useful life of asset as follows.
				 Type of Asset				
Useful Life
			 Plant							
20 Years
			 Office Furniture and Fixture		
5-10 Years
			 Office Equipment					
5 Years
			 Computer and Equipment				
3 Years
			 Vehicle						
5 Years
			 Improvement of Office Building			
5-10 Years
		
		
		
		
		

Profit (loss) from asset disposal is considered from the variance between net cash from disposal and book
value of the assets and recognized in Comprehensive Profit and Loss Statement.
The expenses relating to addition, renewal or improvement of assets that causes the substantial increase
in the current replacement cost of asset will be combined to be cost price of asset. In part of repair cost
and maintenance cost, they are recognized as expenses in the occurred accounting period.

3.8 Intangible Assets

		
		
		

Intangible assets are presented in Statement of Financial Positions with cost price deducted with
accumulated amortization. Accumulated amortization is calculated by Straight-Line Method according
to useful life. The useful life is defined for 3-10 years.

3.9 Operating Leases

		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

Leases of property, plant and equipment whereas the lessee almost bears risk and receives return of
ownership is deemed as the financial lease which is recorded as capital expense with fair value of the
leased assets or net present value of the amount payable based on lease depending upon whichever
value is lower. The said payable amount is allocated between financial liabilities and expenses in order
to acquire fixed interest rate per outstanding liabilities under consideration and separation into each
contract. The financial lease-based obligation which is deducted with financial expense is recorded as
liability. The part of interest paid is recorded in Comprehensive Profit and Loss Statement throughout
the lease so that interest rate in each period is the fixed interest for liability balance. Depreciation is
calculated for acquired assets based on financial lease throughout useful life of the leased asset or lease
term depending on whichever duration is lesser.

		
		
		
		
		

Asset lease with most of risk and return of ownership belongs to the lesser is classified as operating risk.
The payment under operating lease is recorded as expense in Comprehensive Profit and Loss Statement
applying Straight-Line Method throughout lease term. The expense occurred from cancellation of operating
lease prior-expiration of lease term such as fine payable to the lessor is recorded as expense in the
accounting period with contractual cancellation.

3.10 Compensatory Security Reserves

		
TCG has provided compensatory security reserves for Normal Projects and Portfolio Guarantee Scheme
		
(PGS) Projects as follows.
		 3.10.1 Normal Projects
				 TCG is classified as the specific financial institution with its duty to grant credit guarantee in part of the
				 financial institution’s debtors that have insufficient collaterals. TCG’s policy of credit guarantee
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approved from TCG’s Board of Directors in the Meeting No. 12/2006 held on 21 December 2006 has
been regularly reviewed and revised. The latest revision made in the Meeting No. 16/2009 held on
28 October 2009 formulated debt classification policy and separation of compensatory security reserves
for normal projects particularly Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) which have been classified
as sub-standard classification, doubtful classification and doubtful loss classification at the rates of
20, 50 and 100%, respectively, as proper with the contingent loss without requirement to appropriate
reserves for pass classified debt and specially mentioned debts like general financial institutions.
Ministry of Finance has alleviated TCG in duration extension for compliance with Criteria of
International Accounting Standards IAS 39 but not exceeding year 2012. TCG’s Board of Directors in
the Meeting No. 1/2009 on 29 January 2009 resolved to reserve each type of compensatory security
reserve as follows:
In 2010 and 2011, more compensatory security reserve was appropriated in the rate of 20% and 50%,
respectively.
In 2012 onwards, compensatory security reserve was appropriated in the rate of 100%.

		
TCG has classified debts and appropriated compensatory security reserve according to responsibility and
		
contingent loss as determined in the criteria of guarantee for each type of guarantee. TCG has classified
		
the type of guarantee obligation as follows.
				 1. Normal-Type Guarantee is responsible for guarantee obligation plus interest from default date to
					 litigation date or not exceeding the condition according to the guarantee specified in Letter of
					 Guarantee.
				 2. NPL-Type Guarantee is responsible according to guarantee obligation plus interest from default
					 date to the date that the case is final.
				 3. Guarantee Line Allocation-Type Guarantee to Lender (MOU) is responsible according to guarantee
					 obligation plus interest from default date to litigation date or not exceeding 180 days as specified
					 in Letter of Guarantee.
				 4. Risk Participation (RP) - Type Guarantee is the responsible for half of the loss part (the loss
					 part is equal to outstanding debt obligation deducted with sold collateral value) plus interest
					 from default date to litigation date but not exceeding 180 days.
		
TCG has already separated compensatory security reserves for the year ended 31 December 2015 by
		
considering as expense of net compensatory security in Comprehensive Profit and Loss.
		 3.10.2 Portfolio Guarantee Scheme (PGS)
				 Portfolio Guarantee Scheme (PGS) Projects have consisted of PGS Phase 1 Project, PGS Phase 2
				 Project, PGS Phase 3 Project, PGS Phase 4 Project, PGS Phase 5 Project, PGS for Commercial Bank
				 No. 1, 2, 3, and 4 Projects, PGS for People Sector’s Debt (Informal Debt) Project, PGS by Financial
				 Institution Phase 1 Project, PGS by Financial Institution Phase 2 Project, PGS by Financial Institution
				 Phase 3 Project, PGS for SME Bank Project, PGS FLOOD 2011 Phase 1 and Phase 2 Projects, PGS
				 for Specialized Financial Institution Project, PGS New/Start-up SMEs Project, and PGS for Productivity
				 Improvement Loan, PGS for Micro SMEs with the Specialized Financial Institution Phase 2 Project,
				 Renew PGS 1 - 4 Projects, PGS Micro Entrepreneurs Project, PGS SMEs Halal Trade Project, PGS
				 for OTOP Enterprises and Community Enterprises Project, and PGS Policy Loan Project. The
				 compensatory security reserves have been separated as follows:
					 1. PGS Phase 1 and Phase 2 Projects. They are the credit guarantee projects that have
						 mutual agreements with financial institutions in order to determine guarantee condition
						 and liability proportion throughout 5-year project term (project commencement on 6
						 March 2009 and 7 March 2010, respectively). The financial limit for PGS Phase 1 is Baht
						 30,000 million and for PGS Phase 2 is Baht 30,000 million. PGS Phase 1 Project determines
						 maximum loss which is guarantee obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG)
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						 for 15.50% of average guarantee obligation throughout the project term. PGS Phase 2
						 Project defines maximum loss which is the guarantee obligation of Non Performing Credit
						 Guarantee (NPG) for 15.50% of average guarantee obligation throughout the project by
						 separation of compensatory security reserves of the entire amount of fee revenue
						 received in that year and charging the annual fee at 1.75% of guarantee line. PGS Phase 1
						 Project is separated into the part that TCG receives from guarantee fee charge at 8.75%
						 and the other 6.75% that receives from governmental compensation. PGS Phase 2 Project
						 is separated into the part that TCG receives from guarantee fee charge at the rate of 8.75%
						 and the other 6.25% that receives from governmental compensation. Therefore, TCG ap
						 propriates compensatory security reserve of the entire amount of fee revenue received
						 in that year and the loss variance of PGS Phase 2 Project that is unpaid for governmental
						 compensation for the other 0.50%.
					 2. PGS Phase 3 Project. It is the guarantee project supported from the Government in
						 providing assistance on credit guarantee to SMEs for continuity from PGS Phase 2 Project
						 under Baht 36,000 million of guarantee limit, 5-year guarantee period, and expiry date of
						 credit guarantee application acceptance on 31 December 2011. The maximum loss which
						 is guarantee obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is determined to be
						 15.50% of average guarantee obligation throughout project term. The annual fee rate is
						 charged at 1.75% of guaranteed financial limit being classified into the part that TCG
						 receives from guarantee fee charge in the rate of 8.75% and another 6.25% that is
						received from the governmental compensation. Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory
						 security reserve of the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year and variance of
						 loss of PGS Phase 3 Project that has not yet been compensated from the Government for
						 another 0.50%.
					 3. PGS Phase 4 Project. It is the guarantee project to assist potential SMEs with credit
						 requirements but lack of collateral to gain the access opportunity to financial institution
						 credits. It is the project continuing from PGS Phase 3 Project pursuant to the Cabinet’s
						 resolution on 24 April 2012 for Baht 24,000 million of guarantee limit, 5-year guarantee
						 period, and expiry date of guarantee application within 31 December 2012. It is provided
						 that maximum loss which is the guarantee obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee
						 (NPG) is 15% of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term for
						 charging annual guarantee fee rate at 1.75%. TCG appropriates compensatory security
						 reserve of the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year.
					 4. PGS Phase 5 Project. It is the guarantee project to assist potential SMEs in all industrial
						 groups but lack of collateral to gain the access opportunity to financial institution credits
						 and also support Thai SMEs entrepreneurs in business operation in abroad. This is the
						 liquidity reinforcement to SMEs who have been affected from increase in minimum wage.
						The guarantee financial limit for total of 3 years is Baht 240,000 million for 7-year guarantee
						period. The application is commenced from 1 January 2013 and expired within 31 December
						 2015. However, in each year, it is regarded as 1 Portfolio (totaling to 3 Portfolios). The
						 maximum loss which is the guarantee obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG)
						 is determined for 18% of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee
						 term. The annual guarantee fee rate is charged at 1.75% of credit guarantee limit throughout
						 7-year guarantee term, being classified into the part that TCG receives from guarantee fee
						 charge in the rate of 12.25% and another 5.75% that is received for compensation from
						 the Government, estimated to be the financial limit for not over than Baht 13,800 million.
						 Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory security reserve of the entire amount of fee
						 revenue received in that year.
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						 PGS Phase 5 Project (Revised). It is the guarantee project to assist potential all SMEs
						 pursuant to the Cabinet’s resolution on 14 July 2015 and 8 September 2015. The guarantee
						 financial limit has been increased from PGS Phase 5 Project for Baht 20,000 million. When
						 it is combined with the primary financial limit balance, it is the new guarantee financial
						limit for PGS Phase 5 Project (Revised) for Baht 100,000 million.Therefore, total financial limit
						of PGS Phase 5 Project is Baht 260,000 million for 7-year guarantee period. The application
						 is commenced from 8 June 2015 and expired within 30 June 2016. When the application
						 for TCG guarantee is expired, TCG will deem that the guarantee obligation on the lender
						 is 1 Portfolio. The annual guarantee fee rate is charged at 1.75% of credit guarantee limit
						 throughout 7-year guarantee term. The government subsidizes fee in lieu of SMEs in Year
						 1 at the rate of 1.75%, Year 2 in the rate of 1.25%, Year 3 in the rate of 0.75% and Year 4
						 in the rate of 0.25%. From Year 5-7, SMEs is charged at the annual rate of 1.75% of credit
						 guarantee limit. Therefore, TCG’s money receipt is classified into the part that TCG
						 receives from guarantee fee charge from SMEs in the rate of 8.25% and another 4% that
						is received for compensation from the Government. The maximum loss which is the guarantee
						 obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is determined for 22.50% of average
						 guarantee obligation after expiry date of guarantee term. The government grants the
						 loss compensation in total financial limit of the whole PGS Phase 5 Project for not over
						 than Baht 14,250 million. Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory security reserve of
						 the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year.
					 5. PGS for Commercial Bank No. 1 Project. It is the Memorandum of Understanding on
						 Collaboration under Credit Guarantee Project in term of PGS for commercial bank and
						 TCG for financial limit of Baht 3,000 million so that the bank can take it for allocation of
							guarantee line to individual Small and Medium Sized Enterprises (SMEs) entrepreneurs
						 under criteria and practice in term of PGS with not over than 7-year project term (project
						 commencement on 26 March 2010). The maximum loss which is the guarantee obligation
						 of Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is determined for 12% of average guarantee
						 obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term. The annual fee rate is charged at 1.75%
						 of guaranteed financial limit. Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory security reserve
						 of the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year for not over than 12% in total
						 throughout 7-year project term.
					 6. PGS for Commercial Bank No. 2 Project. It is the Memorandum of Understanding on
						 Collaboration under Guarantee Project in term of PGS for commercial bank and
						 TCG for financial limit of Baht 6,000 million so that the bank can take it for allocation
						 of guarantee line to each Small and Medium Sized Enterprises (SMEs) entrepreneur under
						 criteria and practice in term of PGS with not over than 5-year project term (project
						 commencement on 9 September 2013). The maximum loss which is the guarantee
						 obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is determined for 8.50% of aver
						 age guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term. The annual fee rate is
						 charged at 1.75% of guarantee line. Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory security
						 reserve of the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year for not over
						 than 8.50% in total throughout 5-year project term.					
					 7. PGS for People Sector’s Debt (Informal Debt) Problem Solution Project. It is the credit
						 guarantee project according to governmental policy and implemented under Credit
						 Guarantee Project in term of PGS for People Sector’s Debt (Informal Debt) Problem
						 Resolution Project in types of 8-year guarantee period for guarantee financial limit of Baht
						 3,000 million, and 12-year guarantee period for financial limit of Baht 2,000 million in
						 order to guarantee credit to Small and Medium Sized Enterprises (SMEs) entrepreneur that
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						participates in the Project without collateral or with insufficient collateral. That entrepreneur
						shall be passed the procedures of informal debt negotiation, debt restructuring negotiation,
						 and credit consideration according to the rule of the project participative bank. Both
						 types of the Project define maximum loss which is guarantee obligation of Non Performing
						 Credit Guarantee (NPG) for 15% and 23% of average guarantee obligation on the expiry
						 date of guarantee term, respectively. The annual fee rate is charged at 2% of guarantee
						 line. Thus, TCG appropriates compensatory security reserve of fee revenue received in
						 that year altogether for not over than 15% and 23% throughout 8-year project term and
						 12-year project term, respectively.
					 8. PGS by Financial Institution Phase 1 Project. It is the credit guarantee project between
						 TCG and individual financial institution pursuant to the resolution of TCG’s Board of
						 Directors No. 5/2010 dated 26 March 2010. The credit guarantee is classified into 2 types
						 including 5-year period and 7-year period. The combined financial limit for both types is
						 not over than Baht 10,000 million. The maximum loss which is the guarantee obligation of
						 Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is defined for 8.50% and 12% of average guarantee
						 obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term, respectively. The annual fee rate for both
						 types is charged at 1.75% of guarantee line. Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory
						 security reserve of the fee revenue received in that year altogether for not over than
						 8.50% and 12% throughout 5-year and 7-year project terms, respectively.
					 9. PGS by Financial Institution Phase 2 Project. It is the credit guarantee project between
						 TCG and individual financial institution pursuant to the resolution of TCG’s Board of
						 Directors No. 3/2011 dated 27 October 2011. The credit guarantee is classified into 2 types
						 including 5-year period and 7-year period. The combined financial limit for both types is
						 not over than Baht 5,000 million. The maximum loss which is the guarantee obligation of
						 Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is defined for 8.50% and 12% of average guarantee
						 obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term, respectively. The annual fee rate for
						both types is charged at 1.75% of guarantee line. Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory
						 security reserve of the fee revenue received in that year altogether for not over than
						 8.50% and 12% throughout 5-year and 7-year project terms, respectively.
					 10. PGS by Financial Institution Phase 3 Project. It is the credit guarantee project between
						 TCG and individual financial institution pursuant to the resolution of TCG’s Board of
						 Directors No. 13/2012 dated 24 October 2012. The credit guarantee is classified into 2
						 types including 5-year period and 7-year period. The combined financial limit for both
						 types is not over than Baht 10,000 million. The maximum loss which is the guarantee
						 obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is defined for 8.50% and 12% of
						 average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term, respectively. The
						 annual fee rate for both types is charged at 1.75% of guarantee line. Therefore, TCG
						 appropriates compensatory security reserve of the fee revenue received in that year
						 altogether for not over than 8.50% and 12% throughout 5-year and 7-year project terms,
						 respectively.
					 11. PGS by Financial Institution Phase 4 Project. It is the credit guarantee project between
						 TCG and individual financial institution pursuant to the consent resolution of TCG’s Board
						 of Directors No. 8/2015 dated 27 July 2015. The credit guarantee is classified into 3 periods
						 upon the guarantee application as follows.
							 1. Period 1 from 1 August 2015 to 31 July 2016
							 2. Period 2 from 1 August 2016 to 31 July 2017
							 3. Period 3 from 1 August 2017 to 31 July 2018
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						Upon expiry of application submission duration for TCG guarantee in each period, TCG
						 deems that guarantee obligation toward the lender in Period 1 is 1 Portfolio, Period 2 is
						 another Portfolio and Period 3 is another Portfolio for not over than 7-year guarantee term
						 from the issuance date of each letter of guarantee for SMEs. Total financial limit of
						 guarantee is million 10,000 Baht for the rate of guarantee fee charge at annual rate of
						 1.75% of guarantee line for each SME. Therefore, TCG appropriates the compensatory
						 security fee for not over than 12% of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of
						 guarantee term.
					 12. PGS for SME Bank Project. Pursuant to the Cabinet’s resolution on 12 April 2011 and the
						 Cabinet’s resolution on 3 May 2011, TCG’s Board of Directors’ resolution No. 1/2011 on
						 15 and 16 January 2011 and No. 8/2011 on 24 June 2011, they gave consent to approve
						 TCG to implement under Credit Guarantee Project in term of Portfolio Guarantee Scheme
						 in collaboration with SME Bank for total of 3 projects as follows.
						 1) Aid to Logistics Business, Franchise Business and Direct Sales Business Entrepreneurs
							 Project. The financial limit is Baht 2,000 million. The Cabinet’s resolution on 21 April
							 2011 gave consent to extend implementation period for financial aid project to Thai
							 logistics business entrepreneurs from former expiry date on 30 June 2011 to be expired
							 on 31 December 2011. The project period is 5 years and the expiry date of credit
							 guarantee application acceptance is within 31 December 2011. The target extension
							 was permitted to cover franchise business and direct sales business entrepreneurs. The
							 maximum loss which is the guarantee obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee
							(NPG) is defined for 7.50% of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee
							 term. The annual fee is charged at 1.75% of guarantee line. For guarantee fee in the
							 first year, the annual fee rate is charged at 0.75% whereas the Government subsidizes
							 the variance of guarantee fee of the first year to TCG at the annual rate of 1% of guarantee
							 line. It is separated into the part that TCG receives from guarantee fee charge for 7.75%
							 throughout the project term and the other 1% that receives from governmental
							 compensation in the first year. Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory security
							 reserve of the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year.
						 2) Aid Project for Entrepreneurs Affected from Assembly (in case that the entrepreneur
							 that has an insurance policy but not yet received indemnity from insurance company).
							 The financial limit is Baht 2,000 million. The Cabinet’s resolution on 3 April 2011 gave
							 consent for implementation of 5-year project period. The expiry date of credit
							 guarantee application acceptance is within 31 December 2011. The maximum loss
							 which is the guarantee obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is defined
							 for 9% of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term. The
							 annual fee is charged at 1.75% of guarantee line. For guarantee fee in the first year,
							 the annual fee is charged at 1% whereas the Government subsidizes the variance of
							 the guarantee fee for the first year to TCG at the annual rate of 0.75% of guarantee
							 line. It is separated into the part that TCG receives from guarantee fee charge for 8%
							 throughout the project term and the other 0.75% that receives from governmental
							 compensation in the first year. Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory security
							 reserve of the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year and the variance of
							 project loss that is not compensated from the Government for the other 0.25%.
						 3) Aid Project for Entrepreneurs Affected from Flood, Storm and Mudslide in 2011. The
							 financial limit is Baht 2,000 million. The Cabinet’s resolution on 3 May 2011 gave consent
							 for implementation of 5-year project period. The expiry date of credit guarantee
							 application acceptance is within 31 December 2011. The maximum loss which is the
							 guarantee obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is defined for 7.50%
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							 of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term. The annual
							 fee is charged at 1.75% of guarantee line. For guarantee fee in the 1st-2nd year, the
							 annual fee is charged at 1% whereas the Government subsidizes the variance of
							 guarantee fee of the 1st-2nd year to TCG at the annual rate of 0.75% of guarantee
							 line. It is separated into the part that TCG receives from guarantee fee charge for 7.25%
							 throughout the project term and the other 1.50% that receives from governmental
							 compensation in the 1st-2nd year. Therefore, TCG appropriatescompensatory security
							 reserve of the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year.
				 13. PGS FLOOD 2011 Project. Pursuant to the Cabinet’s resolution on 1 November 2011, it gave
					 consent to implement credit guarantee in term of Portfolio Guarantee Scheme to assist
					 SMEs entrepreneurs which have been affected from 2011 flood for the financial limit of Baht
					 100,000 million and not over than 7-year guarantee period. The expiry date of guarantee
					 application is within 31 October 2012. The maximum loss which is the guarantee obligation of
					 Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is determined for 30% of average guarantee obligation
					 on the expiry date of guarantee term. The Government compensates the actual loss but not
					 over than 17.75% of average guarantee obligation throughout the project term. The annual
					 guarantee fee rate is charged at 1.75% whereas the Government’s guarantee fee subsidy for
					 the 1st-3rd Year is granted to TCG at the annual rate of 1.75% of guarantee line. The fee is
					 charged from the user of the line in the 4th-7th Year at 1.75% of guarantee line. Then, TCG
					 has separated into the part that TCG receives from charge of guarantee fee for 7% and
					 another 5.25% that is paid from the governmental compensation. Therefore, TCG appropriates
					 compensatory security reserves of the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year
					 and the period of Phase 2 Project was extended. Pursuant to the Cabinet’s resolution on 15
					 August 2012, it gave consent to amend credit measure and extension of this project period in
					 order to assist SMEs entrepreneurs who have been affected from flood and located in flood
					 encountered areas according to the announcement of Department of Disaster Prevention and
					 Mitigation or have been SMEs that have been indirectly affected, and must be in line with
					 prescribed criteria. The extension application period is within 30 December 2012.
				 14. PGS for Specialized Financial Institution Phase 1 Project. It is the Memorandum of Understanding
					 on Collaboration under Credit Guarantee Project in term of PGS for specialized financial
					 institution and TCG for financial limit of Baht 700 million and not over than 7-year project
					 term (project commencement on 20 June 2012). The maximum loss which is the guarantee
					 obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is determined to be 10.60% of average
					 guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term. The annual guarantee fee rate is
					 charged at 1.55% of guarantee line. Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory security
					 reserve of fee revenue received in that year.
				 15. PGS New/Start-up SMEs Project. According to the Cabinet’s resolution on 24 April 2012, the
					 consent was given to implement credit guarantee for new entrepreneur that has business life
					 for not more than 2 years and is SMEs that is passed for training or under execution for the
					 financial limit of Baht 10,000 million with 7-year guarantee period. The maximum guarantee
					 financial limit is not more than Baht 2 million per individual entrepreneur. The guarantee
					 application is ended within 31 December 2012. The maximum loss which is the guarantee
					 obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is defined for 30% of average guarantee
					 obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term. The guarantee obligation which is NPG shall
					 not be over than 37.50% of average guarantee obligation after the anniversary date in each
					 year. The annual guarantee fee rate is charged at 2.50%. However, the Government shall
					 support the fee to SMEs in the first year at the rate of 1.75% charged from the client in the
					 rate of 0.75%. In addition, the Cabinet’s resolution on 7 January 2013 approved to extend
					 guarantee period to 3 years more from former expiry date on 31 December 2012 to be expired
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					 for credit application on 31 December 2015. SMEs qualification was adjusted from SMEs that
					 has engaged the business with not over than 2 years business life to be SMEs that has engaged
					 the business with not over than 3 years business life. Moreover, guarantee fee compensation
					 supported by the Government for fee to SMEs in the first was changed from former rate of
					 1.75% to be 2.50%. TCG therefore appropriates compensatory security reserve of the entire
					 amount of fee revenue received in that year.
				 16. PGS for Productivity Improvement Loan Project. According to the Cabinet’s resolution on 24
					 April 2012, the consent was given on credit guarantee implementation to support Productivity
					 Improvement Loan Project for SMEs that are passed for qualification consideration from
					 Department of Industry Promotion or certification by SME Bank. The financial limit is Baht 20,000
					 million within 2 years period. The guarantee period is 7 years and maximum guarantee financial
					 limit is not more than Baht 5 million per each entrepreneur. The guarantee application is ended
					 within 23 April 2014. The maximum loss as the guarantee obligation of Non Performing Credit
					 Guarantee (NPG) is defined for 10.50% of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of
					 guarantee term. The annual guarantee fee rate is charged in the rate of 1.75%. However, the
					 Government shall support the fee to SMEs in the first year at the rate of 1.75%. TCG therefore
					 appropriates compensatory security reserve of the whole amount of fee revenue received in
					 that year.
				 17. PGS for Micro SMEs with the Specialized Financial Institution Phase 2 Project. Pursuant to
					 TCG’s Board of Directors on 26 June 2013, it approved to implement credit guarantee to
					 support glass roots economic entrepreneurs in the financial limit of Baht 3,000 million within
					 1 year from the signing date of MOU for 7-year guarantee period and maximum credit financial
					 limit for not over than Baht 1 million per individual entrepreneur. The maximum loss which is
					 the guarantee obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is determined to be 10%
					 of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term. The annual guarantee
					 fee rate is charged at 1.50%. Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory security reserve of
					 the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year.
				 18. Renew PGS 1-4 Project for support on PGS Phase 1-4 Projects with maturity of guarantee term.
					 In accordance with the resolution of TCG’s Board of Directors on 25 October 2013, the
					 consent was given on credit guarantee implementation for PGS Phase 1-4 Projects with maturity
					 of guarantee term. The guarantee period for each project period is not more than 7 years
					 from the issuance date of Letter of Guarantee. The maximum loss which is the guarantee
					 obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is determined for 11.75% of average
					 guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term for each project period. The payment
					 of compensatory security will be ended in the 11th year for the last issue of Letter of
					 Guarantee. The annual guarantee fee rate is charged at 1.75%. TCG therefore appropriates
					 compensatory security reserve of the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year.
				 19. PGS for Commercial Bank No. 3 Project (BI for SCBT Y2014). TCG’s Board of Directors No. 9/2014
					 dated 25 August 2014 resolved to approve the preparation of Memorandum of Understanding
					 on Collaboration under Credit Guarantee Project in term of PGS for a commercial bank. The
					 credit guarantee period for each project is not over than 5 years from the issuance date of
					 Letter of Guarantee. The liability for the guarantee obligation which is NPG is determined for
					 not over than 8.5% of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term for
					 each portfolio. The annual fee rate is charged at 1.75% of guarantee line for each SMEs.
					 Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory security reserve of the entire amount of fee
					 revenue received in that year.
				 20. PGS for Commercial Bank No. 4 Project (BI for SCB Y2014). TCG’s Board of Directors No.
					 11/2014 dated 25 August 2014 resolved to approve the preparation of Memorandum of
					 Understanding on Collaboration under Credit Guarantee Project in term of PGS for a
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					 commercial bank. The credit guarantee period is not over than 7 years from the issuance date
					 of Letter of Guarantee. The liability for the guarantee obligation which is NPG is determined f
					 or not over than 12% of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term
					 for each portfolio. The annual fee rate is charged at 1.75% of guarantee financial limit for each
					 SMEs. Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory security reserve of the entire amount of fee
					 revenue received in that year.
				 21. PGS for Micro Entrepreneurs Project. TCG’s Board of Directors No. 10/2014 dated 10 July 2014
					 resolved to approve new credit guarantee project in type of intermediate-term /long-term
					 loans with at least 3 years of installment period. The guarantee period is not more than 10
					 years from the issuance date of each issue of Letter of SMEs Guarantee. Each SMEs that is
					 granted for TCG guarantee on all lenders in maximum financial limit for not over than Baht
					 200,000 per each SMEs by counting for the guarantee within this project only. However, the
					 guarantee line for each time of guarantee shall not be less than 10,000 Baht. Every SMEs that
					 is granted for TCG guarantee on any lender is 1 Package Guarantee Scheme of that lender in
					 considering guarantee fee and contribution received to define the guarantee liability for
					 guarantee period beginning from the approval date of NCPO on 24 June 2014 to the date of
					 documentary completeness within 31 December 2015. The annual guarantee fee is charged
					 in the rate between 1 - 3%. However, the lender is permitted to define guarantee fee payment
					 rate as proper for each SMEs and it shall be fixed rate in guarantee fee payment for that
					 SMEs throughout guarantee term according to the collaborative agreement with the TCG and
					 the lender unless the lender applies to request for compensatory security payment or the
					 lender notifies the guarantee cancellation together with expropriation of the Letter of
					 Guarantee. However, if the lender withdraws the application of compensatory security
					 payment, the lender still needs to pay fee for renewal of guarantee term provided that the
					 guarantee liability is in package for not exceeding paid guarantee fee which is monthly
					 rationed in each year period in combination with contribution disbursed from the Government
					 for 20% of guarantee approved line in each year period. The Government approved the operating
					 budgetary financial limit for not over than Baht 1,150 million in payment of compensatory
					 security. TCG shall pay compensatory security to the Package of each lender in each year
					 period pursuant to the condition whereas the payment shall not exceed guarantee fee
					 received in the 12th year period of the guarantee. Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory
					 security reserve of the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year.
				 22. PGS SMEs Halal Trade Project. TCG’s Board of Directors No. 4/2014 dated 25 March 2014
					 resolved to approve Credit Guarantee Project in term of Portfolio Guarantee Scheme (PGS)
					 for Islamic Bank of Thailand to support SMEs Halal entrepreneurs aiming toward AEC and
					 Muslim world. The guarantee period for each project period is not more than 10 years from
					 the issuance date of Letter of Guarantee. The liability of guarantee obligation which is Non
					 Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is not more than 14.75% of average guarantee obligation
					 on the expiry date of guarantee term. The annual guarantee fee rate is charged in the rate of
					 1.50% of guarantee line for each SMEs. Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory security
					 reserve of the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year.
				 23. PGS for OTOP Entrepreneurs and Community Enterprises Project. TCG’s Board of Directors No.
					 10/2014 dated 10 July 2014 resolved to approve credit guarantee project in term of Portfolio
					 Guarantee Scheme (PGS). The lender defines the financial limit that will request TCG to
					 guarantee each SMEs. If in case that there are two contracts and over for TCG’s guarantee
					 and the lender does not define the financial limit of individual contractual guarantee, TCG will
					 define the financial limit of individual contractual guarantee according to the proportion of
					 financial limit requesting for TCG guarantee to the guaranteed credit line. Each SMEs can be
					 permitted for TCG guarantee on all of total lenders in maximum financial limit of guarantee
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					 for not over than 3,000,000 Baht per SMEs for not over than 7-year guarantee period from the
					 issuance date of Letter of Guarantee. The liability which is the guarantee obligation for Non
					 Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) of each Portfolio is not more than 25% of average
					 guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term. The Government has approved
					 the operating budget for the financial limit of not over than Baht 1,600 million. The annual
					 guarantee fee rate is charged at the rate of 1.50% of the guarantee line for each SMEs.
					 Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory security reserve of the entire amount of fee
					 revenue received in that year.
				 24. PGS for Commercial Bank No. 5 Project (BI for CIMB THAI Y2015). TCG’s Board of Directors
					 No. 2/2015 dated 23 February 2015 resolved to approve the preparation of Memorandum
					 of Understanding on Collaboration under Credit Guarantee Project in term of PGS for a
					 commercial bank. The credit guarantee period is not over than 7 years from the issuance
					 date of Letter of Guarantee. The liability for the guarantee obligation which is NPG is
					 determined for not over than 12% of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of
					 guarantee term for each portfolio. The annual fee rate is charged at 1.75% of guarantee
					 financial limit for each SMEs. Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory security reserve of
					 the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year.
				 25. PGS Policy Loan Project. Pursuant to the Cabinet’s resolution on 16 June 2015, it approved
					 to implement Low Interest Credit Guarantee Project to assist small SMEs entrepreneur that
					 confronts with liquidity problem, promote small potential SMEs to have liquidity for business
					 improvement and competitiveness enhancement, create confidence to the entrepreneur
					 supported by the financial institution, and also promote economic growth of Thailand. Total
					 financial limit is Baht 15,000 million for not over than 5-year guarantee period from the
					 issuance date of Letter of Guarantee. The annual guarantee fee rate is charged at 1.75% under
					 the governmental subsidy for guarantee fee in lieu of SMEs in Year 1 at the annual rate of
					 1.75%, and Year 2 and Year 3 at the rate of 0.75% of guarantee line. The fee is charged from
					 SMES in Year 2 – 3 at the annual rate of 1.0%, Year 4 – 5 at annual rate of 1.75% of guarantee
					 line. It is classified into the part that TCG receives from guarantee fee charge in the rate of
					 5.50% and another 3.25% that is received from the governmental compensation. The liable
					 loss of the guarantee obligation which is NPG is determined for not over than 18% of average
					 guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term for each portfolio. The Government
					 compensates the actual loss but not over than the financial limit of million 1,387.50 Baht of
					 average guarantee obligation throughout the project term. Therefore, TCG appropriates
					 compensatory security reserve of the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year.
					 The retention of compensatory security reserve for PGS Project for the year ended as at 31
					 December 2015 was recorded as net compensatory security expense in Comprehensive Profit
					 and Loss Statement in that accounting year.

3.11 Recognition of Governmental Loss Compensation for PGS Projects

		 The governmental loss compensation for PGS Projects is the money that the Government shall pay to
		
compensate for loss incurred from credit guarantee for Portfolio Guarantee Scheme Projects in part that
		
actual incurred loss is higher than fee revenue of which TCG receives but not over than financial limit
		
determined by the Government. The actual incurred loss and fee that TCG receives is calculated from the
		
commencement date of the project until the ending date of the project.
		
TCG has formulated the policy of the recognition on transaction of governmental loss compensation
		
provided for assistance as follows. 		
		
3.11.1 Recognition of transaction during the period of which the project has not yet ended. When TCG
				 receives governmental loss compensation, TCG shall recognize it as asset waiting for compensation.
				 It is recorded as asset in “bank deposit” account, and liability in “governmental loss compensation”
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				 account since the guarantee obligation that occurs at the beginning period until ending date of the
				 project has still been uncertain in guaranteed amount and has always taken place in the declining
				 trend in each year end. The renewal of guarantee term from cancellation event and decrease in
				 financial limit have affected average guarantee obligation in each year end, the guarantee and
				 continuity to financial limit that is paid for compensatory security in each year. Therefore, for regular
				 transaction recognition of each product, TCG then recognizes governmental compensation as
				 revenue in Comprehensive Profit and Loss Statement when there is the accuracy and certainty of
				 actual incurred loss amount for the whole project when that project period is ended.
		 3.11.2 Information disclosure upon project termination. TCG shall disclose the information by presenting
				 the transaction of subsidy in part of governmental loss compensation with revenue-related
				 amount of money equaling to compensatory security reserves in part of governmental aid which
				 is presented in Comprehensive Profit and Loss Statement.
3.11.3 Payback of governmental subsidy. When TCG recognizes loss amount in part of governmental
				 compensation balance, TCG shall return such net balance to Bureau of Budget or further transfer
				 such compensation as the compensation for other projects with governmental aid policy.

3.12 Employee Provident Fund

		
		
		
		
		

TCG registered employee provident fund according to Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530 (1987) whereas the
employee’s fund contribution at the rate for 5% of employee salary and TCG’s fund contribution at the
rate for 5-10% of employee salary based on TCG’s employee work life. MFC Asset Management Public
Company Limited is the fund manager. TCG’s payment of fund contribution is recorded as expense in
Comprehensive Profit and Loss Statement for the accounting period that the transaction occurs.

3.13 Employee Benefit

		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

TCG has complied with Accounting Standards TAS 19 on Employee Benefits in provision of compensation
payment upon employee retirement, provision of employee benefits calculated based on actuarial
science principle by Projected Unit Credit Discount Method. The information from experience is taken as
the factor in estimation from present value of cash flows of benefits expected to be required for
payment in the future. The discount is calculated with rate of return of Thai Government Bond of the
Thai Bond Market Association. It is presented as the part of provisions. The increase or decrease in
variance from estimations according to actuarial science principle that is adjusted to be proper for TCG
in each accounting period shall be recognized as expense or revenue in that period. The liability of the
whole amount of past employee benefits was adjusted with accumulated loss brought forward at the
beginning of 2011 and the calculation factor is reviewed for every 3 years.
Gain (Loss) from estimation pursuant to Actuarial Science Basis (Actuarial Gain/Loss) is recognized into
retained earnings through other comprehensive profit and loss in the period that the whole amount occurs.

3.14 Income Tax

		
		
		
		
		
		
		

TCG was founded according to Small Industry Credit Guarantee Corporation Act B.E. 2534 (1991) as the
juristic person pursuant to the said Act. TCG is not in the form of “the Company or Juristic Partnership”
pursuant to Section 39 of Fiscal Code. TCG therefore is not subject to the payment of corporate income
tax pursuant to Part 3, Section 3 of Fiscal Code and the undertaking of the Corporation is exempted for
specific business tax pursuant to Royal Decree (Issue No. 257) B.E. 2535 (1992), and exempted for
revenue stamp pursuant to (19) of Section 16 of Royal Decree (Issue No. 10) B.E. 2500 (1957) which has
been revised by Royal Decree (Issue No. 258) B.E. 2535 (1992).

3.15 Earnings per Share

		
		

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by taking net profit or net loss for the period of ordinary shares
divided with weighted average of issued and paid-up ordinary shares.
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
Annual Report 2015

99

4. Additional Information
4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent
		
สินทรัพย์

Unit : Million Baht
2014

2015

Cash and Cash at Bank
Cash Equivalent
- Fixed Deposit not over than 3 months
- Note Receivable
Total

584.27

38.57

150.01
50.00
784.28

0.01
38.58

		 As at 31 December 2015, most of cash and cash at bank were savings bank deposit for Baht 584.27
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

million and current deposit receipt for Baht 584.12 million at annual interest rate of between 0.10 – 1.30%.
As at 31 December 2015, cash at bank for Baht 150.01 million was not over than 3 months-term fixed
deposit at annual interest rate of between 0.80 – 1.75%.
As at 31 December 2015, note receivable is promissory note with not over than 3-months term was Baht
50 million at annual rate of 1.75%.
Supporting Information for Statement of Cash Flow
Cash for Purchasing Cost of Plant, Property and Equipment, and Intangible Assets

Unit : Million Baht
2015
2014

สินทรัพย์
Payable for Purchasing Cost of Plant, Property and Equipment and Intangible
Assets Brought Forward
Purchasing Cost of Plant, Property and Equipment and Intangible Assets
Less Cash Payment for Purchasing Cost of Plant, Property and Equipment
Cash Payment for Purchasing Cost of Intangible Asset
Payable for Purchasing Cost of Plant, Property and Equipment, and Intangible
Assets Carried Forward

4.2 Investment has consisted of below.

		

4.2.1 Temporary Investment
สินทรัพย์

Government Bond (Note 4.2.1.1)
Fixed Deposit (Note 4.2.1.2)
Fixed Deposit Receipt (Note 4.2.1.3)
Investment in Private Fund (Note 4.2.1.4)
Total
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2015
49.96
1,888.00
500.00
9,811.90
12,249.86

1.41
81.78
(67.19)
(8.19)

0.57
35.99
(28.67)
(6.48)

7.81

1.41

Unit : Million Baht
2014
5,878.00
9,815.75
15,693.75

			 4.2.1.1
					
			 4.2.1.2
					
			 4.2.1.3
					
			 4.2.1.4
					
			 4.2.1.4

As at 31 December 2015, short-term government bond with not over than 1-year term was
Baht 49.96 million under annual rate of return for 1.495%.
As at 31 December 2015, cash at bank was fixed bank deposit with from 3 months but not
over than 1 year term for Baht 1,888 million under between 1.05 – 3.00% of annual rate.
As at 31 December 2015, fixed deposit receipt with not over than 1-year term was Baht 500
million under between 1.75 – 1.80% of annual return.
Most of private fund investments for Baht 9,811.90 million were the investments in availablefor-sale securities presented with fair values according to below details.
Private Fund Investments (Continued)
Unit : Million Baht
2015
2014
Cost Price
Fair
Price
Cost Price
Fair
Price
สินทรัพย์
Value
Presented
Value
Presented
in Financial
in Financial
Statements
Statements

Cash at Bank
Saving Deposit
Fixed Deposit
Investments in other Securities
Bonds and Treasury Bills
Government Bonds
Bank Issuing Bonds
State Enterprise Bonds
Guaranteed by Ministry of
Finance
Treasury Bills
Debentures
Bank Debentures
Non-Financial Institution
Debentures
Shares
Ordinary Shares
Receivable from Sales of
Securities and Other
Receivables
Payable from Purchase of
Securites and other Payables
Total

90.98
92.30
183.28

90.98
92.30
183.28

90.98
92.30
183.28

31.67
112.96
144.63

31.67
112.96
144.63

31.67
112.96
144.63

4,423.84
2,527.21

4,450.55
2,528.34

4,450.55
2,528.34

2,896.31
3,428.58

2,942.07
3,459.35

2,942.07
3,459.35

819.93
7,770.98

841.30
7,820.19

841.30
7,820.19

1,245.30
4.96
7,575.15

1,264.24
4.95
7,670.61

1,264.24
4.95
7,670.61

76.49

77.04

77.04

30.22

30.59

30.59

846.01
922.50

878.51
955.55

878.51
955.55

796.85
827.07

816.50
847.09

816.50
847.09

843.74
843.74

854.52
854.52

854.52
854.52

1,038.84
1,038.84

1,086.80
1,086.80

1,086.80
1,086.80

0.21

0.21

0.21

128.34

128.34

128.34

(1.85)

(1.85)

(1.85)

(61.72)

(61.72)

(61.72)

9,718.86 9,811.90

9,811.90

9,652.31

9,815.75

9,815.75
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			 4.2.1.4 Private Fund Investments (Continued)
					 They are presented according to fair values and classified for presentation according to
					 individual fund manager.
					
Unit : Million Baht
2015
สินทรัพย์
TISCO
SCBAM
MFC
K-ASSET
Total
Cash at Bank
Saving Deposit
Fixed Deposit
Investments in other Securities
Bonds and Treasury Bills
Government Bonds
Bank Issuing Bonds
State Enterprise Bonds Guaranteed by
Ministry of Finance
Debentures
Bank Debentures
Non-Financial Institution Debentures
Shares
Ordinary Shares
Receivable from Sales of Securities and
Other Receivables
Payable from Purchase of Securites and
other Payables
Total
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58.91

30.43

1.08

0.56

90.98

51.07
109.98

20.13
50.56

21.10
22.18

0.56

92.30
183.28

1,116.74
926.36

651.01
999.73

1,313.83
117.58

1,368.97
484.67

4,450.55
2,528.34

2,043.10

260.31
1,911.05

313.02
1,744.43

267.97
2,121.61

841.30
7,820.19

10.21
251.36
261.57

257.79
257.79

8.77
209.15
217.92

58.06
160.21
218.27

77.04
878.51
955.55

170.01
170.01

215.69
215.69

196.78
196.78

272.04
272.04

854.52
854.52

-

-

(0.49)
2,584.17

(0.46)
2,434.63

0.21
(0.41)
2,181.11

-

(0.49)
2,611.99

0.21
(1.85)
9,811.90

			 4.2.1.4 Private Fund Investments (Continued)
					 They are presented according to fair values and classified for presentation according to
					 individual fund manager.
Unit : Million Baht
					
2014
สินทรัพย์
TISCO
SCBAM
MFC
K-ASSET
Total
Cash at Bank
Saving Deposit
Fixed Deposit
Investments in other Securities
Bonds and Treasury Bills
Government Bonds
Bank Issuing Bonds
State Enterprise Bonds Guaranteed by
Ministry of Finance
Treasury Bills
Debentures
Bank Debentures
Non-Financial Institution Debentures
Shares
Ordinary Shares

20.39
51.29
71.68

1.54
40.50
42.04

2.61
21.17
23.78

961.81
1,082.60

677.43
989.52

2,044.41

7.13
7.13

31.67
112.96
144.63

870.55
149.41

432.28
1,237.82

2,942.07
3,459.35

225.39
4.95
1,897.29

663.23
1,683.19

375.62
2,045.72

1,264.24
4.95
7,670.61

158.08
158.08

253.96
253.96

209.63
209.63

30.59
194.83
225.42

30.59
816.50
847.09

362.93
362.93

247.93
247.93

204.09
204.09

271.85
271.85

1,086.80
1,086.80

-

Receivable from Sales of Securities
and Other Receivables
7.79
57.55
11.99
51.01
128.34
Payable from Purchase of Securites
and other Payables
(0.51)
(17.01)
(11.15)
(33.05)
(61.72)
					 Total
2,644.38 2,481.76 2,121.53 2,568.08 9,815.75
					
					 Private fund investments have been the part of investments in available-for-sale securities.
					 TCG has engaged 4 asset management companies for mutual funds to be the managerial
					 operators. Debt securities have been invested for 85% of net asset values of the funds and
					 equity instruments for 15% of net asset values of the funds. However, the investments have
					 been in line with investment policy and limitation passed from the approval consideration of
					 TCG’s Board of Directors. The asset management companies have charged private fund
					 management fee at the rate of 0.06% per annum of net asset values of the funds as at 31
					 December 2015 and 2014. The expense as private fund management fee was Baht 7.51
					 million and Baht 6.80 million; and the revenue derived from financial management was Baht
					 274.06 million and Baht 432.12 million, respectively.
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4.2.2 Long-Term Investment
				
สินทรัพย์

Unit : Million Baht
2014

2015

Fixed Deposit
Fixed Deposit Receipt

975.00
550.00
1,525.00

Total

500.00
500.00

				 As at 31 December 2015, long-term investment for Baht 1,525 million, consisting of fixed deposit
				 with over than 1-year term for Baht 975 million and fixe deposit receipt with over than 1-year
				 term for Baht 550 million at annual interest rate of 2.10 - 3.15%.

4.3 Guarantee Receivables
สินทรัพย์

2015

Unit : Million Baht
2014

Guarantee Receivables
19,337.10
13,086.33
Less Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
(19,337.10)
(13,086.33)
Guarantee Receivables – Net
		
		
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the principles for guarantee receivables of which TCG paid to the
		
banks for Baht 6,432.33 million and Baht 5,388.64 million (Note 4.11) were paid back for Baht 54.90
		
million and Baht 49.67 million. The additional adjustment was Baht 6.15 million. During the year, the
		
disposal of bad debts was Baht 120.51 million and Baht 60.63 million, respectively. The interest received
		
by TCG from such receivables was recorded for Baht 82.58 million and Baht 42.78 million. The interest of
		
guarantee receivables for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 was Baht 1,152.16 million and
		
Baht 744.57 million without recognition by TCG as income in the account since it has been quite possibly
		
sure that it will be uncollectible. TCG will recognize it as income upon payment receipt from the creditors.

Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
104 Thai
Annual Report 2015

4.4 Accrued Guarantee Fee
สินทรัพย์

Unit : Million Baht
2015
2014
Beginning Increase Decrease Ending Beginning Increase Decrease Ending

Governmental Compensated
Projects
- PGS FLOOD 2011 Phase 1
20.89 48.42 (69.31)
214.54
- PGS FLOOD 2011 Phase 2
10.98 72.05 (83.03)
11.40
- PGS New/Start up SMEs 56
2.58
- PGS New/Start up SMEs 57
10.14 14.19 (24.33)
- PGS New/Start up SMEs 58
13.09 (2.87) 10.22
- PGS PIL/55
23.67
- PGS PIL/56
172.87
0.03 (0.03) 172.87 50.31
- PGS PIL/57
0.47
2.30
2.77
- PGS PIL/58
0.06
0.06
- PGS 5/57
174.38 370.84 (1.44) 543.78
- PGS 5/58
550.53
550.53
- PGS 5 (Revised)
117.47
117.47
- PGS Micro Entrepreneurs
0.16 21.42 (14.97)
6.61
- PGS OTOP and Community
Enterprise
0.07
0.88
0.95
- PGS POLICY LOAN
13.87
13.87
Total Governmental Compensated Projects
389.96 1,225.15 (195.98) 1,419.13 302.50
Normal Projects
- Normal Projects
9.28 21.13 (24.34)
6.07
0.40
Total
399.24 1,246.28 (220.32) 1,425.20 302.90
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

287.51 (481.16)
87.11 (87.53)
1.84 (4.42)
10.16 (0.02)
5.22 (28.89)
149.76 (27.20)
0.47
174.40 (0.02)
0.16
0.07
-

20.89
10.98
10.14
172.87
0.47
174.38
0.16

-

0.07
-

716.70 (629.24)

389.96

13.78 (4.90)
730.48 (634.14)

9.28
399.24

As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s accrued guarantee fee was Baht 1,425.50 million being classified into
accrued guarantee fee from governmental compensated project pursuant to the Cabinet’s resolution
for Baht 1,419.13 million and normal projects for Baht 6.07 million. During the period, TCG recognized
the revenue in the portion under waiting for governmental fee compensation in the amount of Baht
1,225.15 million and normal projects in the amount of Baht 21.13 million. According to accrued revenue
for the governmental compensated projects, TCG will further execute the request to obtain budgetary
allocation for governmental compensation of guarantee fee revenue.
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4.5 Net Property, Plant and Equipment

		

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the details have included the following.

Unit : Million Baht

2015
สินทรัพย์
Property
Plant
Office Building
Improvement
Fixture
Office Equipment
Computer and
Equipment
Vehicle
Work in Process
Total

Cost Price
Accumulated Depreciation
Net Price
Beginning Increase Disposal Ending Beginning Increase Disposal Ending
8.94

-

-

8.94

-

96.84

-

-

96.84

(0.68)
(7.20)
(3.86)

62.23
1.54
30.86

10.78
8.25
16.82
25.11
7.40
2.78
176.92

52.13
0.49
17.90

-

-

-

61.97

3.11

-

65.08

31.76

1.85
7.48
10.61

3.76
0.12
3.07

(0.05)
(7.09)
(3.74)

5.56
0.51
9.94

56.67
1.03
20.92

7.23 (1.39) 30.95 15.93
(3.74).
3.66
7.40
67.74 (70.44)
0.08
145.49 (87.31) 235.10 105.24

6.46 (1.23)
(3.74)
16.52 (15.85)

8.94

21.16
9.79
3.66
0.08
105.91 129.19
Unit : Million Baht

2014
สินทรัพย์
Property
Plant
Office Building
Improvement
Fixture
Office Equipment
Computer and
Equipment
Vehicle
Work in Process
Total
		
		
		
		
		

Cost Price
Accumulated Depreciation
Net Price
Beginning Increase Disposal Ending Beginning Increase Disposal Ending
-

8.94

-

8.94

-

-

-

-

93.53

3.31

-

96.84

4.92
8.21
15.99

5.86
0.16
3.49

(0.12)
(2.66)

10.78
8.25
16.82

25.09
14.80
162.54

3.76

58.15

3.82

-

61.97

34.87

0.54
7.48
11.75

1.31
0.10
1.48

(0.10)
(2.62)

1.85
7.48
10.61

8.93
0.77
6.21

5.94 (3.74)
0.19 (7.40)
12.84 (13.86).

15.93
7.40
105.24

9.18

(3.74) 25.11 13.73
(7.40)
7.40 14.61
3.06 (0.28)
2.78
28.58 (14.20) 176.92 106.26

8.94

2.78
71.68

TCG’s depreciation for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 was Baht 16.52 million and Baht
12.84 million, respectively under presentation in expense of property, plant and equipment in
Comprehensive Profit and Loss Statement. As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, total plant and
equipment at cost price, whereas their depreciations have been calculated for the whole amount but
they have still been used, were Baht 54.95 million and Baht 63.35 million, respectively.
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4.6 Net Intangible Assets

		 As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, TCG’s package software and copyright after deduction of accumulated
		
amortization was Baht 16.38 million and Baht 8.42 million, respectively (Note 3.8).
Unit : Million Baht
2015
สินทรัพย์
Package
Software and
Copyright
Package
Software under
Development
Total

Cost Price
Accumulated Amortization
Net Price
Beginning Increase Disposal Ending Beginning Increase Disposal Ending
23.84

2.37

(1.12)

25.09

2.71

9.07

-

11.78

26.55

11.44

(1.12)

36.87

18.13

18.13

2.33

0.03

20.49

4.60

-

-

-

11.78

2.33

0.03

20.49

16.38

Unit : Million Baht
2014
สินทรัพย์
Package
Software and
Copyright
Package
Software under
Development
Total
		
		
		
		
		

Cost Price
Accumulated Amortization
Net Price
Beginning Increase Disposal Ending Beginning Increase Disposal Ending
18.95

5.06

(0.17)

-

2.71

-

18.95

7.77

(0.17)

23.84

2.71
26.55

15.90

15.90

2.30

(0.07)

18.13

5.71

-

-

-

2.71

18.13

8.42

2.30

(0.07).

TCG’s amortization for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 was Baht 2.33 million and Baht 2.30
million, respectively under presentation in expense of plant, property and equipment in
Comprehensive Profit and Loss Statement. As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, total intangible assets at
cost price whereas amortization has been calculation for the whole amount but they have been under
use, was Baht 17.43 million, and Baht 15.68 million, respectively.
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4.7 Fee Subsidy from Government
สินทรัพย์

2015

Beginning Balance
Add Receipt of Governmental Fee Subsidy
Return of Fee due to Non-Use of Financial Line
Less Subsidy as Fee Received
Ending Balance
		
		
		

Unit : Million Baht
2014
0.46
250.69
3.19
(249.89)
4.45

(809.86)
0.46

As at 31 December 2015, TCG received total governmental fee subsidy and fee return from clients that
have not used total financial line for Baht 253.88 million; and recognized governmental fee subsidy as
the revenue for Baht 249.89 million.

4.8 Governmental Loss Compensation for PGS Project
สินทรัพย์

Unit : Million Baht
2014

2015

Beginning Balance
Add Governmental Loss Compensation
Less Transfer of Governmental Compensation from for
Revenue Recognition
Ending Balance
		
		
		

13.13
797.19

1,474.99
905.26

1,814.69
750.38

(2,228.41)
151.84

(1,090.08)
1,474.99

As at 31 December 2015, TCG received budget of governmental loss compensation for PGS 3, PGS 4 and
PGS Flood 2011 Projects for Baht 905.26 million, and transferred to recognize governmental loss
compensation for Baht 2,228.41 million.

4.9 Provisions of Liabilities

		

The details of employee benefit obligations have included the following.
สินทรัพย์

Provisions of Employee Benefits (Past Benefit)
Add Service Cost of Employee Benefits during the
accounting period
Interest of Employee Benefits during the accounting
period
Loss from the actuarial science-based provisions
		
Less Retirement Payment
Total
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2015

Unit : Million Baht
2014

27.10

21.62

3.59

3.50

1.96
0.18

1.81
1.14
(0.97)
27.10

32.83

		 Significant assumptions for actuarial science-based provisions could be summarized as follows.		
				 Discount Rate per Annum (Percent)
3.38
				 Average Rate of Future Salary Increase per Annum (Percent) 6.50 - 7.50
				 Employee Turnover Rate (Percent)
8.08
				 Date Rate		
Table of Thai Mortality 2008
				 Retirement		
60 Years
		
		
		
		
		
		

Analysis on Sensitivity of Major Calculation Assumption
TCG’s provisions of employee benefits were sensitive for the change in assumptions applied in the
calculation. The change in assumptions might occur from the change in market situation, change in
inflation situation as well as change in population statistics data in benefit project. The below table
indicates the impact from potential change of each assumption. The change in each assumption
separately occurred.
Unit : Million Baht
Increase (Decrease) in Provisions of Liabilities
31 December 2015

Average Discount Rate
Increase for 1%
Decrease for 1%
Average Salary Rate
Increase for 1%
Decrease for 1%
		
		
		
		

32.51
33.15
36.41
31.50

Analysis on Maturity of Benefit Payment
Below table indicates the data of weighted average benefit payment duration for employee benefit
program and maturity period of benefit payment calculated from employee program-based obligations
which have been expected to be paid in the future prior-discounting.
Unit : Million Baht
Employee Benefit Expected for Payment

Portion Expected for Payment in Year 1
Portion Expected for Payment in Year 2 – Year 5
Portion Expected for Payment in Year 6 – Year 10
Portion Expected for Payment in Year 11 – Year 15

31 December 2015
2.60
15.61
23.67
36.33
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4.10 Other Liabilities
สินทรัพย์

Unit : Million Baht
2014

2015

Other Liabilities
Accrued Expense

82.27
44.00
126.27

Total

4.11 Compensatory Security Reserves
สินทรัพย์
Beginning Balance
Add Amount Appropriated for Reserves during the Period
Governmental Loss Compensation for PGS Projects
Less Compensatory Security Payment during the Period
Decrease in Reserve during the Period
Ending Balance
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2015
5,523.46
4,815.93
2,228.41
12,567.80
(6,418.72)
(174.82)
5,974.26

56.85
64.24
121.09

Unit : Million Baht
2014
5,491.23
4,710.46
1,090.08
11,291.77
(5,388.64)
(379.67)
5,523.46

As at 31 December 2015, compensatory security reserves are cashes of which TCG increasingly
appropriated reserves according to the criteria and responsibility prescribed in credit guarantee criteria
for each type of project and they were recorded as expense in the period that the reserve was
appropriated. TCG appropriated reserve in the part with guarantee obligation (Note 4.16) particularly
the former projects that have been sub-standard classified debtors, etc. during the period in net amount
of Baht 4,815.93 million. TCG recognized loss compensation for PGS1, PGS2, PGS3, PGS4 and PGS Flood
2011 for Baht 2,228.41 million whereas compensatory security reserve was appropriated with the same
amount. TCG set aside 100% of reserve pursuant to the criteria of reserve separation of Bank of Thailand.
After deducting transferred amount as receivables due to payment of compensatory security in lieu of
the debtors for Baht 6,418.72 million and reserve derived from debtor de-classification or collateral
adjustment for Baht 174.82 million, the balance was net compensatory security reserves for Baht 5,974.26
million. The reservation of the said compensatory security has been classified according to the type of
guarantee and debt classification, consisting of the appropriation of compensatory security for normal
projects in the amount of Baht 2,156.46 million and Portfolio Guarantee Scheme (PGS) in the amount of
Baht 3,817.80 million (Note 4.16) as per below details.
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1. Normal Projects. TCG has appropriated compensatory security equaling to be equal to net guarantee
			 obligation in the rate of 100% for Year 2015.
Unit : Million Baht
2015
Appropriation of Compensatory Security Equaling to Net Guarantee
Guarantee
Obligation**
Obligation
Normal
NPL
MOU
RP
Total
Pass Classified
Special Mention Classified
Sub-Standard Classified
Doubtful Classified
Doubtful Loss Classified
Total

3,743.76
276.16
127.59
169.85
2,899.35
7,216.71

340.93
340.93

37.72
37.72

16.70
6.88
239.48
263.06

49.77
78.47
1,386.51
1,514.75

66.47
85.35
2,004.64
2,156.46

			**Net guarantee obligation means guarantee obligation after deduction of collateral value plus interest applied in reserve
			 appropriation calculated from the payment criteria of compensatory security according to the type of guarantee (Note 3.10).

		
2. Portfolio Guarantee Scheme (PGS) Projects. TCG has appropriated guarantee obligations and
			 appropriated compensatory security reserves as follows.
Unit : Million Baht
2015
of Compensatory Security
Guarantee Obligation Appropriation
Equaling to Total Recognized Revenue
PGS Phase 1
PGS Phase 2
PGS Phase 3
PGS Phase 4

3,937.84
5,948.55
19,536.58
14,405.07

429.62
462.47
(275.84)
132.31

PGS Phase 5/56
PGS Phase 5/57
PGS Phase 5/58
PGS Phase 5 (Revised)
PGS for Commercial Bank 1
PGS for Commercial Bank 2
PGS for Commercial Bank 3
PGS for Commercial Bank 4
PGS for Commercial Bank 5
People Sector’s Debt (Informal Debt) Project
PGS by Financial Institution 1 Project

48,420.95
46,303.60
41,541.08
40,934.65
2,117.35
2,173.95
1,198.52
47.86
128.50
22.04
10,351.88

(230.31)
741.21
550.53
117.47
18.83
(3.68)
3.65
0.38
1.07
0.55
168.44
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Unit : Million Baht
2015
Guarantee Obligation
PGS by Financial Institution 2 Project
PGS by Financial Institution 3 Project
PGS by Financial Institution 4 Project
PGS Logistics, Franchise, Direct Sales
PGS FLOOD SME Bank 2011
PGS FLOOD 2011 Phase 1
PGS FLOOD 2011 Phase 2
PGS for Specialized Financial Institution 1
PGS for Specialized Financial Institution 2
PGS New/Start-up SMEs 55
PGS New/Start-up SMEs 56
PGS New/Start-up SMEs 57
PGS New/Start-up SMEs 58
PGS PIL/55
PGS PIL/56
PGS PIL/57
PGS PIL/58
TCG Renew Phase 1
TCG Renew Phase 2
PGS Micro Entrepreneurs
PGS OTOP and Community Enterprise
PGS SMEs Halal Trade
PGS Policy Loan
Total

15,715.98
5,139.81
30.60
476.03
303.00
8,967.92
2,026.09
93.12
5.13
13.18
48.20
894.23
812.41
4,317.53
7,355.50
151.32
7.29
3,651.15
5,897.66
4,949.63
72.46
9.20
3,713.87
301,719.73

Appropriation of Compensatory Security
Equaling to Total Recognized Revenue
178.64
66.09
0.04
69.25
5.32
282.01
172.11
4.65
0.14
0.78
6.88
33.79
14.10
301.08
397.57
3.17
0.06
74.38
40.75
35.26
1.00
0.15
13.88
3,817.80

			As at 31 December 2014, TCG appropriated the reserves of normal projects and Portfolio for Baht
			 2,384.32 million and Portfolio Guarantee Scheme (PGS) projects for Baht 3,139.14 million as follows.
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			 1. Normal Projects. TCG appropriated compensatory security reserves equaling to net guarantee
				 obligation in the rate of 100% for 2014.
Unit : Million Baht
2014
Appropriation of Compensatory Security Equaling to Net Guarantee
Guarantee
Obligation**
Obligation
Normal
NPL
MOU
RP
Total
Pass Classified
4,464.12
Special Mention Classified
268.98
Sub-Standard Classified
127.32
15.65
10.23
66.36
92.24
Doubtful Classified
139.22
2.15
11.39
78.95
92.49
Doubtful Loss Classified
3,110.83
342.04
47.79
257.26
1,552.50
2,199.59
Total
8,110.47
359.84
47.79
278.88 1,697.81 2,384.32
				 **Net guarantee obligation means guarantee obligation after deduction of collateral value plus interest applied in
				
				

reserve appropriation calculated from the payment criteria of compensatory security according to the type of
guarantee (Note 3.10).

			 2. Portfolio Guarantee Scheme (PGS) Project. TCG appropriated guarantee obligations and appropriated
				 compensatory security reserves as follows.
Unit : Million Baht
2014

Guarantee Obligation

Appropriation of Compensatory Security
Equaling to Total Recognized Revenue

PGS Phase 1
PGS Phase 2
PGS Phase 3
PGS Phase 4

6,941.28
14,543.50
23,355.82
18,596.14

295.34
316.39
(296.91)
(138.55)

PGS Phase 5/56
PGS Phase 5/57
PGS for Commercial Bank 1
PGS for Commercial Bank 2
PGS for Commercial Bank 3
PGS for Commercial Bank 4
People Sector’s Debt (Informal Debt) Project
PGS by Financial Institution 1 Project
PGS by Financial Institution 2 Project
PGS by Financial Institution 3 Project
PGS Logistics, Franchise, Direct Sales

56,105.92
53,236.88
2,293.03
3,541.58
508.91
4.50
24.76
11,886.07
18,187.62
6,812.01
722.78

665.78
470.20
15.16
61.38
1.73
0.01
0.95
199.22
266.84
119.89
67.55
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Unit : Million Baht
2014
Guarantee Obligation

Appropriation of Compensatory Security
Equaling to Total Recognized Revenue

PGS FLOOD SME Bank 2011
445.55
34.11
PGS FLOOD 2011 Phase 1
19,535.16
400.37
PGS FLOOD 2011 Phase 2
5,508.50
144.02
PGS for Specialized Financial Institution 1
94.82
3.45
PGS for Specialized Financial Institution 2
5.47
0.06
PGS New/Start-up SMEs 55
16.00
0.39
PGS New/Start-up SMEs 56
137.28
6.69
PGS New/Start-up SMEs 57
1,046.10
10.14
PGS PIL/55
5,730.63
244.13
PGS PIL/56
9,499.41
241.51
PGS PIL/57
110.98
0.47
TCG Renew Phase 1
2,441.38
8.57
PGS Micro Entrepreneurs
53.31
0.16
PGS OTOP and Community Enterprise
32.19
0.07
PGS SMEs Halal Trade
7.00
0.02
Total
261,424.58
3,139.14
				
				 As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, TCG appropriated reserve according to the criteria as
				 prescribed in credit guarantee policy (Note 3.10) as compensatory security reserves for total of
				 Baht 5,974.26 million and Baht 5,523.46 million, respectively. For RP Project, it is the project
				 responsible by TCG in payment of compensatory security in the determined loss rate but not over
				 than guarantee obligation. The amount required for provisions is derived from total liability
				 obligations deducted with net sold collateral value. Then, occurred loss is defined in order to
				 be applied for provision of compensatory security reserve. As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, TCG
				 appropriated reserve for RP Project in the amount of Baht 1,514.75 million and Baht 1,697.81
				 million, respectively.

4.12 Share Capital
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In accordance with Small Business Credit Guarantee Corporation Act B.E. 2534 (1991), it stipulates TCG to
have initial capital of Baht 400 million whereas the Ministry of Finance holds 25% of shares and other
shareholders hold 75% of shares. On 3 July 2000, Ministry of Finance increased its capital with TCG for
40 million shares, totaling to Baht 4,000 million. Therefore, total share capital was Baht 4,400 million.
In the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No. 1/2005 held on 22 November 2005 and No.
2/2005 held on 19 December 2005, the special resolutions were approved for increase in registered
capital of 20 million shares with 100 Baht per share of par value in the amount of Baht 2,000 million.
TCG received capital increase money from the Ministry of Finance for 3 million shares according to
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the Cabinet’s resolution on 19 September 2007 and other shareholders for 24,730 shares more, totaling
to Baht 302.47 million. TCG has carried out the registration of capital increase with Ministry of Finance
on 30 July 2008 in total amount of Baht 4,702.47 million. Then, the balance of unpaid shares has been
16,975,270 shares.
In accordance with special resolution of the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No. 1/2009
held on 25 September 2009, it gave consent to cancel the payment collection of capital increase’s
share values for unpaid shares in the amount of 16,975,270 shares, and to allow the increase in
registered capital for 21,374,737 shares at 100 Baht of unit share value for Baht 2,137.47 million whereas
TCG has already been paid from Ministry of Finance for Baht 2,000 million in order to support the project
under 2012 Strong Thailand Action Plan on 28 September 2009, totaling to Baht 6,702.47 million. The
balance of unpaid shares has been 1,374,737 shares for Baht 137.47 million. TCG has already registered
the capital increase with Ministry of Commerce on 14 October 2009; causing Ministry of Finance
becomes the major shareholder for 95.49% of paid-up capital. Such capital increase has made the
proportion of guarantee obligation to the size of capital fund in proper level, resulting in the financial
institutions’ confidences in TCG’s financial position and solvency according to guarantee obligations.
As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s total registered ordinary shares was 68,399,467 shares with 100 Baht of
unit share value. They have been fully paid-up and issued shares for 67,024,730 shares in total amount
of Baht 6,702.47 million.

4.13 Legal Reserves

		
		
		
		

As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s legal reserves were Baht 143.16 million. TCG appropriated reserves at
the rate of 10% of annual net profit according to TCG’s regulation on Clause 77 of Reserve and Dividend
Section when ending the cash account for every year before announcing the approval on other money
or dividend payment to the shareholders.

4.14 Dividend

		
		
		

The Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of the Corporation No. 23/2015 on 29 April 2015 resolved to
approve dividend payment from the operations for 2015 at the rate of 3.12 Baht per share for 67,024,730
shares in total amount of Baht 209.12 million. The dividend has already been paid on May 2015.

4.15 Other Compositions of Shareholders’ Equity

		
		

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, it was unrealized profit (loss) from value adjustment of private fund
investment to be fair value for Baht 93.04 million and Baht 163.43 million, respectively.
Unit : Million Baht
สินทรัพย์
2015
2014

Beginning Balance
Unrealized Profit (Loss) from Investment Value Adjustment
during the Period
Ending Balance

163.43

18.18

(70.39)
93.04

145.25
163.43
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4.16 Guarantee Obligation of Small Scale Industry Credit

		
TCG’s operation for guarantee of small scale industry credit for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
		
2014 was as follows.
Unit : Million Baht
		
สินทรัพย์
2015
2014
Beginning Guarantee Obligations
Increase during the Period
Decrease during the Period
Ending Guarantee Obligations
Compensatory Security Reserves (Note 4.11)

269,535.05
102,652.33
372,187.38
(63,250.94)
308,936.44
5,974.26

243,626.25
61,063.91
304,690.16
(35,155.11)
269,535.05
5,523.46

		
As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht 308,936.44 million, classifying into the
		
guarantee of the normal projects for Baht 7,216.71 million and guarantee obligations of PGS Projects
		
for Baht 301,719.73 million (Note 4.11). TCG’s NPG guarantee obligations according to guarantee
		
contracts with financial institutions in part of requirement of TCG in risk retention for Baht 2,156.46
		
million and Baht 3,817.80 million, respectively. The followings have been guarantee obligation as at
		
31 December 2015.
		
		 4.16.1 PGS Phase 1 Project. The Cabinet resolved on 17 February 2009 to give consent on the principle
				 of Small and Medium Enterprise (SMEs) Credit Guarantee Project according to the governmental
				 policy in term of Portfolio Guarantee Scheme Phase 1 (5-Year Term Project) to be the crucial
				 mechanism in encouraging the financial institutions to grant their credits to SMEs in order to
				 strengthen liquidity under current economic crisis. The target is the extension of financial limit
				 in credit guarantee for Baht 30,000 million and the Government will compensate the contingent
				 loss from operation in the financial limit for not exceeding Baht 2,000 million. The actual oc
				 curred disbursement is permitted under no requirement of fee payment in the first year for the
				 customer who comes to use service (the guarantee application period was ended on 5 March
				 2010). As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s obligations were Baht 3,937.84 million.
		 4.16.2 PGS Phase 2 Project. The Cabinet resolved on 27 April 2010 to give consent on credit guarantee
				 operation of Portfolio Guarantee Scheme Phase 2 Project (5-Year Term Project) for financial limit
				 of Baht 30,000 million according to the governmental policy to assist Small and Medium
				 Enterprises. The fee in the first year is charged for 0.75% per annum (the guarantee application
				 period was terminated on 31 December 2010) subject to the governmental fee compensation at
				 the annual rate of 1% and operating loss compensation in the financial limit for not exceeding
				 Baht 1,875 million under permission of actual occurred disbursement. As at 31 December 2015,
				 TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht 5,948.55 million.
				 The Cabinet resolved on 15 June 2010 to give consent on alteration of the criteria for Portfolio
				 Guarantee Scheme Phase 2 Project and exemption of guarantee fee to SMEs entrepreneurs who
				 have been formerly guaranteed from TCG, and have been SMEs entrepreneurs who have been
				 affected from unrest event from political assembly; and the tourism business entrepreneurs
				 who have been affected from domestic political crisis and have requested for credits through
				 commercial banks. TCG shall classify the financial limit for not exceeding Baht 5,000 million
				 from total guarantee financial limit of Baht 30,000 million from credit guarantee project in term
				 of Portfolio Guarantee Scheme Phase 2, and exempt fees for guarantee period in 2010 subject
				 to the governmental compensation of guarantee fee in the financial limit for not exceeding
				 Baht 37.50 million and actual occurred disbursement. The condition shall be continuously
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		 4.16.4
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
		 4.16.5
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				
				

executed according to guarantee criteria of PGS Phase 2 Project as usual. As at 31 December
2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations of which the guarantee project term were due but has still
maintained loss compensation obligation according to the guarantee criteria-based responsibility
condition. Loss compensation obligation will be terminated upon closure of the guarantee
project. Therefore, as at 31 December 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligation balance was Baht
5,948.55 million.
PGS Phase 3 Project. The Cabinet resolved on 12 April 2011 to give consent on approval in
executing the guarantee for Portfolio Guarantee Scheme Phase 3 Project in order to continuously
stimulate credit granting in financial institution system and reduction of SMEs cost. It is subject
to Baht 36,000 million of guarantee limit, 5-year guarantee period, expiry date of credit guarantee
application acceptance on 31 December 2011, and the Government’s contingent loss
compensation from operation in financial limit of not exceeding Baht 2,250 million under
actually incurred disbursement. As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht
19,536.58 million.
PGS Phase 4 Project. It is the guarantee project to assist potential SMEs with credit requirements
but lack of collateral to gain the access opportunity to financial institution credits. It is the
project continuing from PGS Phase 3 Project according to the Cabinet’s resolution on 24 April
2012 on Baht 24,000 million of guarantee limit, 5-year guarantee period, and expiry date of
guarantee application within 31 December 2012. It is provided that maximum loss which is the
guarantee obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is 15% of average guarantee
obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term under charge of annual guarantee fee rate at
1.75%. TCG therefore appropriates compensatory security reserve of the entire amount of fee
revenue received in that year. As at 31 December 2014, TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht
14,405.97 million.
PGS Phase 5 Project. The Cabinet’s resolution on 8 January 2013 gave consent on approval in
executing guarantee for Portfolio Guarantee Scheme Phase 5 Project to assist SMEs in every
potential industrial group without collaterals to gain the access opportunity to financial
institution credits and also support Thai SMEs entrepreneurs in business operation in abroad.
This is the liquidity reinforcement to SMEs who have been affected from increase in minimum
wage. This project is subject to Baht 240,000 million of guarantee limits for total of 3 years and
7-year guarantee period, the application commencement from 1 January 2013 and expiry within
31 December 2015. However, in each year, it is regarded as 1 Portfolio (totaling to 3 Portfolios).
It is provided that maximum loss which is the guarantee obligation of Non Performing Credit
Guarantee (NPG) is 18% of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term
under charge of guarantee fee rate at 1.75% of credit guarantee limit throughout 7 years of
guarantee term. TCG therefore appropriates compensatory security reserve of the entire amount
of fee revenue received in that year. As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations
of guaranteed projects in 2013, 2014 and 2015 were Baht 48,420.95 million, Baht 46,303.60
million and Baht 41,541.08 million, respectively.
PGS Phase 5 Project (Revised). It is the guarantee project to assist potential all SMEs pursuant to
the Cabinet’s resolution on 14 July 2015 and 8 September 2015. The guarantee financial limit
has been increased from PGS Phase 5 Project for Baht 20,000 million. When it is combined with
the primary financial limit balance, it is the new guarantee financial limit for PGS Phase 5 Project
(Revised) for Baht 100,000 million. Therefore, total financial limit of PGS Phase 5 Project is Baht
260,000 million. PGS Phase 5 Project (Revised) has 7-year guarantee period under application
commencement from 8 September 2015 and expiry within 30 June 2016. Upon the expiry of
TCG guarantee application, TCG deems that guarantee obligation on the lender is 1 Portfolio.
The annual guarantee fee rate is charged at 1.75% of credit guarantee limit throughout 7-year
guarantee term. The government subsidizes fee in lieu of SMEs in Year 1 in the rate of 1.75%,
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				 Year 2 in the rate of 1.25%, Year 3 in the rate of 0.75% and Year 4 in the rate of 0.25%. From
				 Year 5-7, SMEs is charged at the annual rate of 1.75% of credit guarantee limit. Therefore, TCG’s
				 money receipt is classified into the part that TCG receives from guarantee fee charge from SMEs
				 in the rate of 8.25% and another 4% that is received for compensation from the Government.
				 The maximum loss which is the guarantee obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG)
				 is determined for 22.50% of average guarantee obligation after expiry date of guarantee term
				 whereas the government grants the loss compensation in total financial limit for not over than
				 Baht 14,250 million. TCG therefore appropriates compensatory security reserve of the entire
				 amount of fee revenue received in that year. As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations
				 were Baht 40,934.65 million.
		 4.16.6 PGS for Commercial Bank No. 1 Project. TCG’s Board of Directors No. 4/2553 dated 11 March
				 2010 resolved to approve the preparation of Memorandum of Understanding on Collaboration
				 under Credit Guarantee Project in term of PGS for a commercial bank on 26 March 2010. The
				 credit guarantee period is within 1 year from the date entering to make this Memorandum of
				 Understanding so that the bank shall take it for allocation of guarantee financial limit to Small
				 and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) in the financial limit of Baht 3,000 million for 7-year project term.
				 The compensatory security payment is limited for not over than 12% of average guarantee
				 obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term. In addition, annual fee rate is charged at 1.75%
				 of guarantee financial limit. As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht
				 2,117.35 million.
		 4.16.7 PGS for Commercial Bank No. 2 Project. TCG’s Board of Directors No. 9/2013 dated 31 July 2013
				 resolved to approve the preparation of Memorandum of Understanding on Collaboration under
				 Credit Guarantee Project in term of PGS for a commercial bank on 9 September 2013. The credit
				 guarantee period is within 1 year from the date entering to make this Memorandum of
				 Understanding so that the bank shall take it for allocation of guarantee financial limit to Small
				 and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) in the financial limit of Baht 6,000 million for 5-year project term.
				 The compensatory security payment is limited for not over than 8.50% of average guarantee
				 obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term. In addition, annual fee rate is charged at 1.75%
				 of guarantee financial limit. As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht
				 2,173.95 million.
		 4.16.8 PGS for Commercial Bank No. 3 Project (BI for SCBT Y2014). TCG’s Board of Directors No. 11/2014
				 dated 25 August 2014 resolved to approve the preparation of Memorandum of Understanding
				 on collaboration under Credit Guarantee Project in term of PGS for a commercial bank. The
				 credit guarantee period for each project is not over than 5 years from the issuance date of
				 Letter of Guarantee. The liability for the guarantee obligation which is NPG is determined to be
				 not over than 8.5% of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term for
				 each portfolio. The annual fee rate is charged at 1.75% of guarantee financial limit. As at
				 31 December 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht 1,198.52 million.
		 4.16.9 PGS for Commercial Bank No. 4 Project (BI for SCB Y2014). TCG’s Board of Directors No. 11/2014
				 dated 25 August 2014 resolved to approve the preparation of Memorandum of Understanding
				 on Collaboration under Credit Guarantee Project in term of PGS for a commercial bank. The
				 credit guarantee period is not over than 7 years from the issuance date of Letter of Guarantee.
				 The liability for the guarantee obligation which is NPG is determined to be not over than 12%
				 of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term for each portfolio. The
				 annual fee rate is charged at 1.75% of guarantee financial limit for each SMEs. As at 31 December
				 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht 47.86 million.
		 4.16.10 PGS for Commercial Bank No. 5 Project (BI for CIMB THAI Y2015). TCG’s Board of Directors No.
				 2/2015 dated 23 February 2015 resolved to approve the preparation of Memorandum of
				 Understanding on Collaboration under Credit Guarantee Project in term of PGS for a commercial
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				 bank. The credit guarantee period is not over than 7 years from the issuance date of Letter of
				 Guarantee. The liability for the guarantee obligation which is NPG is determined to be not over
				 than 12% of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term for each
				 portfolio. The annual fee rate is charged at 1.75% of guarantee financial limit for each SMEs. As
				 at 31 December 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht 128.50 million.
		 4.16.11 People Sector’s Debt (Informal Debt) Project. TCG’s Board of Directors No. 9/2010 dated 15 July
				 2010 resolved to approve the preparation of the criteria of People Sector’s Debt (Informal
				 Debt) Problem Solution Project. The Project is implemented under Credit Guarantee Project in
				 term of Portfolio Guarantee Scheme for governmental financial institutions in financial limit of
				 Baht 3,000 million and Baht 2,000 million with 8-year and 12-year guarantee periods. TCG pays
				 compensatory security for not over than 15% and 23% of average guarantee obligation on the
				 expiry date of guarantee term, respectively. In addition, annual fee rate is charged at 2% of
				 guarantee financial limit. However, the entrepreneurs shall be passed through informal debt
				 negotiation procedure, debt restructuring negotiation, and credit consideration pursuant to the
				 rule of the project participating banks. The maximum financial limit for each entrepreneur is
				 determined for not over than Baht 200,000. As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s guarantee
				 obligations were Baht 22.04 million.
		 4.16.12 PGS by Financial Institution Phase 1 Project. The resolution of TCG’s Board of Directors No.
				 5/2010 dated 26 March 2010 gave consent to implement the guarantee of Individual Financial
				 Institution Project which is the credit guarantee project between TCG and each financial
				 institution. The type of credit guarantee is classified into 2 types including 5-year period and
				 7-year period. Both types are combined to have total financial limit for not over than Baht
				 10,000 million. The resolution of TCG’s Board of Directors No. 6/2011 dated 28 April 2011
				 approved additional credit guarantee financial limit in term of PGS for individual financial
				 institutions for Baht 10,000 million more. The financial limit is combined to be Baht 20,000
				 million in total. TCG pays the compensatory security for not over than 8.50% and 12% of
				 average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term, respectively. As at
				 31 December 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht 10,351.88 million.
		 4.16.13 PGS by Financial Institution Phase 2 Project. The resolution of TCG’s Board of Directors No.
				 13/2011 dated 27 October 2011 gave consent to implement the guarantee of Individual Financial
				 Institution Project which is the credit guarantee project between TCG and each financial
				 institution. The type of credit guarantee is classified into 2 types including 5-year period and
				 7-year period. Both types are combined to have total financial limit for not over than Baht 5,000
				 million. TCG pays compensatory security for not over than 8.50% and 12% of average guarantee
				 obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term, respectively. As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s
				 guarantee obligations were Baht 15,715.98 million.
		 4.16.14 PGS by Financial Institution Phase 3 Project. The resolution of TCG’s Board of Directors No.
				 13/2012 dated 24 October 2012 consented to implement the guarantee of Individual Financial
				 Institution Project which is the credit guarantee project between TCG and each financial
				 institution. The type of credit guarantee is classified into 2 types including 5-year period and
				 7-year period. Both types are combined to have total financial limit for not over than Baht
				 10,000 million. TCG pays compensatory security for not over than 8.50% and 12% of average
				 guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term, respectively. As at 31 December
				 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht 5,139.81 million.
4.16.15 PGS by Financial Institution Phase 4 Project. It is the credit guarantee project between TCG and
				 individual financial institution pursuant to the consent resolution of TCG’s Board of Directors
				 No. 8/2015 dated 27 July 2015. The credit guarantee is classified into 3 periods upon the
				 guarantee application as follows.
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						 Period 1 from 1 August 2015 to 31 July 2016
						 Period 2 from 1 August 2016 to 31 July 2017
						 Period 3 from 1 August 2017 to 31 July 2018
				 Upon expiry of application submission duration for TCG guarantee in each period, TCG deems
				 that guarantee obligation toward the lender in Period 1 is 1 Portfolio, Period 2 is another Portfolio
				 and Period 3 is another Portfolio for not over than 7-year guarantee term from the issuance date
				 of each letter of guarantee for SMEs. Total financial limit of guarantee is Baht 10,000 million.
				 The compensatory security fee is charged for not over than 12% of average guarantee obligation
				 on the expiry date of guarantee term. As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s Period 1 obligations were
				 Baht 30.60 million.
		 4.16.16 PGS for the Entrepreneurs in Logistics Business, Franchise Business and Direct Sales Business
				 Project. Under the collaboration between TCG and SME Bank and pursuant to the Cabinet’s
				 resolution on 21 April 2011, it gave consent to implement under Credit Guarantee Project in
				 term of Portfolio Guarantee Scheme with 5-year guarantee period and financial limit of Baht
				 2,000 million. TCG pays compensatory security for not over than 7.50% of average guarantee
				 obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term. The annual fee for the first year is allowed to
				 be charged at 0.75% (the expiry date of guarantee application on 31 December 2011) whereas
				 the Government compensates annual fee rate for 1% of guaranteed financial limit in the first
				 year under fee compensation financial limit of not over than Baht 20 million. As at 31 December
				 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht 476.03 million.
		 4.16.17 PGS for Entrepreneurs Affected from Flood, Storm and Mudslide in 2011. The financial limit is
				 Baht 2,000 million under the collaboration between TCG and SME Bank. Pursuant to the
				 Cabinet’s resolution on 3 May 2011, it gave consent for implementation under Credit Guarantee
				 Project in term of Portfolio Guarantee Scheme for 5-year guarantee period and financial limit
				 of Baht 2,000 million. TCG pays compensatory security for not over than the rate of 7.50% of
				 average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term. The annual fee in the 1st
				 - 2nd Year is charged at 1% (the expiry date of guarantee application on 31 December 2011)
				 whereas the Government compensate annual fee rate for 0.75% of guarantee financial limit in
				 the first year under the fee compensation financial limit of not over than Baht 30 million. As at
				 31 December 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht 303 million.
		 4.16.18 PGS FLOOD in 2011 Project. Pursuant to the Cabinet’s resolution on 1 November 2011, it gave
				 consent to implement credit guarantee in term of Portfolio Guarantee Scheme to assist SMEs
				 entrepreneurs which have been affected from 2011 flood. The financial limit is Baht 100,000
				 million with not over than 7-year guarantee period. The expiry date of guarantee application is
				 within 31 October 2012 and the annual fee rate is charged at 1.75% of guarantee financial
				 limit throughout the project term. The maximum loss which is guarantee obligation of Non
				 Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is determined to be 30% of average guarantee obligation on
				 the expiry date of guarantee term. The Government compensates the actual loss but not over
				 than 17.75% of average guarantee obligation throughout the project term. The annual
				 guarantee fee rate is charged at 1.75% whereas the Government’s guarantee fee subsidy for
				 the 1st - 3rd Year is granted to TCG at the annual rate of 1.75% of guarantee financial limit.
				 The fee is charged from the user of financial limit in the 4th - 7th Year at 1.75% of guarantee
				 financial limit. As at 31 December 2015, TCG had guarantee obligations classified into Phase 1
				 for Baht 8,967.92 million and Phase 2 for Baht 2,026.09 million.
		 4.16.19 PGS for Specialized Financial Institution Phase 1 Project. It is the Memorandum of Understanding
				 on Collaboration under Credit Guarantee Project in term of PGS for specific financial institution
				 and TCG for financial limit of Baht 700 million with not over than 7-year project term (project
				 commencement on 20 June 2012). The maximum loss which is the guarantee obligation of
				 Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is determined to be 10.60% of average guarantee
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				 obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term. The annual guarantee fee rate is changed at
				 1.55% of guarantee line. Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory security reserves of fee
				 revenue received in that year. As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht
				 93.12 million.
4.16.20 PGS for Micro SMEs with the Specialized Financial Institution Phase 2 Project. Pursuant to
				 TCG’s Board of Directors on 26 June 2013, it approved to implement credit guarantee to
				 support glass roots economic entrepreneurs in the financial limit of Baht 3,000 million within
				 1 year from the signing date of MOU with 7-year guarantee period and maximum credit
				 financial limit for not over than Baht 1 million per individual entrepreneur. The maximum
				 loss which is the guarantee obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is determined
				 to be 10% of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term. The annual
				 guarantee fee rate is charged at 1.50%. As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations
				 were Baht 5.13 million.
		 4.16.21 PGS New/Start-up SMEs Project. According to the Cabinet’s resolution on 24 April 2012, the
				 consent was made for the credit guarantee execution for new entrepreneur that has business
				 life for not more than 2 years and is SMEs that is passed for training or under execution for the
				 financial limit of Baht 10,000 million for 7-year guarantee period and maximum guarantee
				 financial limit for not more than Baht 2 million per individual entrepreneur. The guarantee
				 application is ended within 31 December 2012. The maximum loss which is the guarantee
				 obligation of Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is 30% of average guarantee obligation
				 on the expiry date of guarantee term. The guarantee obligation which is NPG shall not be over
				 than 37.50% of average guarantee obligation after the anniversary date in each year. The annual
				 guarantee fee rate is charged at 2.50% per year. However, the Government shall support the
				 fee to SMEs in the first year at the rate of 1.75% charged from the client in the rate of 0.75%. In
				 addition, the Cabinet’s resolution on 8 January 2013 was approved to extend guarantee period
				 for 3 years more from former expiry date on 31 December 2012 to be expired for credit
				 application on 31 December 2015. TCG therefore appropriates compensatory security reserves
				 for the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year. As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s
				 guarantee obligations with the expiry of guarantee applications at the end of Year 2012 as Phase
				 1 for Baht 13.18 million, in Year 2013 as Phase 2 for Baht 48.20 million, in Year 2014 as Phase 3
				 for Baht 894.23 million, and in Year 2015 as Phase 4 for Baht 812.41 million.
		 4.16.22 PGS Productivity Improvement Loan Project for Entrepreneur. According to the Cabinet’s
				 resolution on 24 April 2012, the consent was made on credit guarantee implementation to
				 support Productivity Improvement Loan Project for SMEs that are passed the qualification
				 consideration from Department of Industry Promotion or certification by SME Bank. The financial
				 limit is Baht 20,000 million within 2 years period. The guarantee period is 7 years and maximum
				 guarantee financial limit is not more than Baht 5 million per each entrepreneur. The guarantee
				 application is ended within 23 April 2014. The maximum loss as the guarantee obligation of Non
				 Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is defined for 10.50% of average guarantee obligation on
				 the expiry date of guarantee term. The annual guarantee fee rate is charged in the rate of
				 1.75%. However, the Government shall support the fee to SMEs in the first year at the rate of
				 1.75%. TCG therefore appropriates compensatory security reserves of the whole amount of fee
				 revenue received in that year. As at 31 December 2015, TCG had guarantee obligations with
				 the expiry of guarantee applications at the end of Year 2012 as Phase 1 for Baht 4,317.53 million,
				 in Year 2013 as Phase 2 for Baht 7,355.50 million, in Year 2014 as Phase 3 for Baht 151.31 million,
				 and in Year 2015 as Phase 4 for Baht 7.29 million.
		
4.16.23 Renew PGS 1 - 4 Project for support on PGS Phase 1- 4 Projects with maturity of guarantee term.
				 In accordance with the resolution of TCG’s Board of Directors on 25 October 2013, the consent
				 was made on credit guarantee implementation for PGS Phase 1 - 4 Projects with maturity of
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				 guarantee term. The guarantee period for each project period is not more than 7 years from the
				 issuance date of Letter of Guarantee. The maximum loss which is the guarantee obligation of
				 Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is determined for 11.75% of average guarantee
				 obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term for each project period. The payment of
				 compensatory security will be ended in the 11th year for the last issue of Letter of Guarantee.
				 The annual guarantee fee rate is charged at 1.75%. TCG therefore appropriates compensatory
				 security reserve of the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year. As at 31 December
				 2015, TCG had guarantee obligations for Phase 1 were Baht 3,651.15 million and Phase 2 were
				 Baht 5,897.66 million.
		
4.16.24 PGS Micro Entrepreneurs Project. TCG’s Board of Directors No. 10/2014 dated 10 July 2014
				 resolved to approve the preparation of new credit guarantee project criteria in type of
				 intermediate-term/long-term loans with at least 3 years of installment period. The guarantee
				 period is not more than 10 years from the issuance date of each Letter of SMEs Guarantee. The
				 guarantee liability per package is determined for not more than the paid guarantee fee amount
				 which is monthly rationed in each year period in combination with the contribution disbursed
				 from the Government for 20% of guarantee approved line in each year period. The annual
				 guarantee fee rate is properly charged for each SMEs between 1 -3% of the guarantee line for
				 each SMEs. As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht 4,949.63 million.
		
4.16.25 PGS for OTOP Entrepreneurs and Community Enterprises Project. TCG’s Board of Directors No.
				 10/2014 dated 10 July 2014 resolved to approve the preparation of the Memorandum of
				 Cooperation Agreement for Cooperation under Loan Guarantee Project in term of PGS. The lender
				 defines the financial limit that will request TCG to guarantee each SMEs. If in case that there
				 are two contracts and over for TCG’s guarantee and the lender does not define the financial
				 limit of individual contractual guarantee, TCG will define the financial limit of individual
				 contractual guarantee according to the proportion of financial limit requesting for TCG guarantee
				 to the guaranteed credit line. Each SMEs can be permitted for TCG guarantee on all of total
				 lenders in maximum financial limit of guarantee for not more than Baht 3 million per SMEs. The
				 guarantee period for each project is not more than 7 years from the issuance date of Letter
				 of Guarantee. The liability which is the guarantee obligation for Non Performing Credit Guarantee
				 (NPG) of each portfolio is not more than 25% of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date
				 of guarantee term. The annual guarantee fee rate is charged at the rate of 1.50% of the
				 guarantee line for each SMEs. As at 31 December 2015, TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht
				 72.46 million.
		
4.16.26 PGS SMEs Halal Trade Project. TCG’s Board of Directors No. 3/2014 dated 25 March 2014
				 resolved to approve the preparation of Memorandum of Cooperation Agreement under Credit
				 Guarantee Project in term of PGS for Islamic Bank of Thailand to support SMEs Halal
				 entrepreneurs aiming toward AEC and Muslim world. The guarantee period for each project
				 period is not more than 10 years from the issuance date of Letter of Guarantee. The liability of
				 guarantee obligation which is Non Performing Credit Guarantee (NPG) is not more than 14.75%
				 of average guarantee obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term. The annual guarantee fee
				 rate is charged in the rate of 1.50% of the guarantee line for each SMEs. As at 31 December 2015,
				 TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht 9.20 million.
		 4.16.27 PGS Policy Loan Project. Pursuant to the Cabinet’s resolution on 16 June 2015, it approved to
				 implement Low Interest Credit Guarantee Project to assist small SMEs entrepreneur that
				 confronts with liquidity problem, promote small potential SMEs to have liquidity for business
				 improvement and competitiveness enhancement, create confidence to the entrepreneur
				 supported by the financial institution, and also promote economic growth of Thailand. Total
				 financial limit is Baht 15,000 million for not over than 5-year guarantee period from the issuance
				 date of Letter of Guarantee. The annual guarantee fee rate is charged at 1.75% under the
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governmental subsidy for guarantee fee in lieu of SMEs in Year 1 at the annual rate of 1.75%,
and Year 2 and Year 3 at the rate of 0.75% of guarantee line. The fee is charged from SMES in
Year 2 – 3 at the annual rate of 1.0%, Year 4 – 5 at annual rate of 1.75% of guarantee line. It is
classified into the part that TCG receives from guarantee fee charge in the rate of 5.50% and
another 3.25% that is received from the governmental compensation. The liable loss of the
guarantee obligation which is NPG is determined for not over than 18% of average guarantee
obligation on the expiry date of guarantee term for each portfolio. The Government compensates
the actual loss but not over than the financial limit of Baht 1,387.50 million of average guarantee
obligation throughout the project term. Therefore, TCG appropriates compensatory security
reserve of the entire amount of fee revenue received in that year. As at 31 December 2015,
TCG’s guarantee obligations were Baht 3,713.87 million.

Moreover, TCG’s guarantee obligations for Normal Projects were Baht 7,216.71 million consisting of
Normal Projects for Baht 325.06 million, MOU Project for Baht 636.43 million, SME – NPL for Baht 36.89
million, and RP (Risk Participation) Project for Baht 6,218.33 million.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, TCG had the guarantee limits that have already been approved and
under contract making, and the guarantee limits that the borrowers have had problems and under
legal actions as follows.
Unit : Million Baht
สินทรัพย์
2015
2014
		
Guarantee limits that have already been approved and under contract making
Guarantee limits that the borrowers have had problems and under legal actions
- The part that has already been instituted to the court
- The part that has not yet been instituted the court
Total
		
		
		

212.05

71.68

17,786.45
2,120.11
20,118.61

5,035.98
8,628.19
13,735.85

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, TCG’s compensation security reserve for contingent loss from
guarantee obligation was provided for Baht 5,974.26 million and Baht 5,523.46 million, respectively
(Note 4.11).

4.17 Long-Term Lease

		
		

TCG has had the lease obligations for the part that has been due for payment according to the period
of time from the date in Statement of Financial Position as follows.
Unit : Million Baht
2015
Transaction
Not over than 1 year
From 1-5 years
Total

Property/Plant Lease
Vehicle Lease
Computer Lease
Total

5.13
5.00
1.91
12.04

1.58
8.79
1.56
11.93
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Transaction

Not over than 1 year

Property/Plant Lease
Vehicle Lease
Computer Lease
Total

2014
From 1-5 years

7.28
6.63
2.25
16.16

5.37
14.42
3.47
23.26

4.18 Other Revenues
สินทรัพย์
Interest Received of Cash at Bank
Interest of Note Receivables, Bond
Interest Received – Guaranty Receivables
Bad Debt Received in Return
Other Incomes
Total

Executive Remuneration
Total
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

Total
12.65
21.05
5.72
39.42
Unit : Million Baht
2014

2015
141.16
2.61
82.58
11.66
238.01

4.19 Remuneration of Key Corporate Executives
สินทรัพย์

Unit : Million Baht

205.45
0.19
42.78
0.91
11.77
261.10
Unit : Million Baht
2014

2015
20.44
20.44

14.26
14.26

The executive remuneration means the remuneration both in monetary and non-monetary forms paid
to the Director and President, and the first three executives counting from the Director and President
according to Accounting Standard of Related Party Disclosure.
TCG has complied with Accounting Standard of Employee Benefits by recording to recognize long-term
benefits of the executives which include the retired employee benefits according to labor law and
rule of TCG’s human resource management welfare. The long-term executive benefits in the year
ended 31 December 2015 for Baht 0.37 million. As at 31 December 2015, total obligation of long-term
executive benefits was Baht 2.76 million.

4.20 Risk Management Information
		 Risk Information
		 1. Credit Risk
			 Credit risk (credit guarantee) means risks that occurs when a client who is granted for credit guarantee
			 by TCG is unable to repay the debt to the lending financial institution or risks that is resulted from
			 potential event of default until causing TCG’s possibility to pay compensation security. This may
			 affect the status of fund and income of TCG.
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			 TCG has determined credit guarantee target to enable to fulfill the mission and conform to public
			 sector’s policy under consideration on economic risk and situation. TCG has launched credit guarantee
			 product in type of Portfolio Guarantee Scheme in the form of risk-controllable guarantee under
			 continuous development and improvement of credit risk management such as Credit Scoring Model
			 to be proper, accurate and up to date so that it can be used to promote credit guarantee for use as
			 credit guarantee to be more effective. In addition, risk limit in monitoring and controlling NPGs (Non
			 Performing Credit Guarantees) which is considered as significant for credit risk management has been
			 determined under implementation of NPGs debt preventive and corrective measure to be in line
			 with target and aid provision to SMEs which have enough solvency potentials, resulting in TCG’s loss
			 abatement. Moreover, Stress Testing has been conducted to assess impact on fund sufficiency.
		
		 2. Market Risk
			 Market risk means risk that TCG may be damaged due to value change of the position in Statement
			 of Financial Position derived from movement of interest rate and security price negatively affecting
			 TCG’s income and capital.
			 2.1 Interest Rate Risk
				 Interest rate risk is the risk caused from change in interest rate, possibly affecting current and
				 future change in financial instrument value or financial asset value of TCG and affecting TCG’s
				 revenue and capital. Therefore, investment structure management in consistency with the
				 direction of interest rate, and risk management through significant risk management tool such as
				 determination of Key Risk Indicator (KRI) have been executed to ensure that investment
				 management return is in line with determined target.
			
			 2.2 Equity Price Risk
				 Equity price risk is the risk caused from change in price of security in type of equity instrument or
				 capital stock that results in current and future change in TCG’s financial instrument value or
				 financial asset value that affects TCG’s income and capital.
				 TCG’s policy and restriction of investment (Strategic Asset Allocation : SAA) includes investment
				 selection in equity instrument for not over than 15% of capital and risk control under
				 determination of risk limit values such as proper VaR, Beta and Duration of Portfolio values as well
				 as determination of Key Risk Indicator which signals trigger of investment management return that
				 is not on target.
			 Moreover, Stress Testing in market aspect is quarterly conducted under consideration on overview
			 impact o f market risk including risk of interest rate and equity instrument price to ensure that TCG
			 will be able to support contingent damage in crisis.
		 3. Liquidity Risk
			 Liquidity risk means risk caused from TCG’s insolvency for debt and compensatory security to
			 financial institution due to inability to convert assets into cash in time or inability to acquire adequate
			 capital or ability to acquire capital but with unacceptable higher cost, possibly affecting TCG’s income
			 and capital.
			
			
			
			
		

TCG’s liquidity risk management is responsible by Investment Management Department to administer
and manage TCG’s liquidity and determine risk management framework and instrument for use in
risk identification, assessment, control, monitoring and reporting to ensure that the liquidity position
is proper and adequate in supporting TCG’s operation both in normal situation and crisis situation.
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		 4. Operational Risk
			 Operational risk means risk that may lead to damages as a result from the lack of good corporate
			 governance, organizational governance and good control. This may be related to internal operational
			 procedure, personnel, work process or external factor and may impact TCG’s income and capital.
			 Operational risk management of TCG is executed through continuous and systematic risk
			 identification, assessment, control, monitoring and reporting process. Therefore, the significant risk
			 management tool such as Control Self Assessment (CSA), Key Risk Indicator (KRI), Loss Incident
			 Information Reporting, has been applied, and risk control measure and so on has been executed. The
			 objective includes control potential enhancement, operational risk monitoring to be in proper level,
			 risk management ability without delay prior-damage occurrence against TCG and TCG’s customer, and
			 Business Continuity Management to ensure continuity of TCG business operation under emergency
			 situations.
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

Quick Assets
Quick assets of TCG means deposits or quick and secure financial instruments which shall be maintained
by TCG for operating sufficiency and ability to support payment of compensatory security. They
consist of all types of deposits, certificate of deposit, promissory notes, bill of exchange, bond, treasury
bill, money market fund with indifferent risk of invested instruments from scope of TCG investment, and
other financial instruments approved from TCG’s Board of Directors. The said deposits and financial
instruments shall have remaining term for not over than 3 years. However, the investment in equity
investment is prohibited.
Source and Use of Capital
TCG’s source of liquidity is from guarantee fee, subsidy for fee and loss compensation for governmental
projects, interest received from investment, receipt of compensation guarantee return and other
incomes. Source of Use is the payment of compensatory security, operating expense and investment
expense whereas TCG defines the framework of liquidity maintenance pursuant to prescribed policy
of Investment Management Committee to have the proportion of quick assets and estimates in
expenditure of compensatory security payment for Normal Projects, PGS Projects and operating
expenses for 1-month period not below 1.1 times. As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, TCG’s quick asset
proportion was 2.21% and 2.48% of source of capital, respectively.
สินทรัพย์

Source of Capital
Guarantee Fee
Subsidy for Fee and Loss Compensation of Governmental Project
Private Fund
Total Capital Received
Use of Capital
Project Loss Compensation
Subsidy for Guarantee Fee of Governmental Project
Total Capital Used
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2015
Percent

2014
Percent

25.20
7.72
65.57
98.49

27.52
9.67
61.36
98.55

91.25
3.58
94.83

82.62
12.53
95.15

		
		
		

For the estimates of the source of capital in next 5 year period for 2016 – 2020, TCG has estimated
source and use of capital, and proportion of quick assets for 1.82%, 2.01%, 2.09%, 1.90% and 1.68% as
follows.
สินทรัพย์
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Percent
Percent
Percent
Percent
Percent

Source of Capital
Guarantee Fee
Subsidy for Fee and Loss
Compensation of Governmental
Project
Private Fund
Total Capital Received
Source of Use of Capital
Project Loss Compensation
Subsidiary for Guarantee Fee of
Governmental Project
Total Capital Used

35.89

30.29

33.38

35.95

39.46

16.27
46.92
99.08

25.44
43.06
98.79

21.76
43.22
98.36

14.89
46.95
97.79

8.50
49.46
97.42

79.98

80.71

91.82

94.66

95.02

15.95
95.93

15.58
96.29

3.80
95.62

0.94
95.60

95.02

4.21 Fair Value of Financial Instrument

		

The values of financial assets and liabilities were measured with fair value as follows.
Unit : Million Baht
สินทรัพย์
2015
2014
Book Value Fair Value Book Value
Fair Value

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Temporary Investment – Bond and Fixed Deposit
Temporary Investment – Private fund Investment
Long-Term Investment
Total

784.28
2,437.96
9,718.86
1,525.00
14,466.10

784.28
2,437.96
9,811.90
1,525.00
14,559.14

38.58
5,878.00
9,652.31
500.00
16,068.89

38.58
5,878.00
9,815.75
500.00
16,232.33
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4.22 Transaction Reclassification

		
		
		

Some transactions in Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 have been reclassified
for consistency with the presentation of transactions in Financial Statements for the year ended
31 December 2015.
Unit : Million Baht
สินทรัพย์
2014
PriorReclassified
PostTransaction
Transaction
Transaction
Reclassification
Reclassification

Statement of Financial Position
Property, Plant and Equipment - Net
Intangible Assets - Net
Work in Process
Comprehensive Profit and Loss Statement
Employee Expense
Director Remuneration
Other Expenses
Cash Flow Statement
Work in Process
Cash Paid from Purchase of Property, Plant and
Equipment
Cash Paid from Purchase of Intangible Assets

4.23 Approval of Financial Statements

		
		

-

68.90
5.71
5.49

2.78
2.71
(5.49)

221.27
4.20
68.37

0.09
0.67
(0.76)

(5.40)

5.40

(29.74)

1.08
(6.48)

71.68
8.42
221.36
4.87
67.61
(28.66)
(6.48)

These Financial Statements have been approved for issuance of Financial Statements by TCG’s Board
of Directors on 11 April 2016.
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TCG Shareholders’ Structure and Capital Structure
1. TCG Securities
		 As at December 31, 2015, TCG has registered capital totaling Baht 6,839,946,700 million with a total
number of shares equaling to 68,399,467 shares at Baht 100 per share whereas paid-up capital was equaled to
Baht 6,702,473,000 million or totaling 67,024,730 shares.
2. Shareholders
		 The largest shareholder of TCG is the Ministry of Finance which has a shareholding of 95.49 % of paid-up
capital. The details of shareholders’ structure and top ten shareholders are as follow:

0.94% 632,500 shares
0.85%
0.71%
0.62%
0.38%

571,900 shares
476,600 shares
415,200 shares
257,193 shares

0.19% 127,287 shares
0.21% 143,000 shares
0.18% 119,100 shares

63,999,200 shares

95.49%

0.18% 117,500 shares
Ministry of Finance

Government Savings Bank

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Krung Thai Bank Public Company Limited

Kasikorn Bank Public Company Limited

The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited

Financial Institutions Development Fund

Small and Medium Enterprise Development of Thailand

		
		

No transactions relating to important securities information owned by the directors according to the
securities holding report or transactions relating to the acquisition or disposition of securities of directors
during the accounting period 2015 has been reported during the accounting period 2015.

		

No related transactions according to the related transaction report prepared by the Board of Directors of
TCG have been reported during the accounting period 2015.
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Events and Social Activities in 2015
SMEs Development
1. Signing MOU with public and private organizations in order to assist SME entrepreneurs
On March 6, 2015, Mr. Sommai Phasee, Minister of
Finance, together with Dr. Pichet Durongkaveroj, Minister
of Science and Technology, chaired the MOU signing
ceremony on “Competence Promotion for Technology Based
and Innovative SMEs for Sustainable Growth” between
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG), of which Mr. Vallobh
Tejapaibul, President of TCG is the representative, and
National Science and Technology Development Agency
(NSTDA), of which Dr. Thaweesak Koanantakool, President
of NSTDA, is the representative, with the aim to provide
assistance to technology based and innovative SME
entrepreneurs.
On May 29, 2015, Mr. Wisudhi Srisuphan, Deputy
Minister of Finance, chaired the opening ceremony of a
book called “Through the Lens of the International Review
of Credit Guarantee Schemes”, which was translated
into Thai by TCG. Based on the original book called
International Review of Credit Guarantee Schemes, this
translation copy is the first and the only credit guarantee
book in Thailand that uncovers the secrets of credit
guarantee systems in various countries worldwide. The
event was held at the Grand Millennium Sukhumvit
Bangkok where Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon, Chairman of
TCG, also attended to give a welcoming speech.
On June 17, 2015, Mr. Vallobh Tejapaibul, President of
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG), welcomed Miss
Banthornchome Kaewsa-ard, Fiscal Policy Advisor from
Fiscal Policy Office, at the opening ceremony of “SME
Credit Guarantees and Thailand’s Economic Recovery”, a
conference held by TCG at Conrad Bangkok Hotel in order
to strengthen confidence among top management of
various banking institutions as well as the officials
responsible for approving SME credit guarantees in hope to
promote economic growth.
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On July 20, 2015, Mrs. Salinee Wangtan, Chairman of
Small and Medium Enterprise Development of Thailand
(SME Bank), together with Mr. Supot Arevart, Managing
Director of SME Bank, Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon,
Chairman of Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG), and
Mr. Vallobh Tejapaibul, President of TCG, jointly signed
MOU on “Policy Loan Guarantee Scheme”, totaling the
amount of Baht 15,000 million, with the aim to help
reduce financial burden of small businesses that have
been affected by slow economy, including supporting SME
entrepreneurs involving in exports business or planning to
make investments in foreign countries by offering loans at only 4% interest rate while credit guarantees are to be
provided by TCG. The event took place at the SME Bank Tower, Phaholyothin Road.
On August 17, 2015, Mr. Vallobh Tejapaibul, President
of Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG), together
with Mr. Wichet Warakul, Senior Executive Vice President
(Business Group) of TCG, joined a press conference on “ The
Revised PGS5 Guarantee Scheme” according the Cabinet’s
resolution on July 14, 2015, totaling the amount of Baht
80,000 million, including informing the operating results
concerning credit guarantees for Micro Entrepreneurs and
introducing Online Credit Guarantee Clinic to enable SME
entrepreneurs easier access to financial sources. The event
took place at the Press Conference Room of the Ministry
of Finance.
On August 20, 2015, Mr. Vallobh Tejapaibul, President
of Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG), together
with Mr. Wichet Warakul, Senior Executive Vice President
(Business Group) of TCG, and Ms. Sae-won Hwang, Korean
EXIM Bank Project Manager, jointly attended the signing
of Aide Memoire between Korea EXIM Bank, on behalf of
South Korea government, and TCG to establish supports in
terms of knowledge and experience sharing on technology
and innovation valuation including the designing of credit
guarantee schemes for Technology and Innovation SME
group by Korea Technology Finance Corporation (KOTEC)
and Korea Small Business Institute (KOSBI), which is a SMEs research institute in South Korea. The program was
funded by the Ministry of Strategy and Finance (MOSF) under “Knowledge Sharing Program (KSP)” as part
of the “Support for Promotion of Technology Based and Innovative Entrepreneurs through Technology
Guarantee in Thailand”. The event was kindly attended by Miss Banthornchome Kaewsa-ard, Fiscal Policy Advisor
from Fiscal Policy Office, Miss Suwipa Wanasathop, Deputy Director-General of National Science and Technology
Development Agency (NSTDA), as well as the executive team from KOSBI and KOTEC at TCG Head Office.
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Mr. Krisada Chinavicharana, Director-General of Fiscal
Policy Office, together with Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon,
Chairman of Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG), and
Mr. Boontuck Wungcharoen, Chairman of the Thai Bankers’
Association, jointly attended a press conference on “TCG
offering 1 Trillion Baht Credit Guarantee for Supporting
SMEs and Promoting Credit Expansion” in order to
announce TCG’s readiness in commencing the Revised
Portfolio Guarantee Scheme Phase 5 (PGS 5) according
to the Cabinet’s resolution dated on September 8, 2015,
totaling the guarantee amount of Baht 1 trillion, with the
aim to assist SME entrepreneurs in acquiring sufficient loans from financial institutions for business operation
as well as promoting financial liquidity. Under such scheme, over 30,000 additional SME entrepreneurs are
expected to gain credit guarantees, generating around Baht 170,000 million of credit in the system. The event
took place at the Press Conference Room of the Ministry of Finance on September 16, 2015.
On September 18, 2015, General Prayuth Chan-ocha,
the Prime Minister, kindly attended the MOU signing
ceremony established between Thai Credit Guarantee
Corporation (TCG) and 19 banking institutions as part of the
Portfolio Guarantee Scheme Phase 5 (Revised) according
to the Cabinet’s resolution dated on September 8, 2015
at the “Driving SMEs, Driving Thailand’s Economy” held at
the Royal Jubilee Ballroom, Impact Challenger Hall, Muang
Thong Thani. The event was also attended by Mr. Yarnsak
Manomaiphiboon, Chairman of TCG, and Mr. Chaturit
Chantarakarn, Senior Executive Vice President (Supporting
Group) and Acting President of TCG, who jointly signed the
MOU.
Mr. Wichet Warakul, Senior Executive Vice President
(Business Group), together with Mr. Vipon Vorasowharid,
First Executive Vice President and Head of SME Segment
Function, Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited,
and Mrs. Pikun Srimahunt, First Executive Vice President
of the Mortgage Business Division, Siam Commercial Bank
Public Company Limited, jointly signed an MOU on “Advance
Payment of Credit Guarantee Fees Program”, a project
established under the collaboration between Thai Credit
Guarantee Corporation (TCG) and Siam Commercial Bank
Public Company Limited, the first banking institution to join
the program, to support the expanding credit demands of
SME entrepreneurs as well as providing credit guarantee
service to the increasing number of SMEs within the country.
The event took place at the Swissotel Le Concorde
Bangkok on October 15, 2015.
Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
134 Thai
Annual Report 2015

SMEs Development

On October 21, 2015, Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon,
Chairman of Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG),
together with Mr. Pongchai Chaijirawiwat, Vice President
(Business Marketing Group) of Bangchak Petroleum Public
Company Limited, joined a press conference on the
launching of “Bangchak – TCG Supporting SMEs Credit via
Bangchak Fleet Card” at the Sofitel Sukhumvit Bangkok
Hotel. The project was carried out under the collaboration
between TCG and Bangchak, the first Thai oil company
to support the government’s economic promotion policy
by making payment of guarantee fees on behalf of SME
entrepreneurs who had been using Bangchak fleet card for
seven consecutive years, making up of around 8.25% of
the guarantee amount. The program helped to support
government policy by taking the burden of guarantee fees
payment on behalf of SME entrepreneurs for a total of
four years period, or around 4%. The project was joined by
Krung Thai Bank Public Company Limited, Kasikorn Bank
Public Company Limited and TMB Bank Public Company
Limited whereas a total of Baht 1,000 million in credit
amount to be released can be expected.
On November 4, 2015, Thai Credit Guarantee
Corporation (TCG) hosted the “Financial State Owned
Enterprises Committee No. 6/2015” at the Head Office of
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG). At the event,
Mr. Niwat Kanjanaphoomin, Director and Acting President
of TCG, warmly welcomed Mr. Chatchai Payuhanaveechai,
President of Government Savings Bank and Chairman of
Financial State Owned Enterprises, including Financial
State Owned Enterprises Committee to discuss operational
procedure and progress of various projects which had been
assigned to Specialized Financial Institutions (SFIs) by the
government.
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2. SMEs Development and Collaboration with Financial Institutions
“Access to Finance” : TCG Branch Administration
Department together with the Bank of Thailand, the
National Credit Bureau, alliance agencies and local
financial institutions organized “Access to Finance” to
assist SME entrepreneurs from over 11 provinces
nationwide in accessing financial sources. At the event, a
special talk held by the National Credit Bureau and a forum
on “How to Gain Credit Approval” jointly hosted by SMEs
development experts and TCG also took place.

“Credit Guarantee Clinic” : TCG Branch Administration
organized “Credit Guarantee Clinic” in order to give
advice and recommendations on how to be prepared for
loan request, including conducting pre-screening based
on general criteria which financial institutions often used
in considering the submitted loan requests. This activity
mainly focuses on providing consultation on credit
expansion and credit guarantees provided by TCG,
including giving advice and recommendations on financial
and business planning and how to prepare for loan request.
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Empowering SMEs to Gain Access to Financial Source
together with UBI: TCG Branch Administration Department
together with University Business Incubators (UBI) nationwide
organized an activity to empower SME entrepreneurs in
accessing financial sources with the aim to raise the
opportunity and assist OTOP and Community Enterprise
group as well as small businesses that still lack the
knowledge on how to access financial sources but wish to
conduct a business including start-up businesses in gaining
access to basic financial sources by providing advice and
suggestions on proper business management in order to
gain wider access to financial sources.

“TCG Orientation for SME”: TCG Branch Administration
Department organized “TCG Orientation”meetings for SME
entrepreneurs from every region nationwide which TCG
provided credit guarantee service in order to establish good
relationship between TCG and its clients and at the same
time informing them of the roles and responsibilities of TCG
as well as its wide range of credit guarantee products and
services. Furthermore, a special talk and a forum were
held in order to educate the SMEs, including sharing
business perspectives and useful experiences to be applied
in real life business operation. The activity also aims to build good bonds between customers in hope to form
a business network among SME entrepreneurs. In addition, Financial Clinic was also held to give financial advice
to entrepreneurs.
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“TCG Orientation for Bank” : TCG Branch Administration
Department organized an activity called “Bank Orientation”
which involves arranging meetings and small-group seminar
sessions for financial institutions in both local and regional
level in order to introduce the criteria and practice
concerning credit guarantee application, including making
coordination for the submission of credit guarantee
applications and follow up, and continuously building good
relationship.

“TCG Seminar for Bank” : TCG Branch Administration
Department organized “Bank Seminar” activity in order
to strengthen the bonds between TCG and its clients as
well as financial institutions and at the same time raising
opportunity and promoting mutual cooperation by allowing
credit officials from various financial institutions to help
recommend TCG products and services among SME
entrepreneurs.
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3. Creating Awareness among Public and Private Allied Organizations
General Prayuth Chan-ocha, the Prime Minister, kindly
visited the exhibition booth of Thai Credit Guarantee
Corporation (TCG) at the “Innovation and Technology
for SMEs and Farmers Exhibition” as part of the “Mobile
Cabinet Meeting” where he received a warm welcome
from Mr. Vallobh Tejapaibul, President of TCG. The event
was held at Suan Son Pradipat, Hua Hin District, Prachuap
Khiri Khan Province from March 27-28, 2015.

On September 5, 2015, General Prayuth Chan-ocha,
the Prime Minister, chaired the opening ceremony of
“Thailand’s Community and SME Products Expo” and
kindly visited the exhibition booth of Thai Credit Guarantee
Corporation (TCG) where he received a warm welcome from
Mr. Niwat Kanjanaphoomin, Director and Acting President
of TCG, Mrs. Pongtip Thesaphu, Vice President of Public
Relations Department, and Mr. Khomsun Wattanawanaphong,
Vice President of Branch Administration Department. The
event took place at Khlong Phadung Krung Kasem Market,
Government House.
On May 7, 2015, Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon,
Chairman of Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG), along
with Mr. Wichet Warakul, Senior Executive Vice President
(Business Group) of TCG, and the executive team attended
the opening ceremony of the “Money Expo 2015” held
at Impact Challenger Hall, Muang Thong Thani where TCG
organized a booth for giving advice and recommendations
to SME entrepreneurs who wish to access financial sources.
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Col. Prasert Shusang, Chairman of the Executive
Committee, Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
and Mr. Wichet Warakul, Senior Executive Vice President
(Business Group) of TCG, jointly attended the “Government
Bank for People Expo” held at Chiang Mai Province where
TCG and Small and Medium Enterprise Development Bank
(SME Bank) were the hosts of the event. The “Government
Bank for People Expo” was held under the collaboration
between Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) and
Specialized Financial Institutions (SFIs) and was organized
simultaneously in five provinces including Bangkok,
Chiang Mai Province, Udon Thani Province, Rayong Province and Songkhla Province in order to stimulate the
economy and at the same time assist the low income group by offering a wide range of financial services such
as deposit account with high returns and policy loans, including credit guarantee service in order to assist
entrepreneurs in accessing financial sources. Furthermore, entrepreneurs that are the clients of financial
institutions were also invited to organize exhibition booth for product distribution from June 27-28, 2015.
On June 27-28, 2015, Mr. Pongpanu Svetarundra,
Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Finance, together
with Mr. Tassana Vichaithanapat, Vice Governor of
Rayong Province, attended the opening ceremony of the
“Government Bank for People Expo” held at the
Central Plaza Rayong and jointly visited TCG exhibition
booth where they received a warm welcome from Mr. Krit
Sommartdejsakul, Manager of TCG Chon Buri Office, and
Mr. Saphasiri Sinbovornseth, Manager of TCG Phra Nakhon
Si Ayutthaya Office, including TCG teams from Chonburi
and Adyutthaya Branches who organized the exhibition
booth for introducing TCG credit guarantee schemes to
entrepreneurs and visitors.
On June 27 -28, 2015, Mr. Prasit Suebchana, Deputy
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Finance, together with
Mr. Anuchit Trakulmututa, Vice Governor of Songkhla
Province, visited TCG exhibition booth after attending the
opening ceremony of the “Government Bank for People
Expo” held at the Central Festival Hat Yai, Songkhla
Province where they received a warm welcome from Mr.
Thaibchit Chantraputiplakorn, Manager of TCG Surat Thani
Office, and Mr. Ekaporn Nirot, Manager of TCG Songkhla
Office, including TCG teams from Songkhla and Surat Thani
Offices who organized the exhibition booth for introducing
TCG credit guarantee schemes to entrepreneurs and
visitors.
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On June 27 -28, 2015, Mr. Adul Chuntanapum, Vice
Governor of Udon Thani Province, together with Mr. Naris
Chaiyasoot, Deputy Management Secretary, Ministry of
Finance, attended the opening ceremony of the
“Government Bank for People Expo” held at the Central
Plaza Undonthani and jointly visited TCG exhibition booth
where they received a warm welcome from Mr. Manote
Sripromthong, Manager of TCG Udon Thani Office, and Mr.
Rungchai Setthabodee, Manager of TCG Ubon Ratchathani
Office, including TCG teams from Udon Thani and Ubon
Ratchathani Offices who organized the exhibition booth for
introducing TCG credit guarantee schemes to entrepreneurs
and visitors.
On June 27, 2015, Mr. Wisudhi Srisuphan, Deputy
Minister of Finance, together with Mr. Rangsan Sriworasart,
Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Finance, jointly
attended the opening ceremony of the “Government
Bank for People Expo” held at Impact Hall 3, Muang Thong
Thani, Bangkok and visited TCG exhibition booth where
they received a warm welcome from Mr. Yarnsak
Manomaiphiboon, Chairman of TCG, and Mr. Vallobh
Tejapaibul, President of TCG, including the management
teams from the Ministry of Finance and Specialized
Financial Institutions (SFIs).

On July 2, 2015, Mr. Somboon Mekpaiboonwattana, Vice
Minister of Information and Communication Technology,
received a warm welcome from Mr. Wichet Warakul,
Senior Executive Vice President (Business Group) of Thai
Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG), as he kindly attended
the opening of TCG exhibition booth at the “Smart SME
Expo 2015” held at Impact Halls 3-4, Muang Thong Thani.
At the event, Public Relations together with Branch
Administration Teams jointly gave advice and introduce
TCG credit guarantee schemes to entrepreneurs and
visitors.

Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
Annual Report 2015

141

SMEs Development

Mr. Vallobh Tejapaibul, President of Thai Credit
Guarantee Corporation (TCG), joined TCG exhibition booth
at the “Meet & Greet SMEs “SOMART Social Market”,
an event held at the Central World Square B-C from April
4-6, 2015, in order to help give advice on credit guarantees
for SME entrepreneurs. The event was organized under
the collaboration between TCG and Space 329 Company
Limited with the aim to support SME entrepreneurs and
online trading group by providing space for them to
promote and sell their products, including adding
alternative distribution channel via offline market where
they can directly meet with the customers as well as promoting product distribution and liquidity among
entrepreneurs. The event was joined by over 340 leading brands from the social network.
On September 18 – 20, 2015, Mr. Supawat Sakda, Vice
Governor of Surat Thani Province, together with Mr. Teerachai
Sripochai, President of Surat Thani Chamber of Commerce,
attended the opening ceremony of the “Thailand Smart
Money Road Trip” held at the Central Plaza Suratthani and
jointly visited TCG exhibition booth where they received a
warm welcome from Mr. Sutthidait Chuayklai, Business
Development Manager, TCG Surat Thani Office, including
Public Relations and Surat Thani Branch Administration
Teams who introduced the roles and responsibilities
as well as credit guarantee services of TCG to SME
entrepreneurs and visitors.
On November 27 – 28, 2015, Mr. Alongkorn Laowngam,
Assistant Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Science
and Technology, kindly chaired the opening ceremony
of “SME Thailand BIG KNOWLEDGE DAY 2015” held at
Sirikit Convention Center, and later visited TCG exhibition
booth where he received a warm welcome from TCG
Public Relations and Branch Administration Teams. At the
event, TCG introduced its roles in assisting entrepreneurs
in gaining easier access to financial sources as well as TCG
credit guarantee services and credit advice to entrepreneurs
and visitors.

Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG)
142 Thai
Annual Report 2015

SMEs Development

Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) organized
“Meet & Greet SMEs” in hope to raise awareness among
Micro Entrepreneurs regarding TCG’s roles in assisting them
in gaining access to financial sources as well as credit
guarantee service provided by TCG in order to prepare
them for loan request and acquire the required loans for
business expansion. At the same time, promoting financial
liquidity and cash flow of entrepreneurs and providing
credit guarantee advice to ensure they have access to
financial sources. The event was organized at three
locations including Ekamai-Ram Intra Expressway Market,
Ratchadaphisek Railway Market, and Chatuchak Green Market.
Miss Pennapa Nanthachai, Senior Officer of Public
Relations Department, Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation
(TCG), warmly received Mr. Chaitawat Niamsiri, Head of
Bueng Kan Office, while he visited TCG exhibition booth at
the “Bueng Kan Red Cross and Rubber Day 2015” held
at Bueng Kan District from February 5 -8, 2015. The event
was organized to introduce TCG credit guarantee products
and services to visitors as well as providing consultation on
loan request.

4. Creating Awareness through Public Medias
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) in collaboration
with the Government Public Relations Department organized
“Children’s Day 2015” activity based on the concept of
“The Twelve Values”. The event took place at The National
Broadcasting Services of Thailand (NBT) located on
Vibhavadi Road on January 9, 2015 where Mr. Apinan
Chantarangsri, Director-General of the Government Public
Relations Department, kindly attended the opening
ceremony. The event was also joined by Mrs. Pongtip
Thesaphu, Vice President of TCG Public Relations
Department, who gave a speech on the objectives of
cooperation. Meanwhile, TCG booth received great interests
from a large number of children and visitors who participated
in various games and quizzes in hope to win the prizes.
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On August 5, 2015, Col. Prasert Shusang, Chairman of the
Executive Committee, Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation
(TCG), together with Mr. Vallobh Tejapaibul, President of
TCG, gave an interview on “Thailand Move Forward”, a
television program daily broadcasted on every channel at
6 p.m., in order to promote the roles of TCG as well as its
operating results during the first half of 2015.

On December 6, 2015, Col. Prasert Shusang, Chairman of
the Executive Committee, Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation
(TCG), together with Mr. Wichet Warakul, TCG Senior Executive
Vice President (Business Group), gave an interview on
“Thailand Move Forward: Measures for Supporting SMEs”,
a television program daily broadcasted on every channel at
6 p.m., at the Channel 3 Studio.

ความร่วมมือ
กับหน่วยงาน
ภายในประเทศ

การพัฒนา
ช่วยเหลือ
ผู้ประกอบการ
SMEs

ความร่วมมือ
กับหน่วยงาน
ต่างประเทศ

ความร่วมมือ
กับสถาบัน
การเงิน
การช่วยเหลือ
ชุมชน
และสังคม
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In 2015, TCG continuously followed the determined
operational plan in establishing relationship with
relevant public and private agencies, including policy
makers by joining seminar meetings and joining force
with such agencies in organizing a number of activities
in order to create awareness on TCG products and

services as well as discussing on how to establish
collaboration among the group to further develop
products that can address the needs of SMEs and
achieve the targeted guarantee amount. The activities
carried out included:

1. Activities for establishing relationship and creating awareness on the products and services of TCG among
relevant public and private organizations as can be seen from MOU signing between TCG and various public and
private organizations. Today, such network covers over 40 organizations. The events which took place in the year
2015 included:
		 1.1 TCG signed MOU on “SMEs Competence Promotion and Support” with the Office of Small and
Medium Enterprises Promotion and over 20 other organizations.

		 1.2 TCG signed MOU on “Competency Promotion for Technology Based and Innovative SMEs toward
Sustainable Growth” with the National Science and Technology Development Agency (NSTDA).
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2. Activities for promoting cooperation with relevant agencies in developing products that can address the
needs of SME entrepreneurs. In 2015, the Marketing & Product Development Department joined force with both
local and foreign agencies in finding ways to support technology based and innovative entrepreneurs.
		 2.1 The Marketing & Product Development Department joined force with the National Science and
Technology Development Agency (NSTDA) in assisting technology based and innovative entrepreneurs through
Knowledge Sharing Program (KSP). Under such program, South Korea was invited to share knowledge and
experiences relating to technology valuation and credit guarantee system development for this particular group
of entrepreneurs. TCG had signed Aide Memoire with Korea Exim Bank before carrying out NSTDA-related
activities and successfully developed a framework concerning technology and innovation valuation method for
Thailand context according to its 2015 operational target.

3. Ativities for building knowledge and understandings among the target groups in order to raise guarantee
amount through numerous programs such as:
		 3.1 TCG joined force with Community Development Department and financial institutions in selecting
entrepreneurs who are interested in accessing financial sources by organizing activity to assist OTOP entrepreneurs
in the central region in acquiring loans. A large number of entrepreneurs were interested in applying for loan
request and participating in the activity of which a total of 81 entrepreneurs submitted loan request from financial
institutions whereas a total of 101 loan requests had been received from five financial institutions that joined the
event including Bangkok Bank, Krung Thai Bank, SME Bank, Bank for Agriculture and Agricultural Cooperatives, and
Government Savings Bank.
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		 3.2 TCG together with Bangkok Marketing Office organized activities at Thonburi Market (Sanamluang
Market 2) in order to create awareness and promote higher credit guarantee amount for Portfolio Guarantee
Scheme for Micro Entrepreneurs. The event was attended by numerous small businesses and leading financial
institutions including Government Savings Bank, Bangkok Bank and Tisco Bank. The event received great
response thanks to Bangkok Marketing Office who helped to promote and publicize the activity as well as TCG
missions among over 4,000 small businesses in the area in advance.

4. Activities for enhancing knowledge among entrepreneurs of various groups, including studying and
understanding the needs of SMEs in order to identify ways to enable the SMEs proper access to financial sources
by cooperating with government agencies namely Ministry of Commerce, Ministry of Industry, Ministry of Interior
and Ministry of Energy in educating and organizing exhibition booths to enhance knowledge among entrepreneurs.
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Throughout the year 2015, TCG Marketing & Product
Development Department continuously followed the
determined operational plan in creating awareness
and understandings, including maintaining relations
with financial institutions that are commercial banks
and specialized financial institutions through various

marketing activities. In addition, TCG also joined force
with public and private organizations in order to
collaboratively promote and support SME entrepreneurs
as well as engaging participation among the SMEs with
the aim to achieve the targeted guarantee amount
through various activities including:

1. Briefing/discussion meetings with financial institutions so that they are aware of the policies and progress of
each project carried out by TCG, including establishing good relationship between organizations. For instance:
		
		
On April 19, 2015, a meeting was held to inform each financial institution regarding operational procedure
			 concerning the impact of the amended guarantee and mortgage legislation.

		
			
			
			
			

On April 29, 2015, a meeting was held to inform each financial institution regarding the progress of the
government’s projects and discuss about credit guarantee expansion as well as the three measures for
promoting liquidity among SME entrepreneurs which included measure to exempt first-year fees through
PGS5 Credit Guarantee Scheme, measure to provide credit guarantees for Micro Entrepreneurs and
measure to provide credit guarantees for OTOP and Community Enterprise group.
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On September 15, 2015, a meeting was held to notify financial institutions concerning the Portfolio
			 Guarantee Scheme Phase 5 – PGS5 (revised) according to the Cabinet’s resolution dated on
			 September 8, 2015.
		
		

		
			
			
			

On December 3, 2015, a meeting was held to discuss on Portfolio Guarantee Scheme for Micro
Entrepreneurs Phase 2, the issuance of a single copy of the letter of guarantee and other concerned
matters, including consulting with and accepting opinions from financial institutions regarding TCG
credit guarantee service.

2. Organizing activities or jointly support any activities of commercial banks and specialized financial institutions
that will help to raise awareness and increase guarantee amount of TCG. For instance:
		
			
			
			

On March 31, 2015, TCG attended MOU signing ceremony on “Portfoloio Guarantee Scheme for
Supporting SMEs” according to the defined SMEs credit expansion plan for medium enterprise,
totaling guarantee amount of Baht 2,000 million. The MOU was established between Thai Credit
Guarantee Corporation (TCG) and CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited.
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On September 18, 2015, TCG attended MOU signing ceremony on “Portfolio Guarantee Scheme Phase
5 – PGS 5 (Revised) according the Cabinet’s resolution dated on September 8, 2015” and on
“Portfolio Guarantee Scheme for Soft Loan”. The MOU was established between Thai Credit Guarantee
Corporation (TCG) and 19 financial institutions.

		
			

On October 15, 2015, Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) and Siam Commercial Bank Public
Company Limited signed an MOU on “Advance Guarantee Fees Payment Program”.

		

		
			
			
			

On October 21, 2015, a press conference was held to announce the launching of a project carried out
under the collaboration between Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) and three financial
institutions including Krung Thai Bank Public Company Limited, Kasikorn Bank Public Company Limited
and TMB Bank Public Company Limited as a way to support “Bangchak Fleet Card for SMEs” program.
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A seminar session on “Measures for Stimulating SMEs Credit through TCG Guarantee Mechanism” was
held four times in both central and regional provinces namely Nakhon Ratchasima Province, Surat
Thani Province, Phra Nakhon Si Ayutthaya Province and Bangkok in order to raise awareness and
understanding regarding the roles of TCG as well as building confidence among credit officers from
various financial institutions regarding guarantee service of TCG. The event was held from May –
August 2015.

3. Raising credit guarantee amount program for financial institutions is an activity carried out to thank financial
institutions for using TCG services. The executives and representatives from financial institutions whose guarantee
amount have reached the level specified by TCG were invited to join the two business trips organized under the
concept of “Visiting Neighboring Countries to Get Ready for AEC”.
		
			
			

The first “Visiting Neighboring Countries to Get Ready for AEC” business trip which journeyed from
Udon Thani Province – Nong Khai Province – Lao People’s Democratic Republic took place from
October 1-3, 2015.

		
			
			

The second “Visiting Neighboring Countries to Get Ready for AEC” business trip which journeyed from
Chiang Rai Province – Lao People’s Democratic Republic – Republic of the Union of Myanmar took
place from December 16 – 18, 2015.
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On March 13, 2015, Mr. Siripong Pansanit, Vice President
of International Affairs Department, Thai Credit Guarantee
Corporation (TCG), together with Mrs. Pongtip Thesaphu,
Vice President of Public Relations Department, TCG, and
International Affairs Department Team jointly received
Mr. Nirmal Chandra Bhakta, Executive Director of Bangladesh
Bank, who led the executive teams from Bangladesh Bank
and the Ministry of Finance of Bangladesh on a visit to
Thailand in order to learn Thailand’s credit guarantee
system as well as credit guarantee schemes offered by TCG
to be used as a model for Bangladesh when establishing a
credit guarantee institution. The event took place at TCG
Head Office.

On March 26, 2015, Mr. Siripong Pansanit, Vice President
of International Affairs Department, Thai Credit Guarantee
Corporation (TCG), gave a warm welcome to Mr. Seet Eng
Seang, Analyst Daiwa SB Investments (Singapore) Ltd. and
Ms. Yuwanee Prommaporn, Consumer Analyst from BNP
Paribas in cooperation with FSS International Investment
Advisory Securities Co., Ltd. at TCG Head Office in order to
discuss and learn TCG credit guarantee system.

On March 30, 2015, Mr. Siripong Pansanit, Vice President
of International Affairs Department, Thai Credit Guarantee
Corporation (TCG), together with Mrs. Benjapat Charoonroj,
Manager of International Affairs Division, TCG, received
Ms. Melissa Kuang, CFA, Executive Director, Global
Investment Research, Asia Pacific from Goldman Sachs
(Singapore) Pte. at the AVANI Atrium Hotel Bangkok in order
to discuss on TCG credit guarantee operation.
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On March 30, 2015, Mr. Kriengkrai Chaisiriwongsuk,
Vice President of Marketing and Product Development
Department, Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG),
together with Mr. Siripong Pansanit, Vice President of
International Affairs Department, TCG, jointly welcomed
Mr. Koichi Naka, Assistant Manager, Finance Division, Small
and Medium Enterprise Agency, Ministry of Economy, Trade
and Industry (METI), Japan and Mr. Hiroshi Tahara, Chief
Representative, Japan Finance Corporation (JFC Bangkok)
at the AVANI Atrium Hotel Bangkok in order to discuss and
compare between credit guarantee service of TCG and
Japan after having consulted with the executives from the Fiscal Policy Office (FPO) regarding the measures for
handling crisis and government supports to credit guarantee institutions in Thailand. The event took place at the
Fiscal Policy Office.
On April 2, 2015, Mr. Wichet Warakul, Senior Executive
Vice President (Business Group), Thai Credit Guarantee
Corporation (TCG), together with Mr. Siripong Pansanit, Vice
President of International Affairs Department, TCG, gave
a warm welcome to Mr. Anindo Mukherjee, EVP & Head of
Risk Management, Ms. Maxine Chen, Senior Vice President,
Business Development and Ms. Lim Cailin, Assistant Vice
President, Executive Office from Fullerton Financial
Holdings (International) Pte. Ltd., Singapore in order to
have a discussion on TCG credit guarantees operations at
TCG Head Office.
On May 9, 2015, Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon,
Chairman of the Board, Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation
(TCG), together with Col. Prasert Shusang, Chairman of
the Executive Committee and TCG management team
attended MOU signing ceremony established between
TCG and Japan Finance Corporation (JFC). The event
took place in Tokyo, Japan where Mr. Kittipong Apibalsri,
Minister-Counselor, Royal Thai Embassy Japan kindly
witnessed the MOU signing between both parties. The
objective of this MOU is to promote cooperation and good
relations between both organizations in carrying out credit
guarantee development, including promoting the growth of
small and medium enterprises in both countries.
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On May 19, 2015, Col. Prasert Shusang, Chairman
of the Executive Committee, Thai Credit Guarantee
Corporation (TCG), along with TCG management team
joined a meeting with Credit Risk Database Association,
Japan where he received a warm welcome from Mr. Satoshi
Kuwahara, President COO and his team. The meeting was
held to consult on the procedure for establishing Credit
Risk Database (CRD) System.

On May 29, 2015, Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon,
Chairman of Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG),
together with Mr. Vallobh Tejapaibul, President of TCG,
and Deputy Minister of Finance kindly chaired the opening
ceremony of “Through the Lens of the International Review of Credit Guarantee Scheme”, a book translated into
Thai by TCG based on the original book called International
Review of Credit Guarantee Schemes written by Korea
Credit Guarantee Fund (KODIT). The event was attended
by the chairman and the management of TMB Bank
Public Company Limited as well as the chairman and the management of Korea Credit Guarantee Fund (KODIT)
who kindly hosted the seminar session and the opening of press release of the translated book at the Grand
Millennium Sukhumvit Hotel.

On June 18, 2015, Mr. Wichet Warakul, Senior Executive
Vice President (Business Group), Thai Credit Guarantee
Corporation (TCG) and Mr. Siripong Pansanit, Vice President
of International Affairs Department, TCG, jointly received
Mr. Naoya Shimokoshi, Consultant, Nomura Research
Institute, Ltd. (NRI) Japan and Mr. Eisuke Ishizaka, Consultant,
NRI (Thailand) and the team upon their visit to study
TCG credit guarantee operations and its application of
International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS), including
government support on SMEs compliance with standard
accounting system. The event was supported by Economic Research Institute for ASEAN (ERIA) with the aim to
exchange knowledge on the use of accounting standard of SMEs among ASEAN member countries as well as
expressing opinions regarding how to promote the SMEs to follow standard accounting system. The event took
place at TCG Head Office.
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On June 22, 2015, Mr. Wichet Warakul, Senior Executive
Vice President, Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG),
together with Mr. Siripong Pansanit, Vice President of
International Affairs Department, TCG, gave a warm welcome
to Mr. Kazumi Nishikawa, Executive Director, Japan External
Trade Organization (JETRO) Singapore and Mr. Hiroshi Tahara,
Chief Representative, Japan Finance Corporation (JFC)
Representative Office in Bangkok upon their visit at TCG Head
Office in order to study TCG credit guarantee operations and
the possibility of Cross Border Guarantee, particularly Regional
Guarantee System, as this will enable the SMEs with cross
border investments to have wider access to financial sources which will in turn generate economic value added to
both countries.

On July 15, 2015, Mr. Vallobh Tejapaibul, President of
Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG), and Mr. Siripong
Pansanit, Vice President of International Affairs Department,
TCG, received Mr. Gyung Youn Ho, Auditor General of
Gyeonggi Credit Guarantee Foundation (GCGF), Korea,
including the management team and officers totaling 22
persons upon their second visit at TCG Head Office since
the year 2012 with the aim to study credit guarantee
operations and capital management of TCG, including
exchanging knowledge and operational procedure between
both organizations. GCGF also looked forward to exchange
knowledge with TCG on credit guarantees for Micro SMEs
group in the future.

Mr. Vallobh Tejapaibul, President of Thai Credit
Guarantee Corporation (TCG), and Mr. Siripong Pansanit,
Vice President of International Affairs Department, TCG,
jointly received Mr. Chou Vannak, Deputy Director General,
General Department of Financial Industry, Mr. Ney Sakal,
Director of Financial Markets and Institutions Department
(FMID), Mr. Moeurn Sovannara, Head of Financing for SMEs
Division, FMID, Mr. Mao Mpnyphirun, Official of Financing
for SMEs Division, FMID, Cambodia upon their visit to study
TCG credit guarantee operations at TCG Head Office from
July 21 -24, 2015.
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On August 3, 2015, Mr. Vallobh Tejapaibul, President
of TCG, together with Risk Management Department
and International Affairs Department jointly received
Mr. Perbagaran A/L K. Kuppusamy, Chief Risk Officer (CRO)
from Credit Guarantee Corporation Malaysia Berhad, who
kindly share his knowledge as a speaker at the seminar
session on “Development and Application of Credit Scoring
Model and Risk Based Pricing” in order educate TCG
management team and employees at the TCG Head Office
on the 18th Floor.

On August 5, 2015, Mr. Wichet Warakul, Senior
Executive Vice President (Business Group), Thai Credit
Guarantee Corporation (TCG), together with Mr. Siripong
Pansanit, Vice President of International Affairs Department,
TCG, jointly welcomed Mr. Andres Gomez, Senior
Investment Officer, Financial Institution Group and Ms. Kalina
B. Miller, Senior Counsel from International Finance
Corporation (IFC) upon their visit at TCG Head Office in
order to discuss on mutual product development in order
to assist SME entrepreneurs.

On August 6, 2015, Mr. Wichet Warakul, Senior Executive
Vice President (Business Group), Thai Credit Guarantee
Corporation (TCG), and Mr. Siripong Pansanit, Vice President
of International Affairs Department, TCG, jointly welcomed
Mr. Ali Rehan, Senior Fund Manager of NN Investment
Management Company, and Mr. Theerapol Booncharoen,
Head of Corporate Access Department, Deutsche TISCO
Investment Advisory Company Limited upon their visit at
TCG Head Office to discuss on the policies, opinions and
operational plan concerning credit guarantee service, credit
analysis and SMEs risk management.
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Mrs. Dusida Tapvong, Vice President of Corporate
Strategy Department, Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation
(TCG), along with the Head of Representatives and TCG
representatives attended a meeting with Korea Credit
Guarantee Fund (KODIT) at KODIT Head Office located
in Daegu, Korea in order to exchange knowledge and
experiences on credit guarantee at “The 11th TCG-KODIT
Working Level Council” which took place from August
23-28, 2015. The event was led by Mr. Lee Jong-goo,
Director of International Affairs Team. The objective of such
meeting was to have knowledge and experience sharing on
business management, guarantee product management,
risk management, and human resource management.
On August 28, 2015, Mr. Wichet Warakul, Senior
Executive Vice President (Business Group), Thai Credit
Guarantee Corporation (TCG), and Mr. Siripong Pansanit,
Vice President of International Affairs Department, TCG,
received Mr. Daigo Minoshima, Deputy Director, Finance
Division, Small and Medium Enterprise Agency, Ministry of
Economy, Trade and Industry (METI) and Mr. Norio Nakajima,
Director, Public Services from PricewaterhouseCoopers
(PwC Japan) upon their visit at TCG Head Office in order to
conduct research on Thailand’s credit guarantee system.

On September 3, 2015, Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon,
Chairman of Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG),
together with Mr. Vallobh Tejapaibul, President of TCG,
Mr. Wichet Warakul, Senior Executive Vice President (Business
Group) of TCG, jointly welcomed Mr. Atsuo KURODA
Senior Managing Director, General Manager, Small and
Medium Enterprise (SME) Unit from Japan Finance
Corporation (JFC), an institution which provides credit
guarantee service to SME entrepreneurs, at TCG Head
Office upon entrance of new office and to consult on the
operational procedures stipulated in the MOU established
between both institutions which covers from exchanging of information and knowledge concerning credit support
system, exchanging of skills, knowledge and expertise relating to financial services and staff exchange program.
Initially, TCG planned to start staff exchange program in order to promote sharing of knowledge on credit
guarantee operations between both institutions, including supporting the SMEs with cross border investments and
studying the procedures for providing Cross Border Credit Guarantees to SMEs.
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On September 11, 2015, TCG representative team led
by Mr. Chayanin Sirijangkapattana, Assistant Vice President
of Marketing & Product Development Department, attended
The 25th ACSIC Training Program (ATP) on “Creating a
Sustainable Credit Guarantee Organisation”, a workshop
organized by Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro and Small
Enterprises (CGTMSE) in Mumbai, India from September
6 -11, 2015 to allow each participating member country the
chance to exchange knowledge, practice and experience
concerning sustainable and efficient credit guarantee
system development.

On October 2, 2015, Mr. Siripong Pansanit, Vice
President of International Affairs Department, TCG, gave a
warm welcome to Miss Pruetthiporn Nakhonchai, Manager
of “SMEs Readiness Survey and Empowering SMEs for AEC
Trading and Investment” Project, and a research team
from Sasin Graduate Institute of Business Administration
upon their visit at TCG Head Office in order to study SMEs
promotion policies and suggestions in order to uplift
the level of competitiveness of Thai SMEs for regional
competition.

Mr. Niwat Kanjanaphoomin, Director and Acting
President of Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG),
along with TCG representative team welcomed Mr. KIM JAE
HOUNG, Department Manager and representatives from
Korean Federation of Credit Guarantee Foundation (KOREG)
as well as Seoul Credit Guarantee Foundation, Jeon-buk
Credit Guarantee Foundation, Jeon-nam Credit Guarantee
Foundation and Gyeong-nam Credit Guarantee Foundation
at “The 5th KOREG & CGFs – TCG Working Level Council”
held at TCG Head Office from October 25 – 30, 2015
in order to allow mutual sharing of knowledge and
experiences for corporate development.
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Mr. Yarnsak Manomaiphiboon, Chairman of Thai Credit
Guarantee Corporation (TCG), together with Mr. Niwat
Kanjanaphoomin, Director and Acting President of TCG,
and TCG management team attended The 28th ACSIC
Conference of Asian Credit Supplementation Institution
Confederation (ACSIC) hosted by The Indonesia Association
of Guarantee Corporation (ASIPPINDO). This 28th ACSIC
Conference covers the topics of “The Challenge of
Borderless SMEs Market in the Developing Economies and
the Role of Credit Guarantee Corporation” and “Measuring
the Soundness and Key Performance indicator (KPI) of
Credit Guarantee Corporation”. The purpose was to establish good relations among credit guarantee institutions
within Asia Region in continuous and sustainable manner as well as creating a network which will enable
assistance, knowledge and experience sharing among ACSIC members and participating institutions. The event was
held at Bali, Indonesia from November 15 – 20, 2015.

On December 8, 2015, Mr. Wichet Warakul, Senior
Executive Vice President (Business Group), Thai Credit
Guarantee Corporation (TCG), together with Mr. Siripong
Pansanit, Vice President of International Affairs Department,
TCG, jointly attended a meeting with Greater Mekong
Sub-region Business Forum (GMS-BF), Asian Development
Bank (ADB) (Thailand Branch) and representatives from
Mekong Sub-region. At the meeting, TCG presented its
roles in assisting small and medium enterprises in accessing
financial sources through credit guarantee service which
can further be adopted among countries within Mekong
Sub-region and other neighboring countries. The meeting
was held at ADB (Thailand).
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Having realized its roles and duties as a state- performing its business in ethical and environmentalowned enterprise that must prioritize development friendly manner, in 2015, TCG carried out a number of
for social and environmental sustainability as well as corporate social responsibility activities by emphasizing
ensuring the benefits of TCG stakeholders, particularly on social, community and environmental development
SMEs, Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) has as well as social engagement both internally and
therefore continuously carried out its corporate social externally, including building a sense of social
responsibility according to the determined corporate responsibility and participation among the staffs and
vision and mission since 2005 to ensure efficient survival enhancing corporate potentials and capabilities in
which will in turn help to build a strong and sustainable order to further develop and strengthen the country and
society and economy for the overall country.
the overall society to ensure sustainable development.
Besides maintaining good corporate image by Such activities included:
1. “Volunteer Employee Funding Program” Apart from fulfilling its corporate missions, TCG also recognizes the
importance of social engagement both internally and externally and is incorporated as part of the CSR practice of TCG
which mainly focuses on building organizational culture, particularly in terms of instilling moral, integrity, generosity
and care for the overall society among employees, all of which are essential to achieving sustainable growth. Bearing
this in mind, TCG therefore initiated “Volunteer Employee Funding Program”, which is a program for promoting a sense
of social responsibility among employees and willingness to help others and develop the overall country by devoting
oneself to helping the society, including raising awareness and understanding among employees regarding corporate
social responsibility. Furthermore, the program also helps to promote employees engagement in CSR activities in order to
bring out corporate potentials or capabilities which will in turn enable sustainable community and social development
Under such program, every employee was invited to “participate” in doing good deeds by allowing the
employees to form a group of three persons or more and present the volunteer project(s) which they had
participated that is related to community and social development, including applying the existing skills and
knowledge in developing the overall society and community by improving the quality of life as well as the
surrounding environment. The volunteer projects which had been selected by the Consideration Committee shall
receive a budget for supporting the activities carried out under such project and shall be given to the organizations
by TCG. Such volunteer projects included:
		 Renovation of football field
and sports and music activities for the
children of Baan Sosa: This volunteer
project was carried out by the staffs of
Chiang Mai Office, Branch Administration
Department. The project involves renovating
and repairing the football field and sports
complex located at Baan Sosa, Chiang
Rai Province, including providing sports
equipments, organizing Sports Clinic for
teaching the children various kinds of sports
as well as recreational activities and mini
concerts for children. In addition, the staffs
also donated their unused items and books
for the children of Baan Sosa, Chiang Rai
Province. 		

“Bang-pun I-oon (Share a Warmth & Care)” Activity : An activity
carried out by volunteer staffs from Public Relations Department in
order to support child care (newborns) service provided by the
Association for the Promotion of the Status of Woman (APSW), Don
Muang. The activity aims to give warmth and care to the abandoned
Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) newborn babies as well as those with problems in life.
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Sufficiency School Activity: An activity carried out by volunteer staffs from Bangkok Office, Branch
Administration Department in order to support the school lunch program of Khlong 11 School located
at Sala Kru (Tiem Upathun), Pathumthani Province by building farms for raising chickens and mushrooms
for cooking. In addition, an activity for educating the children on proper savings
was also carried out.

		

		 “TCG The Sitter” An activity carried out volunteer employees of Human Resources Department in
			 order to jointly support the construction of a “Nursery Room” at Wiset Chaichan Sub-district Municipality
			 Nursery Center located in Angthong Province by installing learning equipments for toddlers and at the
same time organizing learning
activities such as book reading,
painting and drawing to
promote skills development
among the children within the
community.
In order to achieve its goal in becoming a leading organization in carrying out voluntary work as well as social and
community development activities without expecting any benefits in return, TCG therefore set up “Excellent Volunteer Employee Award” which shall be given to employees by means of voting. The “Super Volunteer Employee
Award 2015” was given to volunteer staffs from Bangkok Office, Branch
Administration Department for their “Sufficiency School Project
Furthermore, TCG also recognizes the importance of employee
engagement in order to establish organizational culture and uplifting the
quality of life of community and the overall society. Hence, an activity
called “Sharing Happiness” was organized by providing snacks and offering
scholarships to Pattaya Orphanage Foundation in Pattaya Province, including
taking employees to visit the foundation and giving hugs to the orphanages.
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2. “SMEs Funding Program”
		 TCG values its roles in assisting small and
medium enterprises (SMEs) by providing credit
guarantee services for SMEs with potentials but lack
of sufficient securities to acquire loans from financial
institutions, including building confidence among
financial institutions in making credit expansion and
promoting the development of SME entrepreneurs
to ensure strong growth in efficient manner. Hence,
CSR activities have been carried out and incorporated
as part of TCG business operation in order to support
and develop SME entrepreneurs that are the clients
of TCG. In addition, TCG focuses on building “good
entrepreneurs” with integrity and honesty which
will in turn lead to the building of “strong and good
society”. At TCG, sufficiency economy philosophy has
also been adopted as a powerful tool in building good
entrepreneurs.
“SMEs Funding Program” has been initiated in
order to promote and support SME entrepreneurs
and the clients of TCG into becoming a role model
entrepreneur by organizing “Sufficiency Economy
Business Award” which is an activity carried out to award
SMEs clients of TCG that have adopted sufficiency
economy philosophy as part of their business operation
and successfully achieve sustainable growth.
The first “Sufficiency Economy Enterprise Award”
took place in 2015. The selection criteria of award
winners were entirely based on sufficiency economy
philosophy to ensure appropriateness in terms of
consideration and consistency with the objectives
of the program. The event was also joined by
representatives from the Office of the Royal
Development Projects Board (RDPB) whereas Mahidol
University took part in the judging committee. The
winners of “The 2015 Sufficiency Economy Enterprise
Award” are as follow:
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Winners of “Excellent Sufficiency Economy
Enterprise Award” in 2015 include:
		 Phung Noi Bakery Company Limited,
			 Chiang Mai
		 P.E. Technic Company Limited,
			 Phitsanulok
		 Nattida Coffee (Thamsing Coffee),
			Chumphon
Winners of “Outstanding Sufficiency Economy
Enterprise Award” in 2015 include:
		 T.S. Printing 2002 Company Limited,
			 Phitsanulok
		 Phu Chiang Tha Community Enterprise,
			 Chaiyaphum
		 Thana Plaspack Company Limited,
			 Nakhon Pathom
		 Udon Auto Glass Company Limited,
			 Udon Thani
Sufficiency economy philosophy by His Majesty
the King can widely be applied in every segment at
both personnel and community levels, particularly in
business sector. Under such philosophy, numerous
businesses can gain profitable returns without taking
advantage over others and at the same time prevent
them from seeking unreasonably high profits by
exploiting public resources without considering the
negative impacts that may follow, including ensuring
the use of available resources in efficient manner.

Social and Community Support Activities (Apart from TCG Core Missions)

At TCG, sufficiency economy philosophy has
been adopted across the organization by building
understanding among employees regarding the
principles of sufficiency economy, including building
role model entrepreneurs in order to inspire and draw
other entrepreneurs into following and understanding
the key definition of sufficiency economy. In addition,

TCG also focuses on encouraging its employees to take
part in sufficiency economy activities in order to build
true understanding among TCG employees regarding
the principles of sufficiency economy as well as the
importance of establishing balance between business
and the overall society and community.
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Branch Offices
1. Bangkok Office
Charn Issara Tower 2 (17th Floor) 2922/243 New Petchburi Road, Bangkapi, Huaykwang, Bangkok 10310
0-2890-9988 Ext. 9868-74, 9879-80 Mobile: 08-1733-3772, 08-1889-2235
0-2890-9770, 0-2890-9800
bangkok@tcg.or.th
7. Chon Buri Office
2. Phra Nakhon Si Ayutthaya Office
208/14 Moo 3, Prayasajja Road, Samed,
58/8 Moo 1, Rodjana Road, Thanu, Uthai,
Muang, Chon Buri Province 20000
Phra Nakhon Si Ayutthaya 13000
0-3811-1434
0-3595-7772
		 Mobile: 09-3139-4141, 09-7014-9975
		 Mobile: 09-3139-4445, 09-3139-4447
0-3811-1435
0-3595-7773
chonburi@tcg.or.th
central@tcg.or.th
8. Surat Thani Office
3. Chiang Mai Office
231/12 Moo 1, Chon Kasem Road, Makham Tia,
265/6 Changpuak Road, Changpuak,
Muang, Surat Thani 84000
Muang, Chiang Mai 50300
0-7721-9801-2
0-5200- 4330
		 Mobile: 08-1379-0011, 08-9874-7574
		 Mobile: 08-1379-6688, 08-1885-3534
0-7721-9803
0-5200-4331
suratthani@tcg.or.th
chiangmai@tcg.or.th
9. Songkhla Office
4. Phitsanulok Office
13 Chotivithayakul 3 Road, Hat Yai,
Thaisivarat Building (3rd Floor)
Hat Yai, Songkhla 90110
59/15 Baromtriloknart 2 Road, Naimuang,
0-7426-2551-2
Muang, Phitsanulok 65000
		 Mobile: 08-1379-5995 , 08-1766-1528
0-5524-4353
0-7426-2553
		 Mobile: 08-0507-7035, 08-1257-2217
songkhla@tcg.or.th
0-5524-4354
phitsanulok@tcg.or.th
10. Ubon Ratchathani Office
610 Chayangkoon Road, Naimuang,
5. Udon Thani Office
Muang, Ubon Ratchathani 34000
420/5 Moo 7, Thahan Road, Mak-khaeng,
0-4521-0844
Muang, Udon Thani 41000
		 Mobile: 09-3139-5445, 08-1379-0002
0-4234-1969-70
0-4521-0845
		 Mobile: 08-1379-4774, 06-2310-0570
ubon@tcg.or.th
0-4234-1971
udonthani@tcg.or.th
11. Prachuap Khiri Khan Office
42/116 Soi Hua Hin 6, Kasem Road, Hua Hin,
6. Nakhon Ratchasima Office
Hua Hin, Prachuap Khiri Khan 77110
901/6 Mittraphap Road, Naimuang,
0-3254-7151
Muang, Nakhon Ratchasima 30000
		 Mobile: 09-3139-5551, 09-3139-6363
0-4426-2104
0-3254-7141
		 Mobile: 08-1876-3911, 09-3134-8885
prachuap@tcg.or.th
0-4426-2105
korat@tcg.or.th
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